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GANDERwrw:

Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on June 11, 2008

To Our Shareholders:

The annual meeting of shareholders of Gander Mountain Company will be held at the Jerome Hill Theater,
located at 180 East Fifth Street, Saint Paul, Minnesota, on Wednesday, June 11, 2008, commencmg at 9:00 a.m.,
central time, for the following purposes:

l. to elect a board of directors of seven directors, to serve until the next annual meeting of
sharcholders or until their successors have been duly clected and qualified;

2. to ratify the appoiniment of Emst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting
firm for our fiscal year ending January 31, 2009; and

to transact other business that may properly be brought before the meeting.

Our board of directors has fixed April 21, 2008 as the record date for the meeting, and only shareholders of
record at the close of business on that date are entitled to receive notice of and vote at the meeting.

Your proxy is important to ensure a quorum at the meeting. Even if you own only a few shares, and
whether or not you expect to be present, you are requested to date, sign and mail the enclosed proxy in the
postage-paid envelope that is provided, or vote the enclosed proxy by telephone or through the Internet in
accordance with the voting instructions set forth on the enclosed proxy card. Votmg by proxy will not affect
your right to subsequently change your vote or to attend the annual meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Eric R. Jacobsen
Secretary

Saint Paul, Minnesota
May 13, 2008




YOTING INSTRUCTIONS

All shareholders may vote their shares through the"mail,'thrbugh the Internet or by telephone. Please help
us save administrative and postage costs by voting through the Internet or by telephone. Each method is available
24 hours a day until 11:59 p.m., eastern daylight time, on June 10, 2008 and will ensure that your vote is confirmed
and counted immediately. To vote:

BY INTERNET

e (o to the web site at www.proxyvote.com, 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

e  Enter the control number and personal identification number (PIN) (if required) as.shown on your proxy
card or electronic notification. - '

o  Complete the electronic ballot and submit your voting instructions.

BY TELEPHONE

+ From a touch-tone telephone, call the toll-free number printed on your proxy card or electronic notification,
24 hours a day, seven days a week.

. Enter the control nurﬁbc_r shown on your proxy card or electronic notification.
* Follow the simple recorded instructions.
BY MAIL
e . Mark your selections on the proxy card. .
s Date and sign your name exactly as it appears on your proxy card.

*  Mail the proxy card in the enclosed postage-paid envelope.

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT. THANK YOU FOR VOTING.




EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

"PROXY STATEMENT -
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GANDER MOUNTAIN COMPANY - ¢
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PROXY STATE'\!ENT FOR
2008 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

1 . B [

ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING

The enclosed proxy is being solicited by our board of directors for use in connection with our annual
meeting of shareholders to be held on Wednesday, June 11, 2008 in the Jerome Hill Theater, located at 180 East
Fifth Street, Saint Paul, Minnesota, at 9:00 a.m., central time, and at any adjournments thereof. The mailing of this
proxy statement and our board of directors’ form of proxy to shareholders w1ll commence on or about May 13,
2008. ' ‘ .

The board of directors requests that you vote on the proposals described in this proxy statement. You are
invited to attend the meeting, but you do not need to.attend the meeting in order to vote your shares. Instead, you
may follow the instructions below to vote your shares over the telephone or on the Inlemel or you can complete,
sign and return the enclosed proxy card. Your proxy is important to ensure a quorum “at the meetmg

What is the purpose of the annual meeting? !
om0

| At the annual meeling we will ask our shareholders to vote on two matters:

1. to elect a board of directors of seven dlrectors to serve until the next am_lual meetmg of
shareholders or until their successors have been duly elected and quallf ed; and’
2. to ratify the appointment of Emst & Young LLP as our independent reglstered pubhc accounting
. ‘ firm for our fiscal year ending I anuary 31,2009, ° . . E .

as well as to transact olher business that may properly be brought before the meelmg Followmg the formal’ pomon
of the meeting, our management will report on our performance and answer questions from our shareholders

Who is entitled to vote at the meeting? , o oLt : '

Only shareholders of record at the close of business on April 21, 2008 will be entitfed to vote at the
meeting or adjournments thereof. At the close of business on the record date, we had 24,051,940 shares of our
common stock outstandmg and entitled to vote. Every share is entitled to one vote on each matter that comes before
the meeting.

' RN

Who is entitled to attend the meeting? T o

Subject to space availability, alt shareholders as of the record date, or their di.ll'y appointed proXies,‘may
attend the meeting. Since seating is limited, admission to the meeting will be on a first-come, firsi-served basis,
Registration will begin at 8:30 a.m. [f you plan to attend the meeting, please note that you w1|l be asked to present
valid picture identification, such as a driver’s license or passport Cameras, recordmg dev1ces and other e]ectromc
devices will not be perrmtted at the meeting. -

Please also note that if you hold your shares in “street name” (that is, through a brokerror other.nominee),
you will need to bring a copy of a brokerage statement reflecting your stock ownership as of the record date. + - -

What constitutes a quorum? . e S

* A majority of the shares outstanding on the record date, present in person or represen_ted by pro;'cy, will
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. If a quorum is present, the meeting.can proceed.
Proxies received but marked as abstentions and broker non-votes will be’included in the calculation of the number of
shares considered to be present at the meeting for purposes of determining whetber there is a gquorum. '

- N . : AU |

How do I vote?

Proxies in the accompanymg form that are properly signed and duly returned to us, voted by telephone or
through the Internet in accordance with the voting instructions set forth below,.and not revoked, will be voted in the
manner specified. We encourage you to vote by telephone or on the Internet, if possible, to reduce the co%ts of
tabulating the vote.

.




To vote by mail:
e Mark your selections on the proxy card. °
» Date and sign your name'exa(‘:tly as it appears on your proxy card,

‘o Mail the proxy card in thé enclosed postage-paid envelope.

LN

To vote by Internet:
e Go to the web site at www.proxyvote.com, 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

» Enter the control number and personal identification number (PIN) (if required) as shown on your
proxy card or electronic notification. :

e Complete the electronic ballot and submit your voting instructions.
Tao vote by telephone: ) _ o ‘ -

»  From a touch-tone telephone, call the toll-free number printed on your proxy card or electronic
notification, 24 hours a day, seven days a week. '

‘

e  Enter the control number shown on your proxy card or electronic notification.
» Follow the simple recorded instructions.

If you are a registered shareholder and attend the annual meeting, you may deliver your proxy in person. If
you hold your shares in “street name,” you need to obtain a proxy form from the institution that holds your shares.

May I change my vote after I return my proxy card?

Yes. Even after you have submitted your proxy, you may change your vote at any time before the proxy is
exercised by filing with our corporate secretary cither a notice of revocation or a duly executed proxy bearing a later
date. Alternatively, if you have voted by telephone or through the Internet, you may change your vote by calling the
toll-free number again and foilowing the instructions, or by accessing the web site and following the instructions.
The powers of the proxy holders will be suspended if you attend the meeting in person and so request, although
attendance at the meeting will not by itself revoke a previously granted proxy.

What is the recommendation of the board of directors on voting my shares?

Our board of directors recomménds a vote for the election of the seven nominated directors to constitute
the board of directors and for the ratification of Emst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accounting
firm. If any other matters come up for a vote at the meeting, the proxy holders will vote in line with the
recommendati'ons of the board of directors or, if there is no recommendation, at their own discretion.

What vote is required to approve each item?

Election of Directors. Directors are elected by a plurality of the voting powér of the ‘shares of common
stock entitled to vote and present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting. For this purpose, a properly
executed proxy marked “WITHHELD” with respect to the clection of director nominees will be counted for
purposes of determining whether there is a quorum, but will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on the
election of directors.

Other Items. For all other items that properly come before the meeting, the affirmative vote of a majority
of the outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote and present in person or represented by proxy at the
meeting is required for approval. A properly executed proxy marked “ABSTAIN” with respect to any such matter
will be counted for purposes of deletmihing whether there is a quorum and will be considered present in person or
by proxy and entitled to vote. ’

What is the effect of abstentions and broker non-votes?

If shareholders indicate on their proxy that they wish to abstain from voting on a particular proposal,
including brokers holding their customers’ shares of record who cause abstentions 1o be recorded, these shares are
considered present'ahd entitled to vote at the meeting. These shares will count toward determining whether or not a
quorum is present. However, these shares will not be considered cast with respect to the proposal for which they
abstain from voting and will not be taken into account in determining the outcome of any of those proposals.
Accordingly, an abstention will have the effect of 2 negative vote.




If a shareholder does not give a broker holding the shareholder’s shares instructions as to how to vote the
shares, the broker has authority under New York Stock Exchange rules to vote those shares for or against “routine”
matters, such as the election of directors and the ratification of Emst & Young LLP as our independent registered
public accounting firm. Brokers cannot vote on their customers’ behalf on “non-routine” proposals. These rules
apply to us notwithstanding the fact that shares of our common stock are traded on The NASDAQ Global Market, If
a broker votes shares that are unvoted by its custorners for or against a “routing” proposal, these shares are counted
for the purpose of establishing a quorum and also will be counted for the purpose of determining the ‘outcome of the
“routine” proposals on which they are cast. ' Shares held by a broker on behalf of a shareholder will not be
considered cast with respect to any “non-routine” proposals and will not be taken into actount in determining the
outcome of any “non-routine” proposals. . S : ‘ o . .

May the meeting be adjourned? o | e 7 ‘

If a quorum is not present to transact business at the meeting or if we do not receive sufficient votes in
favor of the proposals by the date of the meeting, the persons named as proxies may propose one or more
adjournments of the meeting to permit solicitation of proxies. Any adjournment would require the affirmative vote
of a majority of the shares present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting. e '

Who pays the expenses incurred in connection with the solioitatiqn of proxies?

We will pay the cost of soliciting proxies in the accompanying form. In addition to solicitation by the use
of the mail, certain directors, officers and regular employees may solicit proxies by telephone; the Internet, email or
personal interview, and may request brokerage firms and custodians, nominees and other record holders to forward
soliciting materials fo the beneficial owners of our shares. We will reimburse them for their reasonable out-of-
pocket expenses in forwardmg these materials.

How may I obtain addttmnal copies of the annual report" . L \

Our annual report for our fiscal year ended February 2, 2008 known-as fiscal 2007 including financtal
staternents, is enclosed. The annual report is also available online- at www,gandermountain.com. For additional
printed copies, which.are available without charge, please contact our investor relations representative by e-mail at
investorrelations@gandermountain.com or by mail to Gander Mountain. Company, ¢/o Investor Relations, 180 East
Fifth Street, Suite 1300, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101. ) - . . T

What is the deadline for submitting a shareholder proposal for the 2009 annual meeting? . ' - .

We must’ rece1ve shareholder proposals intended to be presented at the 2009 "annual’ meetmg ‘of
shareholders that are requested to be included in the proxy statement for that meeting at ‘our prmmpal exécutive
office no later than January 13, 2009. We must receive any other sharcholder proposals intended to be presented at
the 2009 annual meeting of shareholders at our principal executive office no later than.March 13, 2009. The
inclusion of any shareholder proposals in such proxy materials will be subject to the requirements of the proxy rules
adopted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, including Rule 14a-8. Written copies of all sharcholder
proposals should be sent to our principal executive offices at Gander Mountain Company, c/o Corporate Secretary,
180 East Fifth Street, Suife 1300, Saint Paul anesota 55101.

a0, . oL ., . -




. . PROPOSAL 1 - ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Directors and pir'ectbf Nominees ‘ _ . _
' . Seven.directors are to be elected at the-meeting, each director to hold office unti! the next annual meeting
of shareholders, or until his or her successor is elected-and qualified. All of the nominees named below are cuitent
directors of, our company. Each nominee has indicated a willingness to serve as a director for the ensuing year.
Proxies solicited by the board will, unless otherwise directed, be voted to elect the seven nominees named below 1o
constitute the entire board, but in case any nominee is not a candidate at the meeting for any reason, the proxies
named in the enclosed proxy form may vote for a substitute nominee in their discretion.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding each director nominee: .

. Cae . S e . Ly . . Director
Name. \ . _Age o . Position Co Since
David C. ‘Pratl";‘ R - 63 - Chairman of the Board of Dire_c‘tors and,Director - 2005,
Ronald A. Erickson* - 71, " Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and Director 1997
Marshall L. Day* . 64 ch?d\ Independent Director . 2004 <
Mark R. Baker . | () President. Chief Executive Officer and Director 2004°
Karén M. Bohn*: - ' 154 Director / ' ' 2004
Richaid C. Delf* e 62 Director ' ' ' o 2004

+

Gerald'A. Erickson* " 71 Director : ' : 1997

i

* Tndependent director : - N ‘
M Mr. Pratt was originally elected to the board of directors in August 2003. He resigned from the board on
December 8, 2006 in order to facilitate the submission.of propesals in connectien with certain financing transactions.
Following completion of these financing transactions, Mr. Pratt was re-clected to the board on December 12, 2006.
Wy, L v . . ) s S, . . . )
David C. Pratt is the former Chdirman; President and Chief Executive Officer of United Industries, which
he founded. in 1969. He also is president of Rex Realty in Clayton, Missouri, and of DCP Investments, Inc., Three
Forks Ranch Corp., Three Forks Aviation, Inc. and Three Forks Lodge, Inc. Mr. Pratt is also a minority owner of the

St. Louis Cardinals major league baseball team. -

i

_ Ronald A. Erickson is the Chief Executive Officersand Chairman of the Board of Directors of Holiday
Companies, positions he has held since its formation in December 1992. Mr. Erickson is also a member of the
Board of Directors Jof Carriage Services, Inc., a public company engaged in ihe funeral services business.

“.‘Marshall L! Day served.in various positions with Home Depot Inc. from. 1986 through April 2000, serving
as SeniorVice President—Finance from 1993 to 1995, Senior Vice President—Chief Financial Officer from 1995 to
1998 and Senior Vice President—Finance and Accounting from1998 through- April 2000. Since his retirement from
Home Depot Inc. in April 2000, Mr. Day has served as an independent consultant. :

‘.
v

Mark R. Baker, an avid outdoorsman, has served as Chief-Executive Officer since September 2002. He
was appointed to the office of President in February 2004, From 1996 to July 2001, he served in various positions
with Home Depot Inc., including serving as Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief
Merchandising Officer from 1999 to 2001. Prior to joining Home Depot, Mr. Baker held senior management
positions with various retailers, including Knox Hardware and Lumber, Scotty’s Home Improvement Centers, and
HomeBase. Mr. Baker is a director of The Scotts Company, a public company that manufactures and markets lawn
and garden products.

Karen M. Bohn is currently President of Galeo Group LLC, a strategic management resource for
companies in governance, philanthropy, strategy and management effectiveness. Previously, she held a variety of
positions with Piper Jaffray Companies, most recently as Chief Administrative Officer and member of the
Management Committee. From March 2007 to October 2007, Ms. Bohn was the Interim Managing Director of The
Children’s Theater Company, the largest children’s theater in North America, She also serves on several corporate
and non-profit boards, including Otter Tail Corporation, a public diversified utility company.

Richard C. Dell has served as the Chief Executive Officer and a director of Ames True Temper, a

- manufacturer and marketer of non-powered lawn and garden tools and accessories, since January 2002, Prior to

joining Ames True Temper, Mr. Dell spent 27 years in a variety of positions at Newell Rubbermaid Inc., most
recently as Group President.




-+ Gerald A. Erickson has been a principal of Holiday Companies since its formation in December 1992 and
has served on the Board of Directors and as Vice President of Holiday Companies since that time. Mr, Erickson has
also served as Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Holiday Companies since 2003.. , | :

Mr. R. Enckson and Mr. G. Erickson are first cousms There are no othér famlly relauonshlps among our
dlrectors and executwe officers.

+ "

Committees of Our Board of Dlrectors v T . . -
Audu Commmee T N ‘ . .

Messrs. Day (Chair) and Dell and Ms.» Bohn compnse our audit committee: The purpose of our audit
committee is to oversee the accounting and financial reporting processes of our company and the audits ,of the
financial statements of our company. Qur audit committee’s function'is one of oversight and, in that regard our
audit committee meets with our management and our. independent registered public accounting firm to review and
discuss our financial reporting and our controls regarding accounting and risk of material loss. The.responsibilities
of our audit committec are set forth in the Audit Committee Charter, which is regularly reviewed.on at least an
annual basis in light of Securities and Exchange Commlssmn and NASDAQ Stock Market regulations. The current
version of our Audit Committee Charter is available on our web sité at www. gandermountam com. In addition to

regular consultation with our management, our audit committee held four meetings in fiscal 2007. .

Our board ‘of dlrectors has determmed that all mémbers of our audit committee are mdependent ” as that
term is uséd in Section 10A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as that term is defined in'Rule 4200¢a)(15) of
the NASDAQ Stock Market’s listing standards and as that term is defined by Section 301 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002. Our board of directors has determined that Mr. Day, the chair of our audit committee, is an “audit
commnttee financial expert” as defined by Securities and Exchange Commission regulations.

Compensat:on Commar!ee . Ch . - . : .

Mr. .Dell (Chair); Ms. Bohn and Messrs. Day, Pratt, G. Erickson and R. Erickson comprise our
compensation committee. QOur compensation committee held six meetings in fiscal 2007, Each member of our
compensation. committee is “independent” (as that term is defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASDAQ Stock
Market’s listing standards).

The compensation commitiee operates in accordance with our Compensation Committee Charter which is
available on our web site at www. gandermountain.com. “The Compensation Committee Charter is regularly
reviewed on at least an annual basis in light of Securities and Exchange Commlssmn and NASDAQ Stock Market
regulatlons

The primary duties of our compensation committee include (é')"'establishing goals relevant to compensation
of our executive. officers, (b)-reviewing and approving all actions affecting any element of compensation for our
executive officers and (c} supervising the administration of.our equity-based incentive plans and grants thereunder.
The compensation comnittee has the authority to retain outside experts and advisers as it determines appropriate.
During fiscal - 2007, the '‘compensation -committee retained Hewitt, Associates LLC, a nationally recognized
compensation consulting firm with retail industry expertise, to.provide the committee with information regarding
peer company compensation programs. S e

Stock-Based Awards Committee

" Mr. Dell (Chair), Ms Bohri ‘and Mr. Day comprlse aur stock- based awards committee. Each member of
our stock-based awards committee s “lndependent” {as that term is defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASDAQ
Stock Market’s listing stindards), an “outside dlrector (for purposes of Seétion 162(m) of the lntemal Revenue
Code) and 2 “non-employee director” (for purposes ‘of Rule 16b- 3 under the Securities and Exchange ‘Act of 1934).
The purpose of our stock-based awards committee is to revxew ‘consider and approve grants of stock options and
other stock-based awards made fo our directors and ofﬁcers to the extent these "individuals are persons required 1o
file reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 and the regulations promulgated thereunder.. In addition to regular consultation with our management, our

stock-based awards commlttee held one meetmg in fiscal 2007
it s *

Govemance and Nommatmg Commr!tee e ) v

Ms. Bohn (Chair) and Messrs. Pratt, Day, G. Erickson and R. Erickson comprise our governance and
nominating committee. All members of the governance and nominating committee are “independent,” as that term
is defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASDAQ Stock Market’s listing standards. The purposes of our governance
and nominating committee are to' (a) oversee corporale governance matters, (b) approve director-nominees to be

5




considered for election by shareholders and- for election by the board to fill any vacancy or newly created
directorship and (c) make recommendations to the board concerning the appropriate size and composition of the
board and each board committee, and the establishment of new board committees. Our governance and nominating
committee also assists our board of directors in developing and implementing our Principles of Corporate
Governance and Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, including overseeing the orientation program for new
directors and the continuing education program for all directors. The responsibilities of our governance and
nominating committee are set forth in the Governance and Nominating Committee Charter, which is regularly
reviewed on at least an annual basis in light of Securities and Exchange Commission and NASDAQ Stock Market
regulations and is available on our web site at www.gandermountain.com. In addition to regular consultation with
our management, our governance and nominating committee held four meetings in fiscal 2007,
Board of Directors Meetings and Attendance . '

Our board of directors held six meetings' during fiscal 2007 and acted by written consent in’ lieu of a
meeting -on one occasion. During fiscal 2007, each- current director attended at least 75% of the aggregate of all
meetings of our board of directors and of the board committees on which the director SErves. .

Principles of Corporate Governance and Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Our board of directors has adopted Principles of Corporate Governance to assist in the performance of its
responsibilities. We have also adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics to guide our directors and employees
in connection with their work 'fqr our company. These principles and this code are available on our web site at
www.gandermountain.com. '

Director Independence

Our board of directors has determined that all of our directors, except Mr. Baker, are “independent,” as that

term is defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASDAQ Stock Market regulations.

Our board of directors believes that, as a matter of policy, there should be a majority of independent
directors on our board. In determining the independence of our directors, our board considered those transactions
and relationships described in this proxy statement under “Certain.Relationships and Related Person Transactions.”

Lead Independent Director

_ Our board of directors has designated Mr. Day as our lead independent director. Mr. Day works with the
chairman and vice chairman of the board to establish board agendas, presides at exequtive‘ sessions of the
independent directors and otherwise assists the board in the discharge of its responsibilities.

Director Qualifications and Director Nominee Selection Policy \ E

The governance and nominating committee is responsible for recommending nominees for election to the
board of directors. The governance and nominating committee is responsible for reviewing with the board, on an
annual basis, the requisite skills and characteristics of individual board members, as well as the composition of the
board as a whole, in the context of our needs. - The governance and nominating committee reviews all nominees for
director and recommends to the board those nominees whose attributes it believes would be most beneficial to us.
This assessment will include such issues as experience, integrity, competence, diversity, age, skills and dedication in
the context of the needs of the board.

The govemance and  nominating committee will consider director candidates recommended by
shareholders in the same manner that it considers all director candidates. Shareholders who wish to suggest
qualified candidates to the gévernance and nominating committee should write to the office of the Corporate
Secretary, Gander Mountain Company, 180 East Fifth Street, Suite 1300, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101, stating in
detail the candidate’'s qualifications for consideration by the governance and nominating committee. 1f a
shareholder wishes to nominate a director other than a'person nominated by or on behalf of the board of directors, he
or she must comply with certain procedures set out in our bylaws. ' ' '

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation . “ o .

No executive officer serves as a member of the board of directors or compensation commitiee of any entity
that has any of its executive officers serving as a member of our board of directors or ‘compensation committee,




Attendance at Annual Meeting

Directors are expected to attend annual meetings of our shareholders unless they have unavoidable
scheduling conflicts. All seven of our directors serving at the ttme of our 2007 annual meeting of sharcholders
attended that meeting.,

Procedures for Contacting the Board of Directors

All interested parties may send written communications to the board 'of directors or specified individual
directors by addressing their communication to the Corporate Secretary, Gander Mountain Company, 180 East Fifth
Street, Suite 1300, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101. The communications will be collected by the corporate secretary
and delivered, in the form received, to the presiding director or, if so addressed, to a specified director.

Our board of directors unanimously recommends that you vote “FOR” the election of each of the
seven nominees listed above to constitute our board of directors.




PROPOSAL 2 — RATIFICATION OF THE
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Emst & Young LLP has been our independent registered public accounting firm since fiscal 2002. OQur
audit committee has selected Emst & Young LLP to serve as our independent registered public accounting firm for
fiscal 2008, subject to ratification by our shareholders. While-it is not. required to do so, our audit committee is
submitting the selection of that firm for ratification in order to ascertain the view of our shareholders. If the
sclection is not ratified, our aud_i‘t_ committee will reconsider its selection. Proxies solicited by our board of directors
will, unless otherwise directed, be voted to ratify the appointment of. Emst & Young LLP as our indépendent
registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2008. h S : '

A representative of Emst & Young LLP will be present at the meeting and will be afforded an opportunity
to make a statement if the Tepresentative so desires and ‘will be available to respond to appropriate questions during
the meeting. T '

Fees Billed by Ernst & Young LLP

In addition to reimbursement for certain out-of-pocket expenses, the following table presents the aggregate
fees billed for professional services by Emst & Young LLP in fiscal 2007 and 2006 for these various services:

. Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Description of Fees 2007 Amount 2006 Amount
Audit Fees : $ 521,800 $ 655,000
Audit-Related Fees 235,800 14,000
Total Audit and Audit-Related Fees 757,600 669,000
Tax Fees:
Tax Compliance Fees . - --
Tax Consultation and Advice Fees -- --
Total Tax Fees - --
All Other Fees -- --
Total $ 757.600 $ 669,000

Audit Fees

The audit fees set forth above consist of fees billed by Emst & Young LLP for audit services in connection
with their review of our interim financia!l statements for the first three quarters of each fiscal year and for the audits
of our 2007 and 2006 fiscal year-end financial statements and the audits of our internal control over financial
reporting for our 2007 and 2006 fiscal year-end, in addition to fees for audit services that are normally provided by
an accountant in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements, such as comfort letters and
consents related to Securities and Exchange Commission registration statements, for the fiscal year.

A udi!‘-ReiaIed Fees

The audit-related fees set forth above for fiscal 2007 consist of fees billed by Emst & Young LLP for the
audits of our employee benefit plans ($15,000), assistance with the due diligence review undertaken in connection
with our acquisition of Overton’s, Inc. in December 2007 ($214,300) and assistance in the preparation of regisiration
statements ($6,500). The audit-related fees set forth above for fiscal 2006 consist of fees billed by Ernst & Young
LLP for the audits of our employee benefit plans and an annual subscription for online technical research.

Tax Fees ‘
We were not billed any amounts by Ernst & Young LLP for tax fees during fiscal 2007 or 2006.
All Other Fees

We were not billed any amounts by Emst & Young LLP for other products and services during fiscal 2007
or 2006.

Approval of Independent Registered‘Public Accounting Firm Services and Fees

The Audit Committee Charter requires that our audit committee approve the retention of our independent
registered public accounting firm for any non-audit service and consider whether the provision of these non-audit
services by our independent registered public accounting firm is compatible with maintaining our independent
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registered public accounting firm’s independence, prior to engagement for these services. Our audit’ committee
actively monitors the relatmnshlp between audit and non-audit services prowded All of the services llsted under the
heading Audit-Related Fees were pre-approved by our audit committee.

|
¥

Report of the Audit Committee

The role of our committee, which is composed of three independent non-employee dlrectors is one of
0vers:ght of our company s’ management and mdependent registered public accounting firm with regard to our
company s financial reporting ‘and confrols regarding accounting and risk of material loss. In performing our
oversight function, we relied upon advice and information received in our discussions with management and the
mdcpendent regastered public accounting firm.

Our committee has (i) reviewed and discussed our audited financial statements for fiscal 2007 wnh our
company’s management; (ii) discussed with our company’s independent registered public accounting firm the
matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61 regarding communication with audit
committees (Codification of Statements on Auditing Standards, AU sec. 380); (iii) received the written disclosures
and the letter from our company’s independent registered public accounting firm required by Independence
Standards Board Standard No. | (Independence Discussions with Audit Commitiees); and (iv) discussed with our
company’s independent registered public accounting firm the independent registered public accounting firm's
independence. Based on the review and discussions with management and the independent registered public
accounting firm referred to above, our committee recommended to the board that the audited financial statements be
included in our company’s annual report on Form 10-K for fiscal 2007 and filed with the Secuntles and Exchange
Commission,

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

MARSHALL L. DAY (Chair)
RICHARD C. DELL '
' MREN M. BOHN

Our board of directors unanimously recommends that you vote “FOR” proposal 2 to ratify the
appointment of Ernst & Young LLP.




+ - SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table séts forth, as of April 21, 2008, the owneiship of ‘con'{mori stock by each sharcholder
whom we know to own beneficially more than 5% of the outstanding ¢ommon stock, each director, each executive
officer named in the summary compensation table, and all executive officers and directors as a group. At the close
of business on April 21, 2008, there were 24,051,940 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, each of which
is entitied to one vote. A C

. Unless otfierwise indicated, ‘the listed béneficial owner has sole voting power and invcstipént_power with
respect 1o such shares'and the mailing address fot each person listed in the table is 180 East Fifth Street, Suite 1300,
Saint Paul, Minnésota 55101, ™ o } St oo '

]

Amount and Nature of .! -~ Percentage of

L

Name of Beneficial Owner or Identity of Group Beneficial Ownership Outstanding Shares
Non-employee directors; , R '.. ' .
Karen M. Bohn . Y . . 35607 (1) . . .

.- Marshall L. Day S : . ' Lo M0 ,

» Richard C. Dell . : g Coa 46207(3) .t TN * !

" Gerald A. Erickson e v 97,045,459 (4) - '20.3%' ’
Ronald A. Erickson o L - 7,136,084 (5) S 297%
David C. Pratt s - 0087860 (6) T 142.3%
Named e.r_ea;lives:‘ : ' . | B ‘ R ' -.' " ,
Mark R. Baker 880,319 (7) 3.5%
Robert J. Vold _ . 38,602 (8) *
Richard J. Vazquez *~ = 141,333 (9) .
Mark A. Bussard . - : 55,000 (10) *
Eric R. Jacobsen | 122,964 (11) *

Executive officers and directors as a group (13 persons) 18,920,136 (12) 74.7%

. Other beneficial owners: .. ' ., L
Hotiday Stationstores, Inc, 6,855,609
4567 American Boulevard West .
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55437

Arthur T. Erickson, 11 6,957,404 (13) 28.9%
4567 American Boulevard West
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55437

Brian A. Erickson 6,938,082 (14) 28.8%
4567 American Boulevard West
Minncapolis, Minnesota 55437

Neal D. Erickson 6,973,345 (15) 29.0%
4567 American Boulevard West
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55437

Richard D, Erickson 7,000,295 (16) 29.1%
4567 American Boulevard West
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55437

Charles E. Pih! " 6,881,800 (17) 28.6%
4567 American Boulevard West
Minneapolis, Minnesola 55437

David C. Pratt Irrevocable Grantor Retained Annuity 1,400,000 (18) 5.8%
Trust, dated 12/1/92

7701 Forsyth Boulevard, Suite 1125

St. Louis, Missouri 63105

Grateo, LLC ' 8,766.255 (19) 36.4%
7701 Forsyth Boulevard, Suite 1125
St. Louis, Missouri 63103

Dimensional Fund Advisors LP 1,432,427 (20) 6.0%
1299 Ocean Avenue
Santa Monica, California 90401

*] ess than [%.
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(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(N

(8)

Ms. Bohn directly owns 5,607 shares of common stock. Of these shares of common stock, 1,605 shares are
shares of restricted stock. These restricted shares were granted on June 13, 2007 and will vest on June 13,
2008. Ms. Bohn may be deemed to possess beneficial ownership of 400 shares of common stock held by

her children. Ms. Bohn also holds options to purchase 30,000 shares of common stock that vest within 60

days of April 21, 2008.

Mr. Day directly owns 4,207 shares of common stock. Of these shares of common stock, 1,605 shares are
shares of restricted stock. These restricted shares were granted on June 13, 2007 and witl vest on June 13,

2008. Mr. Day also holds options to purchase 30,000 shares of common stock that vést within 60 days of
April 21, 2008. . . S

Mr. Deli directly owns 16,207 shares of common stock. Of these shares of coinmon stock,'l,éps shares are
shares of restricted stock. These restricted shares were granted on June 13, 2007 and will vest on June 13,
2008. Mr. Dell also holds options to purchase 30,000 shares of commeon stock that vest within 60 days of
April 21, 2008, ' ‘

Mr. Erickson directly owns 127,644 shares of common stock. Of these shares of common stock, 1,605
shares are shares of restricted stock. These restricted shares were granted on June 13, 2007 and will vest on
June 13, 2008. Mr. Erickson also holds options to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock that vest
within 60 days of April 21, 2008. As a result of Mr. Erickson’s service on the board ofdlrectors of Holiday
Stationstores, Inc., Mr. Erlckson may be deemed to possess beneficial ownershlp of the 6,855,609 shares of
common stock owned by Holiday Stationstores, Inc, Mr. Erickson disclaims beneficial ownership of the
shares of common stock held by Holiday Stationstores, Inc except to the'extent of his pecuniary interest in
such shares. Mr. Erickson may also be deemed to possess beneficial ownership of 2,975 shares of common
stock held by his spouse. Mr. Erickson disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of common stock held
by his spouse. Mr. Erickson may be deemed to be the Beneficial owner of 15,120 shares of common stock
as co-trustee of the Tristan O. Erickson Separate Trust for Arthur T. Erickson, 1I; however, he disclaims
beneficial ownership of these securities. Mr. Erickson is the beneficial owner of 18,991 shares of common
stock held by the Gerald A. Erickson Irrevocable Trust of 1995 for the benefit of Gerald A. Erickson, Jr.,
and 15,120 shares of common stock held by the Tristan O. Erickson Separate Trust for Gerald A. Erickson,
Jr,

Mr. Erickson directly owns 138,055 shares of common stock. " Of these shares df common stock, 1,605
shares are shares of restricted stock. These restricted shares were granted on June 13, 2007 and wilt vest on

.June 13, 2008.. Mr. Erickson may be deemed to possess beneficial ownership of 11,000 shares of common
:stock held by his spouse and 121,420 shares of common stock held by his child; however, he disclaims

beneficial ownership of these securities. As a resultof Mr. Erickson’s service on the board of directors of
Holiday Stationstores, Inc., Mr. Erickson may be deemed to possess beneficial ownership of the 6,855,609
shares of common stock owned by Holiday Stationstores, Inc. Mr. Erickson disclaims beneficial ownership
of the shares of common stock held by Holiday' Slauonstores Inc. except to the extent of his pecuniary
interest in such shares.

Based, in part, on’ the infor'mation contained in an amended Schedule 13D filed with the Securities and

" Exchange Commission on December 6, 2007 by Mr. Pratt, reflecting his beneficial ownership as of

December 6, 2007. The total included in the table reflects (a) Mr. Pratt’s fully vested options to purchase
20,000 shares of common stock, {b) 1,605 shares of restricted stock, granted on June 13, 2007, and which
restricted shares will vest on June 13, 2008, (¢) Gratco, LLC’s ownership of 8,766,255 direct shares of
common stock, and (d) ownership of the David C. Pratt Irrevocable Grantor Retained Annuity Trust, dated
12/1/92 (the “Trust”) of 1,400,000 direct shares of common stock.. The Schedule 13D was filed jointly
with Mark R. Gale, as the owner and controlling person of the sole trustee of the Trust. For purposes of
Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, securities held by the Trust re deemed
to be beneficially owned by Mr. Gale, as the owner-and controlling person of the sole trustee. Therefore,

this information is provided for informational purposes only and Mr. Pratt disclaims beneficial ownership

,of the securities held by the Trust.

Mr. Baker directly owns 72,473 shares of common stock. Mr. ‘Baker may be deemed to_possess beneficial
ownership of 150 shares of common stock held by his child. Mr. Baker also holds options to purchase
807,846 shares of common stock that vest within 60 days of April 21 2008.

Mr. Vold directly owns 5,685 shares of common_ stock. Mr."Vold also holds optlons to purchase 32, 917
shares of common stock that vest within 60 days of April 21, 2008.

il
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(10)

(11)

(i2)

(13

(14)

(15)

(16)

(17

(18)

(19)

Mr. Vazquez directly owns 10,000 shares of commeon stock. In addition, Mr, Vazquez serves as the trustee
and is the beneficiary of a trust that holds an aggregate of 18,000 shares of common stock. Mr. Vazquez
also holds options to purchase 113,333 shares of common stock that vest within 60 days of April 21, 2008,

Mr. Bussard owns no direct shares of the company. Mr. Bussard holds options to purchase 55,000 shares
of common stock thal vest within 60 days of April 21, 2008.

Mr. Jacobsen directly owns 34,631 shares of common stock. Mr. Jacobsen also holds options to purchase
88,333 shares of common stock that vest within 60 days of April 21, 2008.

Consists of the securities reported by the non-employee directors and named executives set forth in the
table above, as well as (a) 821 shares of common stock held by JoAnn Bailey Boldt and options to purchase
27,981 shares of common stock held by Ms. Boldt that vest within 60 days of April 21, 2008 and (b) no
shares of common stock held by Kerry Graskewicz and options to purchase 23,300 shares of commeon stock
held by Mr. Graskewicz that vest within 60 days of April 21, 2008.

Mr. Erickson directly owns 33,573 shares of common stock. As a result of Mr. Erickson’s service on the
board of directors of Holiday Stationstores, Inc.,, Mr. Erickson may be deemed to possess beneficial
ownership of the 6,855,609 shares of common stock owned by Holiday Stationstores, Inc. Mr. Erickson
disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of common stock held by Holiday Stationstores, Inc, except to
the extent of his pecuniary interest in such shares, Mr. Erickson may be.deemed to be the beneficial owner
of 18,991 shares of common stock as co-trustee of the Gerald A. Erickson Irrevocable Trust of 1995 for the
benefit of Gerald A, Erickson, Jr. and 15,120 shares of common stock as co-trustee of the Tristan O.
Erickson Separate Trust for Gerald A. Erickson, Ir.; however, he disclaims beneficial ownership of these
securities. Mr. Erickson is also the beneficial owner of 18,991 shares of common stock hetd by the Gerald
A. Erickson Irrevocable Trust of 1995 for the benefit of Arthur T. Erickson, I, and 15,120 shares of
common stock held by the Tristan O. Erickson Separate Trust for Arthur T. Erickson, I1.

Mr. Erickson directly owns 82,473 shares of common stock. As a result of Mr. Erickson’s service on the
board of directors of Holiday Stationstores, Inc., Mr. Erickson may be deemed to possess beneficial
ownership of the 6,855,609 shares of common stock owned by Holiday Stationstores, Inc. Mr. Erickson
disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares ef common stock held by Holiday Stationstores, Inc. except to
the extent of his pecuniary interest in such shares,

Mr. Erickson directly owns 117,736 shares of common stock. As a result of Mr. Erickson’s service on the
board of directors of Holiday Stationstores, Inc., Mr. Erickson may be deemed to possess beneficial
ownership of the 6,855,609 shares of common stock owned by Holiday Stationstores, Inc: Mr. Ericksen
disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of common stock held by Holiday Stationstores, Inc. except to
the extent of his pecuniary interest in such shares.

Mr. Erickson directly owns |44,686 shares of common stock. As a result of Mr. Erickson’s service on the
board of directors of Holiday Stationstores, Inc., Mr. Erickson may be deemed to possess beneficial
ownership of the 6,855,609 shares of common stock owned by Holiday Stationstores, Inc. Mr. Erickson
disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of common stock held by Holiday Stationstores, Inc. except to
the extent of his pecuniary interest in such shares. -

Mr. Pihl directly owns 26,191 shares of common stock. Mr. Pihl serves as the trustee and is the beneficiary
of a trust that holds an aggregate of 53,766 shares of common stock. As a result of Mr. Pihl’s service on
the board of directors of Holiday Stationstores, Inc., Mr. Pihl may be deemed to possess beneficial
ownership of the 6,855,609 shares of common stock owned by Holiday Stationstores, Inc. . Mr. Pihi
disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of common stock held by Holiday Stauonstores, Inc. except to
lhe extent of his pecuniaty interest in such shares.

Based on the information contained in an amended Schedule 13D filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on December 6, 2007 reflecting David C. Prait’s beneficial ownership as of December 6,
2007. The total included in the table reflects the Trust’s ownership of 1,400,000 direct shares of common
stock and no other shares reported in the Schedule 13D. The Schedule 13D was filed jointly with Mark R.
(iale, as the owner and controlling person of the sole trustee of the Trust.

Based on the information contained in an amended Schedule 13D filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on December 6, 2007 reflecting David C. Pratt’s beneficial ownership as of December 6,
2007. The total included in the table reflects Gratco, LL.C’s ownership of 6,855,609 direct shares of
common stock and no other shares reported in the Schedule 13D.
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(20) Based on information contained in a Schedule 13G filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

* February 6, 2008 reﬂecling the beneficial-ownership of Dimensional Fund Advisors LP (the “Fund™) as of

December 31, 2007. ' The Fund reported sole voting power with respect to l ,432,427 shares and sole
dispositive power with respect to 1,432,427 shareq

.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Compensation Discussion and Analysis

_ This section contains a discussion of the material elements of the compensation program covering our chief
executive officer, chief financial officer and our other three most highly compensated executlve officers, who are
referred to in this proxy statement as the named execulives.

Executive Compensation Objectives .

The goal of our executive compensation program is to attract and retain motivated individuals who will
lead our company to achieve long-term success and growth in sharcholder value. Toward this goal, we seek to base
executive compensation on the level of job responsibility, individual performance and company performance, to
align the interests of the named executives with those of our shareholders and to encourage the named executives to
remain with our company. We seek to reward current results and motivate long-term performance through a
combination of cash and equity incentive awards that fulfill our performance, alignment and retention objectives.
We believe that our executive compensation program must remain competitive with the pay of other -leading
employers who compete with us for talent.

Compensation Committee Process

Our compensation committee retained independent compensation consultant Hewitt Associates LLC, a
nationally recognized consulting firm with retail industry expertise, to provide our committee with information
regarding peer company compensation programs. The peer companies selected included mass merchants and
specialty retail companies of various sizes, The compensation committee viewed the information provided by the
consulting firm as only one of a number of tools it utilized in assessing executive compensation. The compensation
committee did not apply a mechanical formula or target a specific amount relative to comparative data for each
individual, nor did the committee target a specific amount or relative weight for each component of compensation.
Rather, the committee members considered all elements of compensation together and utilized their experience and
judgment in determining the total compensation opportunity and mix of compensation elements appropnate for each
executive ofﬁccr in light of our compensation objectives.,

*.

Our compensation committee also regularty consults w1th our management, and our chlef executive ofﬁcer
makes recommendations to the committee regarding compensation of our executive officers. Our chief executive
officer participates in the compensation committee’s deliberations regarding compensation for executive officers
other than our chief executive officer, although all determinations are made by the committee. The compensation
committee’s charter provides that our chief cxecutive officer may not be present during the committee’s voting or
delibérations regarding the chief executive officer’s compensation, and he does not participate in such voting or
dellberatlons

Determining Executive Compematmn Jor the Fiscal Year Ended February 2, 2008

Our executive compensation program for the last fiscal year consisted of four main elements:

. base salary,

0. . cash incentive program, .
. long-term equity incentive awards in the form of stock options, and

. other benefits.

During fiscal 2007 our compensation committee shifted its approach to how it determined cash incentives and how it
weighed those incentives relative to base salary in the total mix of cash compensation for executives,

For fiscal 2006, and in our prior years as a public company, cash incentives were payable on an annual
basis if our company achieved a minimum threshold target of pre-tax income. Because our pre-tax income failed to
meet the minimum threshold, no bonus payments were made te executives for fiscal 2006 or in our prior years as a
public company. Our compensation committee considered whether to institute a similar program for fiscal 2007 but
decided part way through the year to shift the focus of the incentive program away from pre-tax income and onto

13




initial 'margin; which consists of total direct.product sales minus total direct product costs. In June 2007, the
committee adopted a program under which executive officers were entitled to receive a monthly incentive payment
that was calculated as a fraction of our initial margin for each fiscal month as reflected in our internal financial
statements. In conjunction with this change in the cash incentive program, the executive officers’ base salaries were
reduced through amendments to their employment agreements effective in July 2007. See “Employment
Agreements” below for more information about the agreements and amendments.

Our compensation committee undertook this new compensation approach as a way to focus our'executive
officers and the rest of management on inittal margin, which the committee believed would be a critical driver in
improving our company’s financial performance This new program also aligned with an analogous cash incentive
program implemented by us for our retail store managers. The committee ultimately detérmined that althotigh the
new compensation program was effective in increasing initial margin and initial margin is a very important factor in
overall financial performance, other factors should be reflected in a more comprehensive compensation program.
Accordingly, our compensation committee decided in January 2008 to terminate the initial margin cash incentive
program and the related employment agreement amendments, effective on the first day of fiscal 2008. This resulted
m base salaries for our executive officers reverting to the amounts in effect prior to the amendments

o

In place of the initial margin cash incentive program, our compensation‘ committee has put an annual
incentive plan in place for fiscal 2008 that will pay an annual cash incentive to our executive officers if pre-tax
income .for our retail operations exceeds a minimum threshold, with incentive payments increasing in-size for
increasing amounts of pre-tax income up to a maximum level. ' In addition, our compensation committee has
determined to consider a discretionary bonus program at the conclusion of fiscal 2008 that will be based on the
pre-tax income of our Internet and catalog businesses during the year. These bonuses will be payable only if the
minimum pre-tax income target for our retail operations is met and then only if the compensation committee
determines in-its sole discretion, based on the factors it deems relevant, that such bonus payments are appropnate If
paid, the discretionary bonuses will be capped at an aggregate of $500,000. - :

Elements of Executive Officer Compensation for the Fiscal Year Ended F. ebruary 2, 2008 .
Base Salary

Base salary is a set amount of cash compensation that is not variable i in nature, Base salaries for the
éxecutive officefs are reviewed annually by the compensation committee, but are not automatlcally increased if the
committee believes that the executive’s total compensation opportunity from atl elements of compensation is
appropnate in light of our compensanon objectives. Adjustments are based on each executive ofﬁcer s performance
for the prior year; his or her experience, expertise and position within our company; overall company performance;
and compensation levels for comparable positions at other companies in the retail industry with whom our company
competes, as reported in external compensation sources. Although the compensation committee uses comparative
data as a tool to assess reasonableness and competitiveness of base salaries, the members. of the committee also
exercised their subjective judgment in view of our compensation objectives. ,

~ All executive officers, except for Mr. Vold, who was promoted to an executive ofﬁcer position in January
2007 received initial base salary increases in March 2007 over their fiscal 2006 salaries. As noted above, these
salaries were adjusted downward part way through the year in connection with the adoption of the monthly ihcentive
program tied to initial margin. The aggregate base salaries paid to the named executives.in fiscal 2007 are listed in
the Summary Compensation Table below.

Cash Incentive Compensation

Cash incentive compensation is a key component of our company’s executive compensation strategy. The
purpose of cash incentive compensation is to provide cash compensation that is variable based on the achievement
of performance goals established by the compensation committee. The committee reserves the right to award
discretionary bonuses based on its judgment. The named executives do not have a contractual right to receive a
fixed bonus for any fiscal year. :

Tn June 2007, our compensation committee implemented a cash incentive program for the remainder of
fiscal 2007 pursuant to which our executive officers were eligible to receive monthly incentive payments. Under
this program, the executive officers received payments calculated as a fraction of our injtial margin for each fiscal
month as reﬂected in our internal financial statements. Our compensation committee selected a multiplier for each
. executive officer that was used to determine what portion of our initial margin he or she would receive as an
incentive payment each month. Each executive’s multiplier was selected based on his or her level of responsibility
and experience. This cash incentive program was terminated by our compensation committee, effeenve on the first
day of fiscai 2008.
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Long-Term Equity Incentive Awards : : . :

Our long-term equity incentive program is designed to encourage the creation of long-term value for our
shareholders, retain our key executives and build equity ownership among participants in the program. We believe
stock options align the interests of the named executives with those of our shareholders and enhance retention of key
executives as options provide value only if our share price increases (which benefits all shareholders), and only if
the employee remains with our company until his or her options vest. In fiscal 2007, the compensalion committee
approved stock option grants for the named execuuves reflected in the Grants of Plan Bascd Awards in Flscal 2007
table below.

Other Benefits

'
'

The compensation committee believes that we must offer a competitive benefits program to attract and
retain our executive officers. During fiscal 2007, we provided medical and other benefits to our executive officers
that are generally available to our other employees. Wc provide employees, including the named executives, with a
401(k) plan under which all partncnpants receive a company matching contribution pursuant to which we match
100% of the first 3% of a participant’s annual salary contributed to their 401(k) plan account and 50% of the next
2% of such participant’s annual salary contributed to their account. Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr.
Baker also receives up to 50 hours of personal use of our company’s airplane. In fiscal 2007, Mr. Baker utilized our
company’s airplane for 36.5 hours of personal use for which we imputed income to him for our incremental costs
without a tax gross-up.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Our employees, including our executive officers, may acquire our stock through a tax-qualified employee
stock purchase plan, which is generally available to all employees. Purchases of common stock under this plan are
made from accumulated employee contributions at the end of designated six- momh purchase pcnods Currently,
this plan allows participants to buy our stock at a 15% discount to the market price on the designated purchase date,
with the objective of allowing employees to profit when the value of our stock increases over time.

Chief Executive Officer Compensation

Mr. Baker has been serving as our president and chief executive officer since 2002, For fiscal 2006, Mr.
Baker’s base salary was set at $525,000 in the employment agreement he entered into in March 2006. Pursuant to
the annual review of his base salary provided for under his employment agreement, Mr. Baker’s base salary for
fiscal 2007 was set at $650,000 in March 2007. Mr. Baker’s base salary was subsequently adjusted to 30 with the
amendment of his employment agreement in July 2007, but he earned $767,995 in monthly cash incentive payments
pursuant to the initial margin program in place the latter portion of the fiscal year. Mr. Baker’s annual salary for
2008 has been set at $650,000 and, pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement, he has the potential to earn a
bonus of up to 200% of his base salary for fiscal 2008. We believe Mr. Baker’s actual and potential cash
compensation continue to be compctmve based on market data, his experience and his performance.

Other Agreements and Policies
Employment and Severance Agreements

We have entered into employment agreeménts with our executive officers as described below under
“Employment Agreements.” These employment agreements provide for certain benefits upon a termination of
employment without cause or a change in control as described below under “Potential Payments Upon Termination
or Change-in-Control.” Qur policy regarding employment agreements and severance protection for the named
executives is based on the importance we place on recruitment and retention of senior executives in a competitive
environment.

Share Ownership Guidelines for Directors and Officers

Our board of directors has adopted stock ownership guidelines that establish an expectation regarding
ownership of company stock by the named executives, other executive officers and members of the board of
directors. The guidelines are consistent with our core philosophy that executives and directors should have a long-
_ term ownership interest in our company. For executive officers, the ownership expectation is based on a percentage
of the executive’s base salary and for directors the ownership expectation is based on a multiple of the annual cash
retainer paid to the director. Ownership levels are expected to be attained within five years. Shares that executives
or directors have a right to acquire through the exercise of stock options are not included in the calculation of stock
ownership for guideline purposes until such time as the options are exercised and the shares are acquired. Until the




guideline is achieved, an executive officer or director is expected to retain at least fifty-percent of the net shares
obtained by him or her through the exercise of stock options or other equity incentive plans.

Equity Award Approval Policy '

Qur board of directors has adopted a written policy regarding the approval of equity awards under our
stock incentive plans. The policy sets forth guidelines and procedures with respect to the timing of grants, required
approvals and documentation. Pursuant to the policy, all option grants must have an exercise price at least equal to
the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant as determined under the terms of the applicable plan.
In addition, all annual option grants to executive officers are generally approved during the same fiscal quarter each
year at a regularly scheduled meeting of the compensation committee. Grants to newly hired or promoted executive
officers may be made at other times at either a meeting of the compensation commitiee or by writien action.

Tax Deductibility of Compensation

Section 162(m} of the Internal Revenue Code imposes a $1 million limit on the amount that a public
company may deduct for compensation paid to the company’s chief executive officer or its other four most highly
paid executive officers. This limitation does not apply to compensation that meets the requirements under Section
162(m) for “qualifying performance-based” compensation (i.e., compensation paid only if the individual’s
performance meets pre-established objective goals based on performance criteria approved by sharcholders). The
stock options granted to executive officers in fiscal 2007 qualify as performance-based compensation for these
purposes.  We believe, however, that the cash incentive payments made under our fiscal 2007 executive incentive
program do not qualify as performance-based compensation for Section 162(m) purposes, and that the excess of
combined salary and cash incentive amounts above $1 million paid to any of the covered exccutive officers would
not have been deductible by our company under current federal income tax laws, We believe there may be
circumstances in which our interests are best served by maintaining flexibility in the way compensation is provided,
whether or not compensation is fully deductible under Section 162(m), We also believe that the amount of any loss
of a tax deduction under Section l62(m) will be insignificant to our company’s overall tax posmon

Compcnsatlon Committee Report

The compensation committee of our board of directors has discussed and reviewed the Compensat:on
Discussion and Analysis with management. Based upon this review and discussion, the compensation committee
recommended to the board of directors that the Compensatlon Discussion and Analysis be included in thls proxy
statement. ' ' '

THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

RICHARD C. DELL {Chair)
MARSHALL L. DAy
KAREN M, BOHN

DAvID C. PRATT
GERALD A. ERICKSON
RONALD A. ERICKSON




Summary Compensation Table

The following table shows, for our chief executive officer, chief financial officer and each of the three
other most highly compensated executive officers of our company, who are referred to as the named executives,
information conceming compensation earned for services in all capacities during fiscal 2007 and 2006.

‘Non-Equity v

Onption All Other
Salary Awards Incentive Plan Compensation, . : .
Name and Principal Position Year ($) $)(H Compensation ($) ($)(2) Total ($)

Mark R. Baker......oocvvvevrvemcvrennee. 2007 196,154 186,123 767,995 112,771 1,263,043
Presiden, Chief Exccutive 2006 525000 96,256 - 51,439 672,695
Officer and Director

Robert J. Vold ..., 2007 181,974 " 43,367 127,063 8,401 360,805
Senior Vice President, - . .

Chief Financial Officer 2(.)06 213,846 20,175 ., . ! 279 234,300
and Treasurer (3} : . . -

Mark A. Bussard ...l ¢ 2007 172,800 60,578 122,268 o 17,260 + 372,906
Senior Vice President, 2006 228077 33741 - 9,278 271,096
Retail Sales

Eric R. Jacobsen ..coc.vcuvevcencasnisiinien 2007 189,725 70,529 135,214 10,057 405;525
Sentor Vice President, X
General Counsel and Secretary 2006 263,442 48,128 - 9,125 320,695

Richard J. Vazquez.........cococemurecnes 2007 243,749 162,459 172,614 - 44,020 622,842
Executive Vice President, 2006 342,923 48,128 . 392,392

Merchandising and Marketing

1,341

(1) Values éxpressed represenf the actual compensation cost recognized by our company during fiscal 2007 and
2006 for equity awards granted in 2007 and 2006 and prior years as determined pursuant to FAS 123R and
utilizing the assumptions discussed in Note 9 to our company’s financial statements for fiscal 2007 and 2006,

but disregarding the estimate of forfeitures related to service-based vesting. .

(2)  The following table sets forth all other compensation amounts by type:

Use of
Company Matching 401(k)

. Aircraft Plan Contributions Life Ensurance Total
Name Year (3) (a) (3) (b) Premiums (8} {(c) ($)
Mark R. 2007 98,598 13,899 274 N 112,771

Baker " 2006 42,360 8800 = 279 o s1439
Rabert J. 2007 -, 8,127 ; .., 274 8,401
"Vold 2006 -- - 279 279
Mark A. 2007 7,294 9,697 274 17,260
Bussard 2006 - 8,999 279 9,278
. '
ErcR. ' 2007 -- 9,783 274 10,057
Jacobsen 2006 .- \ 8,846 279 9,125
Richard J. 2007 33,766. 9,980 274 . v 44,020
Vazquez 2006 . - , L,oe2 279

s

1,341

[

‘(a)  Reflects the incremental cost to us of personal*tise of our company’s aircraft, We- calculate this
incremental cost based solely on the cost per hour to our company to operate the aircraft, and it does
not include fixed costs that do not change based on usage, such as depreciation, fixed salaries of the
‘pilots, insurance and hangar rental costs. Our direct per hour operating cost of our corporate aircraft is
based on the annual cost of fuel, aircraft maintenance, landing fees, trip-related hangar and parking

year,

(b)  Consists of matching contributions under our 401(k) plan.

17

costs, and similar variable costs, divided by the number of hours the aircraft was operated during the



executives during fiscal 2007.

(c)  Consists of the dollar value of life insurance premiums that we have paid for the benefit of the: named
executives.

N
t - \ . f

Grants of Plan-Based Awards in Fiscal 2007

The following table sets forth certain information concerningplan-based awards gi’anted to the named
1

AII Other

Option
Awards:
Estimated Future Payouts Under Number of
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Securities Exercise or Base Grant Date Fair
Awards (1) Underlying Price of Option Value of Stock and
Grant .Threshold Target Maximum Options Awards Option Awards
Name Date (%) (3) (3) #H Q) . (3/Sh) ) 3
Mark R. 6/8/2007 N/A N/A N/A
Baker /1312007 90,000 12.46 556,227
Robert J. 6/8/2007 N/A N/A N/A : : .
Vold 6/13/2007 25,000 12.46 154,508
Mark A. 6/82007 N/A  N/A NA : i
. Bussard  6/13/2007 . © 20,000 12.46 123,606
EricR. 6/82007  N/A N/A N/A
Jacobsen  6/13/2007 20,000 ,12.46, 123,606
Richard J. 6/8/2007 NIA N/A . N/A ‘
Vazquez  §/13/2007 o 20,000. 12.46 123,606
(1)  Reflects possible payouts under awards made to our executive officers on June 8, 2007 under our fiscal 2007

€2)

executive incentive program, described in Compensation Discussion and Analysis above. Because of the
nature of the plan, there are no threshold, target or maximum amounts.

All of the Option Awards in the table above were granted under our 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan. Under the
terms of the stock option agreement pertaining to each of these awards, these options vest as to one-fourth of
the shares on each of the first, second, third and fourth anniversary dates of the grant date if the officer is
employed by us on the applicable date. The options generally expire 10 years after the grant date. Vesting of
shares accelerates in connection with terminations without cause and any change in control on the terms
déscribed below under “Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control.” Vested options must
be exercised within one year after the death of an officer or his or her termination as a result of disability, or
within three months after an officer’s termination that is without cause, other than the circumstances
described . below under “Potential Payments Upon Termination .or Change-in-Control.”” If an, officer’s

. employment is terminated for géusg, the officer’s right to exercise any unexercised options will terminate

immediately. . -

4

The impact of a termination of émployment or change in control of our company on Option Awards to our
named extecutives is quantifiéd in the “Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control” section

below. - ©
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Employment Agreements .

Chief Executive Off cer A - ' ‘ '

On March 1, 2006, wé entered into an empioyment agreement wnth Mr. Baker that had an initial’ term ‘of
two years and renews automatically for successive one-year periods unless 90 days’ prior writien notice is given by
either party. Pursuant to the terms of the employment agreement, Mr. Baker receives, among other things, (1) an
initial annual base salary of $525,000, subject to annual increases as may be.determined by the compensation
committee, (2) an annual performance bonus of up to 200% of his then-current base salary and (3) an opportunity to
receive stock options or other equity-based' awards. .Mr. Baker!s annual performance bonus.is based .upon
achievement of defined goals mutually agreed upon by Mr. Baker and olr compensation committee. In addition,
Mr. Baker may use corporate aircraft for his personal use for up to 50 hours per fiscal year, subject to our charges,
policies and practices as in effect from time to time regarding use of this airplane. Mr. Baker's employment
agreement also provides for benefits uponra termination of employment or change in control as described below
under “Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control.” .

fy . . . R . '

Our compensation committee initially set Mr. Baker’s annual base salary for fiscal 2007 at 5650 000.-.On
July 9, 2007, Mr. Baker’s employment agreement was amended to, among other things, (1) memorialize the terms of
the cash incentive program that was adopted by the compensation committee in June 2007 and was based on our
monthly initial margin, (2) lower Mr. Baker’s annual base salary to $0 in light of the new incentive program and (3)
reduce the severance amounts payable under the agreement. This amendment to the employment agreement was
terminated effective February 3, 2008, along with the incentive program. Mr. Baker’s current employment
agreement is in the form of the agreement entered into on March 1, 2006, and the'compensation committee has sét
his annual base salary for fiscal 2008 at $650,000.

Executive Vice President

On March 1, 2006, we entered into an employment agreement with our executive vice president, Mr.
Vazquez, that had an initial term of two years and renews automatically for successive one-year periods unless 90
days’ prior writlen notice is given by either party. Pursuant to the terms of the employment agreement, Mr. Vazquez
receives, among other things, (1) an initial annual base salary of $345,000, subject to annual increases as may be
determined by the compensation committee, (2) an annual performance bonus of up to 100% of his then-current
base salary and (3} an opportunity to receive stock options or other equity-based awards. Mr. Vazquez’s annual
performance bonuses are based upon achievement of defined goals mutually agreed upon by Mr. Vazquez and our
compensation commitiee. Mr. Vazquez’s employment agreement also provides for benefits upon a termination of
employment or change in control as described below under “Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-m-
Control.” *

Our compensalion committee initially set Mr. Vazquez's annual base salary for fiscal 2007 at $360,000.
On July 9, 2007, Mr. Vazquez’s employment agreement was amended to, among other things, (1) memorialize the
terms of the cash incentive program that was adopted by the compensation committee in June 2007 and was based
on our monthly initial margin, (2) lower Mr. Vazquez’s annual base salary to $187,498 in light of the new incentive
program and. (3) reduce the severance amounts payable under the agreement. This amendment to the employment .
agreement was terminated effective February 3, 2008, along with the incentive program. Mr. Vazquez's current
employment agreement is in the form of the agreement entered into on March 1, 2006, and the compensation
committee has set his annual base salary for fiscal 2008 at $360,000.

Senior Vice Presidents

We have entered into employment agreements with our senior vice presidents, including Messrs. Vold,
Bussard and Jacobsen, effective on March 1, 2006, or, for individuals subsequently appointed to this office, upen
such appointment. Generally, each of these agreements continues for two years following the effective date of the
agreement, subject to automatic renewal for successive one-year periods unless 90 days’ prior written notice is given
by either party. Mr. Vold’s agreement was entered into on January 24, 2007 and had an initial term ending on
March 1, 2008, after which it automatically renewed. Pursuant to the terms of the employment agreements, Messrs.
Vold, Bussard and Jacobsen receive, among other things, (1} an initia! annual base salary of $265,000 for Mr. Vold,
$245,000 for Mr. Bussard and $250,000 for Mr, Jacobsen, subject to "annual increases as may be determined by the
compensation committee, (2) an annual performance bonus of.up to 100% of their then-current base salaries and
(3) an opportunity to receive stock options or other equity-based awards. The annual. performance bonuses are
based upon achievement of defined goals mutually agreed upon by each executive and our compensation committee.
Our senior vice presidents’ employment agreements .also provide for-benefits upon a.termination or change in
control as described below under “Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control.”
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Ourt compensation committee initially set the annual base salaries for fiscal 2007 at $265,000 for Mr. Vold,
$255,000 for Mr. Bussard and $282,000 for Mr. Jacobsen. On July 9, 2007, the senior vice presidents’ employment
agreements were amended to, among other things, (1) memorialize the terms of the cash incentive program that was
adopted by the compensation committee in June 2007 and was based on our monthly initial margin, (2).lower the |
annual base salary of Mr. Vold to §138,019, of Mr. Bussard to $132,811 and of Mr. Jacobsen to $146,873 in light of
the new incentive program and (3) reduce the severance amounts payable under the agreements. These amendments
to the employment agreements were terminated effective February 3, 2008, along with the incentive program. The
senior vice presidents’ current employment agreements are in the form of the agreements entered into on March 1,
2006, and the compensation committee has set the annual base salary for fiscal 2008 at $265,000 for Mr. Vold,
$275,000 for Mr. Bussard and $325,000 for Mr Jacobsen. . -

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal 2007 Year-End

The following table sets forth certain information concemning equity awards outstanding‘to the named
executives at the end of fiscal 2007. .

'

" Option Awardé

Number of Securities ) .
Underl)mg Unexercised . Number of Securities Underlying Option

" Options Unexercised Options Exercise " Option
. # #H Price ' Expiration

*Name . ) Exercisable , Unexercisable . (5/5h) Date )
Mark R, Baker 576,680 - - 8.28 2/29/2012 D
£00,000 - 16.00 4/20/2014 @
50,000 - 11.16 3/1472015 @
313 66,667 . 6.44 3/1/2016 ¥
- _ ..90,000 12.38 6/12/2017 9

" Robert J. Vold ©13333 e " 6,667 - 500 10/30/2015 '~
. Co 10,000 - : - 5.00 10/30/2015 ©
SN o 3,333 : 1,667 5.69 11/30/2015 ¥
‘ R 25,000 1238 . 6/12/2017 %
Mark A. Bussard 5,840 ' - 447 2/29/2012 %
6,960 - 447 11/372012©
. 12,500 - - 16.00 412012014 @
. 3,000 -- . 2145 8/26/2014 @
10,000 - 11.16 3/1412015 @
3,367 3,333 _ '5.69 1173072015 &
: 8,333 16,667 - 2.18 127112016 @
. .- L 20,000 12.38 671212017 %
. 50,000 -- 10.33 .522015 %
Ene R. Jacobsen 16,667 33,333 6.44 31201619
- 20,000 12.38 612120179
B Vo, ) 75,000 : - 907 83172015 @
Richard J. Vazquez 16667 4 . 33,333 . 644 :3/112016 9

. . . S 20,000 12.38 6/12/2017%

(1) Option granted to Mr.'Ba'kcr outside of our eqq{_ty-based plans. This option vested in equal increments on
_ September 1, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006.

* (2) Option granted under our 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.' This option originally vested as to one:third of the

' shares on each of the first, second and third anniversary dates of the date of grant so long as the officer is

*  ‘employed by us on the'applicable date. On November 30,2005, the compensation committee of our board

- of directors accelerated the 'vesting for certain outstanding options to purchase common stock that had
exercise prices greater than $5.69, the closing price of our common stock on November 29, 2005,
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(3) Option granted under our 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan. This option vests as 1o ene-third of the shares on each
- of the first, second and third anniversary dates of the dale of grant if the officer is employed by us on the
applicable date.

(4) Option granted under our 2004 Omnibus Stock Plani. This option vests as to one-quaﬁer of the shares on
each of the first, second, third and fourth anniversary dates of the date of grant if the ofﬁcer is employed by
us on the applicable date.

(5) Option granted under our 2004 Omnibus Stock P]an This optlon vested on October 31, 2006 one year
after it was granted.

-

(6) Option granted under our 2002 Stock Option Plan. Thls option is exercisable only if the appraised value
per share (as defined in the option agreement) of our common stock is at least $32.0625 per share as of the
end of a fiscal year.

(7) Option granted under our 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan. ThlS optlon on;;,mally vested as to 25,000 shares on
January 28, 2006 and the remaining 50,000 shares were’ 'to vest as to one-third of the shares on each of the
first, second and third anniversaries of the date of grant. On November 30, 2005, the compensation
committee of our board of directors accelerated the vesting for certain oumandmg options t¢ purchase
common stock that had exercise prices greater than $5.69, the C]O‘;Il‘lj, price of our common stock on
November 29, 2005

Option Exercises and Stock Vested in Fiscal 2007
. The following table sets forth certain mformanon concemmg opuon cxermscs by our named executwes
during fiscal 2007:

Option Awards

Number of Shares Acquired Value Realized
on Exercise’ on Exercise
Name (€] ) ($) (1
Mark R. Baker - : 33,000 l ) 215,490
Mark A. Bussard 3,300 22,602

(1) Represents'lhe difference betweén the,mar_kef value of the shares acqoircd upon exercise, using the closing
sale price reported on NASDAQ on the exercise date, and the aggregate exercise price of the shares acquired.

There were no other stock options exercised by named executives during fiscal 2007. The named
executives have not been granted any awards of restricted stock, restricted stock units or similar instruments.

-
] 1 [

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control

Pursuant to the terms of our employment agreements with the named executives, in the event we terminate
their employment without cause, or if their employment terminates for any reason within 12 months following a
change in control, and if they sign a release of all claims against us, they will (1) receive severance payments from
us in an amount equal to the sum of (a) a multiple of their then-current annual base salary, (b} a multiple of the
performance bonus eamed by them during their last full fiscal year of employment with us and (c) in the case of Mr.
Baker only, an additional $150,000, and (2) have the ability to exercise all vested equity-based awards granted on or
after the date of their employment agreement until they receive their last severance payment from us. The multiples
used to calculate the foregoing amounts are two times for Mr. Baker, 1.5 times for Mr. Vazquez and one times for
Messrs. Vold, Bussard and Jacobsen. All equity-based awards wehave previously granted to a named executive
will be fully accelerated upon a change in controi and all equity-based awards we have previously granted to these
individuals that would otherwise vest in a specified period following their termination without cause will be fully
accelerated on their respective, termination dates. This specified. period is two years in the case of Mr. Baker,
eighteen months in the case of Mr. Vazquez and one year in the case of Messrs. Vold, Bussard and facobsen.
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N A “change of control” may include (a) any person’s acquisition of beneficial ownership of 30% or more of

our outstanding common stock, (b) a failure to have a majority of our board of directors be people for whose
clection our board solicited proxies or (c) any merger or other reorganization of our company that results in a
majority of the voting power of the surviving entity being beneficially owned by people who were not beneficial
owners of our shares immediately prior (o the merger or reorganization. Of the payments described in the paragraph
above, a specified percentage of the payments based on the named executive’s annual base salary and performance
bonus, plus the $150,000 payment to be made to Mr. Baker, will be paid to the named executive in a lump sum on
the first day of the seventh month after their termination date. The specified percentage is 25% in the case of Mr.
Baker, 33% in the case of Mr. Vazquez and 50% in the case of Messrs. Vold, Bussard and Jacobsen. The remaining
payments due to the named executives upon termination without cause or a change in control will paid in equal
installments over an 18-month period in the case of Mr. Baker, a 12-month period in the case of Mr. Vazquez and a
§ix-month period in the case of Messrs. Vold, Bussard and Jacobsen.

If a named executive resigns or is terminated for cause, he or she will receive his or her then-current base
salary' through the termination date plus any annual incentive bonus earned but not yet paid for the most recently
completed fiscal year. The annual incentive bonus for the most recently completed fiscal year will be paid in the
same manner and at the same time as if the named executive’s employment with us had not terminated. The reasons
for which a named executive may be terminated for “cause” include: (a) violation of certain laws, (b) a material and
deliberate failure to perform his or her duties to our company or (c) a breach of his or her employment agreement
with us. If a named executive is terminated for cause, his or her right to exercise any unexercised stock options will
terminate,

In the event of termination of employment due to a named executive’s death or disability, he or she will
receive a prorated performance bonus for the year in which death or disability occurs.

Each named executive has agreed not to compete with us during the term of his or her employment and for
a period following termination of employment. This period is twenty-four months in the case of Mr. Baker, eighteen
months in the case of Mr. Vazquez and twelve months in the case of Messrs. Vold, Bussard and Jacobsen.

Under the amendments to the named executives’ emplbyment agreements, which were in effect from July
9, 2007 to February 3, 2008, cash payments made upon termination of employment were not calculated as a multiple
of each officer’s base salary but were instead set amounts, reflected in the tables below. In each case, the amount
payable in connection with a termination of employment occurring within twelve months following a change in
control of our company was $250,000 higher than the amount payable in connection with a termination of
employment without cause. No change was made to the provisions for accelerated vesting of equity-based awards.

Potential Payments

In the event a named executive’s employment was terminated on February 1, 2008, and such termination
occurred within twelve months following a change in control of our company, the named executive would have
realized the benefits and payments set forth below, in accordance with his employment agreement in effect at that
time:

Vesting of Previously

Other Payments Unvested Stock Options Total
Name (%) ®am (%)
Mark R. Baker 1,700,000 - : 1,700,000
Robert J. Vold., 515,000 200 ‘ 515,200
Mark A. Bussard 505,000 - 505,000
Eric R. Jacobsen 532,000 -- 53?,000
Richard J. Vazquez 790,000 S . 790,000

(1) Calculated based on the number of accelerated stock options multiplied by the difference between the
exercise price and the closing price of our common stock on February 1, 2008.

In'the event we had terminated a named executive’s employment without cause on February 1, 2008, the
named executive would have realized the bt:neﬁts and payments set forth below, in accordance with his employment
agreement in effect at that time:
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Other Payments

Vesting of Previously

Unvested Stock Options Total
Name % (3 (%)
Mark R. Baker 1,450,000 - 1,450,000
Robert J: Vold 265,000 200 265,200
. Mark A. Bussard 255,000 - 255,000
Eric R. Jacobsen 282,000 - 282,000
Richard J. Vazquez 540,000 - 540,000 .

(1) Calculated based on the number of accelerated stock options multiplied by the difference between the
exercise price and the closing price of our common stock on February 1, 2008.

In the event any named executive’s employment had terminated on February 1, 2008 due to death or
disability, the named executive would not have realized any benefits or payments as a result of such event.

¥

Director Compensation for Fiscal 2007

The following table shows information concerning compensation provided to each of our non‘employee
director for services provided during fiscal 2007." _ ‘ ' ' :

Fees Earned or

Paid in Casl} Stock Awards Option Awards Tatal
Name (5 &2 3} ®»HRG) 6]
Karen M. Bohn ‘ 37,750 11,666 11,434 60,850
Marshall L. Day 42,000 11,666 11,434 65,100
Richard C, Deli’ 33,750 11,666 11,434 56,850
Gerald A. Erickson 27,000 11,666 11,434 50,100
Ronald A. Erickson . 27,000 11,666 11,434 50,100
David C, Pratt 28,722 11,666 11,434 51,822

{1) Valuation for restricted stock awards and stock option awards is based on the compensation cost we
recognized during fiscal 2007 for financial statement purposes under FAS 123R for awards granted in
fiscal 2007 and prior years utilizing assumptions discussed in Note 9 to our financial statements for fiscal

2007, but disregarding the estimate of forfeitures related to service-based vesting.

(2) The following table shows the aggregate number of shares underlying outstanding restricted stock and
stock options held by our non-employee directors as of the end of fiscal 2007.

Shares
Undertying Shares
Outstanding Underlying
Restricted Outstanding Stock .
Stock Stock Option Options Stock Options
Awards "Awards Exercisable Unexercisable
Name # # (# it
Karen M. Bohn 1,605 30,000 30,000 -
Marshall L. Day 1,605 30,000 30,000 --
Richard C. Dell 1,605 30,000 30,000 -
Gerald A. Erickson 1,605 10,600 10,000 -
Ronald A. Erickson . 1,605 10,000 10,000 -
David C. Pratt 1,605 20,000 20,000 -
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(3) The following table shows the grant date fair value of all restricted stock awards made to our non-
employee directors in fiscal 2007. No new grants of stock options were made to our non-employee
directors in fiscal 2007,

Grant Date Fair
Value of
Restricted Stock
Awards in Fiscal

2007
Name (S)
Karen M. Bohn 19,998
Marshall L. Day 19,998
Richard C. Dell - 19,998 .
Gerald A. Erickson . 19,998
Ronald A. Erickson 19,958
David C. Pratt 19,998

In connection with their service on our board of directors, for fiscal 2007 each of our non-employee
directors received a $20,000 annual retainer and an additional $1,000 for cach meeting of the board of directors
attended and $500 for each commitiee meeting attended other than audit committee meetings. Our lead independent
director received an additional $5,000 annual retainer. The audit committee chair received $1,000 per audit
committee meeting attended and each audit committee member received $750 for each audit committee meeting
attended. There is no separate fee paid for meetings of the stock-based awards committee. For fiscal 2008, we
currently anticipate that these fees will remain the same. All directors are reimbursed for their reasonable out-of-
pocket expenses incurred in attending meetings of the board of directors and committees.

In addition, each of our non-employee directors received a grant of restricted stock upon his or her re-
election to our board of dircetors in June 2007, The non-employee directors each received that.number of shares of
our common stock as was equal to $20,000 divided by the closing price of our common stock on the NASDAQ
Global Market on the date of grant, rounded down to the nearest whole share. The restricted stock will vest if the
director continues to serve on our board of directors one year following the date of grant.
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'CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

Our company was a participant in the transactions with related persons described below during fiscal 2007.
All such transactions entered into since the date of adoption of our related person transaction approval policy
described below were approved by the audit committee in accordance with such policy.

El

Transactions with the Et"icks'on Family and !ts Afﬁliates' . )
As of April 21, 2008, ; . .

e Holiday Stationstores, Inc., beneficially owned approximately 29% of our outstanding common stock
and .

e to our knowledge, members of the Erickson family, the sole shareholders of Holiday Companies (the
parent .company of Holiday Stationstores, Inc.) beneficially owned approximately 32% of our
outstanding common stock, including the shares owned by Holiday Stationstores, Inc. Members of the
Erickson family hold these interests both individually and through trusts primarily for the benefit of
Erickson family members and their spouses.

Guarantees by Holiday Companies and Holiday Stationstores, Inc.

Holiday Companies and Holiday Stationstores, Inc. provide us with certain guarantees, though we do not
pay them a fee for any of these guarantees. Holiday Companies and Holiday Stationstores, Inc. guarantee our leases
with third parties for 12 of our stores and our distribution center. The approximate aggregate amount of all
payments due on or after the beginning of fiscal 2007 for these leases was $28,127,000.

Terms of Real Estate Agreements with Holid&y Companies

i We lease space from Lyndale Terminal Co., an affiliate of Holiday Companies, for our store located in
Bemidji, Minnesota. The lease continues through April 7, 2013, with options to extend the lease for an additional
15 years. The approximate aggregate amount of all payments due on or after the beginning of fiscal 2007 for this
lease was $1,416,000, based on annual net rent of $210,000 through January 31, 2008, annual net rent of $231,000
beginning on February 1, 2009 and our payment of common area maintenance charges. If we cease operating at the
store for a period in excess of six months, Holiday Stationstores, Inc. may terminate this lease.

We believe the terms of all the agreements described above with the Erickson family and it affiliates are no
less favorable to us than terms that we could have obtained from unaffiliated third parties.

Sublease of Airplane Hangar

During fiscal 2007, we subleased hangar space for our corporate airplane from Anoka Airport Holdings,
LLC, a company that was one-third owned by Mark R. Baker, our president, chief executive officer and director,
until March 2007, when all of the outstanding equity of Anoka Airport Holdings, LLC was purchased by Holiday
Stationstores, Inc. We continued to sublease the hangar space for our corporate airplane at a monthly rent of $2,900,
which was effective through February 2008. Our total rental payments in fiscal 2007, including fuel surcharges, was
$34,200. We believe that the terms of the foregoing arrangements were no less favorable to our company than
would be the terms of comparable arrangements conducted at arms-length between unrelated parties.

Transactions with David C. Pratt and His Affiliates
Reimbursement of Rex Realty Aircraft Expenses

During fiscal 2007, we reimbursed Rex Realty a total of approximately $175,656 for aircraft, fuel and
other expenses related to our use of Rex Realty’s corporate aircraft. David C. Pratt, the current chairman of our
board, is the president and owner of Rex Realty.

Three Forks Ranch Arranger;rents

We have entered into business arrangements with Three Forks Ranch, which is owned by Mr. Prat,
pursuant to which we are using the Three Forks Ranch brand on certain premium products seld in our stores and
Three Forks Ranch is assisting us in promoting these products. Our sales of Three Forks Ranch merchandise totaled
$483,000 in fiscal 2007, and we recorded royalty expense of $28,981 for that period.

Jeffrey Prait Employment

Mr. Pratt’s son, Jeffrey Pratt, is employed by us as an airplane pilot at a compensation level determined by
reference to market rates. : :
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" Transactions with David C. Pratt, the Erickson Family and Their Affiliates

Stock Purchase : T

On December 6, 2007, we entered into stock purchase agreements with' Gratco, LLC and with Hollday
Stationstores, Inc. Mr. Pratt is the sole manager of Gratco. Pursuant to the stock purchase agreements, we sold an
aggregate of 4,067,797 shares of common stock for a per share purchase price of §5.90, which was in excess of the
closing market value per share of our common stock on the date of the stock purchase "agreements. Gratco
purchased 3,065,000 shares for a purchase price of $18,083,500, and Holiday purchased 1,002,797 shares for a
purchase price of $5,916,502. The net proceeds were used to partially fund the acquisition of Overton’s.

Term Loan Guarantees

, Mr. Pratt and Holiday Stationstores, Inc. provided guaranties to Bank of America of a $40 million term
loan we obtained to partially fund the acquisition of Overton’s. Mr. Prait is guaranteeing up to $40 miliion of our
obligations under the term loan, and Holiday is separately guaranteeing up to $9.9 million of our obligations under
the term loan. Neither Mr. Pratt nor Holiday received any consideration in exchange for their gnaranties.

Registration Rights

In connection with our initial public offering, we entered into a registration rights agreement with Holiday
Stationstores, Inc.,. Lyndale Terminal Co. and certain individual members of the Erickson family under which we
have granted certain rights to these entities and individuals., Pursuant to the registration rights agreement, each of
these entities and individuals has the right to demand that we file a registration statement covering the offer and sale
of their shares of our common stock, subject to aggregate offering price and total share requirements. In addition,
shareholders with registration rights may require us to include their shares in future registration statements we file,
subject to cutback at the option of the underwriters of any such offering. These registration rights will terminate
with respect to a particular shareholder’s securities as soon as the securities (1) have been transferred pursuant to an
effective registration statement or under Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 1933, (2) can be freely sold under
Rule 144(k) under the Securities Act of 1933, or (3) have been transferred and can be resold by the transferce
without registration under the Securities Act of 1933. ‘

in connection with a December 2006 stock purchase by Graico, LLC and the December 2007 stock
purchase by Gratco, LL.C and Holiday Stationstores, inc., we granted registration rights to these entities pursuant to
which we agreed to, and subsequently did, register the common stock purchased by each of them in these
transactions. These registration rights require us to keep the applicable registration statement effective with respect
to each holder until either (1) the securities have been sold and no further securities subject to these registration
rights may be issued in the fiture, or (2) the date on which all the securities may be immediately sold without
registration and without restriction as to the number of securities to be sold.

Revi iew, Approval or Ratification of Related Person Transactions

In January 2007, our board of directors adopted a written ‘related person transaction approval policy, which
sets forth our company’s policies and procedures for the review, approval or ratification of any transaction required
to be reported in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. This policy applies to any financial
transaction, arrangement or relationship (including any indebtedness or guarantee of indebtedness) or any series of
similar transactions, arrangements or relationships in which we are a participant and in which a related person has a
direct or indirect interest where such person’s interest in the transaction(s) involves at least 310,000 in value. In
order for the transaction, arrangement or relationship to be subject to this policy, there must a financial aspect to the
transaction, which may, for example, involve payments between us and the related person or otherwise providing
value to one of the parties.

“Related persons” include:
« all directors and executive officers of our company:
* any nominee for director;

* any 1mmed1ate family member of a director, nominee for dlreclor or executive officer of our company;
and '

+ any holder of more than five percent (5%) of our common smck or an immediate family member of such
holder.
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“Immediate family members” inclide children, stepchildren; p'arems stepparents, spouses, siblings,
mothers and fathers-in-law, sons and, daughters-in-law, brothers and srsters -in- law and any other person sharing a
household (other than a tenant or employee) ‘

B i \ . oy )
An ‘indirect” interest of a related person in a transaction includes a relaled person serving as a general
partner, manager, officer or.employee of, or being a significant: mvestor or-equity holder in,.an ennty that is-a party

to a transaction with our company. T C cr
The following transactions are exempt from our policy:

» payment of compensation by us to a related person for'thé related person’s service to our company in the
capacity or capacities that give rise to the person’s status as a “related person”;

-+ transactions available to all employees or all shareholders of our company on the same terms -

» transactions, which when aggregated with the amount of ‘all other transactions between the related
person and our company, involve less than $120,000 in a fiscal year; and - v

* transactions approved by a majority of those dlrectors qualifying as “independent directors” under the
listing standards of the NASDAQ Stock Market acting separately.

The audit committee of our board of directors must pre-approve any binding commitment with respect to a
related person transaction subject to this policy. The related person transaction should be presented to.the audit
committee by one of our executive officers requesting that the audit committee consider the related person
transaction. Our chief financial officer will furnish to the audit committee at each regularly scheduled quarterly
meeting a list of continuing related person transaction(s) and any being proposed for pre-approval at the current
meeting,

The audit committee will analyze the following factors, in addition to any other factors it deems
appropriate, in determining whether to approve a related person transaction:

*  whether the terms are fair to our company;

+  whether the transaction is material to us;

» the role the related person has played in arranging the related person transaction;
»  the structure of the related person transaction; and

+  the interests of all related persons in the related person transaction,

A related person transaction will only be approved by the audit committee if the committee determines that
the related person transaction is beneficial to our company and the terms of the related person transaction are fair to
us.

The audit committec may, in its sole discretion, approve or deny any related person transaction.” Approval
of a related person transaction may be conditioned upon us and the related person taking any or all of the following
additional actions, or any other actions that the audit commitiee deems appropriate;

+  requiring the related person to resign from, or change position within, an entity that is involved in the
related person transaction with us;

= assuring that the related person will not be directly involved in negotiating the terms of the related
person ftransaction or in the ongoing relationship between our company and the other persons or
entities involved in the related person transaction;

»  limiting the duration or magnitude of the related person transaction;

* requiring that information about the related person transaction be documented and that reports
reflecting the nature and amount of the related person transaction be delivered to the audit committee
on a regular basis;

*  requiring that we have the right to terminate the related person transaction by giving a specified period
of advance notice; or

* appeinting a representative of our company lo monitor various aspects of the related person
transaction.
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SECTION 16{a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP.REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the regulations promulgated thereunder requ1re
direciors and certain officers and persons who own more than ten percent of our common stock to file reports of
their ownership of our common stock and changes in their ownership with the Securittes and Exchange
Commission. To our knowledge, all reports required to be filed under Section 16(a) of the Securities and Exchange,

Act of 1934 were filed on a timely basis during fiscal 2007.

iy . ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

As of the date of this proxy statemer'lt-, we know of no matters that will be presented for determination at
the meeting other than those referred to herein. If any other matters properly come.before the meeting calling for a
vote of shareholders, it is intended that the persons named in the proxies solicited by our board of directors, in

accordance with their best judgment, will vote the shares represented by these proxies.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

- Eric R. Jacobsen
Secretary

May 13, 2008 | R
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Dear Fellow Sharcholders:

2007 was a year of contradiétioris. ‘While' our opérating fjésults' were disappointing due to an
economy that affected all retailers, Gander Mountain did accomplish an important acquisition that
restores this company to a multi- channel retail strategy and promises improved growth and
performance in the future.

In December, we acqu1red Overton snc., a leadmg internet and catalog marketer of specialty
water sports, related marine accessories, marine electronics, apparel and footwear. Overton’s
offers a strong, trusted brand name, a popular internet-store for marine enthusiasts and distributes
over 15 million catalogs annually. Headquartered in Greenville, N.C., Overton’s operations .
include a fulfillment center and call center offering avallable capacity to support new Gander
Mountain internét and catalog marketing opportumtles

This acquisition enables Gander Mountain to. greatly accelerale our strategy to be an mtegrated
multi-channel retailer featuring internet, catalogs and retail stores. Overton’s provides an’
excellent management team, a proven platform and infrastructure, a natural seasonal complement
with the majority of its sales in the first half of the year, and the capacity 10 handle substantial
additional volume with minimal incremental investment.

Overton’s will continue to operate under the “Overton’s®” brand and as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Gander Mountain. Between Gander Mountain and Overton’s capabilities and
resources, we will be able to feature a full assortment of internet and catalog offerings in the
coming seasons

Tuming to 2007, let me begin with a frank assessment of Gander Mountain’s results. Aftera
solid first half, the economic and business trends that emerged in the second half produced results
for the year that disappointed all of us at Gander Mountam

For the fiscal year, the company reported sales of $969.4 mlllion, an increase of 6.4 percent over
the prior year. Comparable store sales declined 5.4 percent. The company reported a net loss for
the 52-week period of $31.8 million compared with a net loss of $13.2 million for the prior fiscal
year. T o o o ‘

Our comparable sales performance was certainly due in part to the economic conditions that
pressured consumer spending.and affected nearly every retailer in 2007, We saw those trends
affect sales in traditionally strong merchandise categories for Gander Mountain like firearms and
hunting produets. . We also made a dellberate decision to, reduce our advertising: spend in the
fourth quarter of 2007. o oo : :

Nonetheless, from an operational viewpoint, we reinain encouraged by several items. Soft sales
were somewhat offset by gains in initial margin, reflecting a trend of increasing initial margin in
seven of the past eight quarters. Overall, margin gains reflect general improvement in pricing
structure, improved clearance management, benefits of scale, and higher penetration of owned-
brand merchandise.

Gander Mountain has taken actions to improve execution and cost control. A $6.5 million charge
taken in fiscal 2007 includes several items that will benefit our cost structure in fiscal 2008,
including the closing of two unprofitable stores at year end, severance costs related to a
restructuring of our corporate overhead in the fall, and adjustments to the footprint in our
PowerSports business.

Gander Mountain has also taken a number of steps to improve business performance going
forward. In November, we began a review of all expense centers and markets for additional cost




reductions and indicated that we would manage our business to the current economic
environment,

We have put an intense focus on improying performance in existing stores. We closed two
unprofitable stores the last day of the fourth quarter. We will open only five stores in fiscal 2008,
of which two are the replacements for three smaller older stores, and three néw southern stores in’
Florida and Vlrglma This new store count represents a substantial slowing in our incremental
square footage and capital spending. Our capital spendmg for fiscal 2008 will be less than $25
million, compared with $47 million in fiscal 2007. :

We have also identified 25 stores both strong and underperformmg, where we have the greatest
opportunity to grow sales and improve profitability and will bring additional management and
financial support to these Focus 25. In addition to Focus 25, we are 1mplememmg four major
merchandise initiatives. Specifically we will: continue to grow the Gander Mountain Gunsmith
Certified program, which includes the Gander Gun owners club; expand our fieldwear, everyday
apparel, and denim workwear offerings; significantly increase the space allocated to our
successful footwear business across all our stores; and adjust'the mode! in our PowerSports
footprint in selected stores, even as we.cxpect to grow this business over the coming year.”

On the expense front, we expect cost cutting actions taken in late 2007 will enable us to leverage |
SG&A in the coming year. ' '

Our financial goals for fiscal 2008 mclude dellvermg revenues over Sl billion and producing
profitable company performance due to improved store economics and cost savings. We expect
to see continued expansion of initial margin, based in part on stronger sales performance from
key margin categories of apparel and footwear. Our net store growth will be flat but we will see a
continued shift in new stores toward southern markets, . '

Most importantly, we expect to see proﬁlable growth m the drrect business as "we bulld a natlonal
retail operation that goes to market across all channels and brings new customers the opportunity
to do business with Gander Mountain. We have already begun to take advantage of this new
ability by including 44 pages of Gander Mountain and nationally-branded product.including - .
apparel, fishing, and camping items in the Overton’s May 2008 Master Catalog. Most exciting to
us, of course, will be the launch of a Gander Mountain website and a Gander Mountain catalog
{ater in fiscal 2008.

' N
Overall, we recognize that there is a lot to do but we are encouragcd about the coming.year. We
continue to have the strong support of our majority.shareholders, particularly-evidenced by their
purchase of just over 4 million shares of common stock in December 2007, the proceeds of which
were used to partially fund the Overton’s acquisition. We are committed to our customers, our
supplier partners, and to our dedicated associates, who provide great servijce every day.

P a

Mark Baker 1
President and CEO, Gander Mountain : . : o
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION -
o . '

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements regarding our business, financial condition,
results of operations, performance and prospects. All statements that are not historical or current facts are forward-looking
statements and are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, many of which may be
beyond our control, that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future
results, performances or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Certain of these risks and
uncertainties are described in the “Risk Factors™ section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These risks and uncertainties /.

r

include, but are not limited to, the following: . . .

R v

1 4 ‘ . '

-+ " the weather conditions in the markets we serve;
+  our ability to execute our current business strategy focusing on large-format stores;

*  our concentration of stores in the Great Lakes region of the United States and seasonal fluctuations in our  »
business; ' :

*  our ability to raise capital in the future;

+  our lack of familiarity with markets in which we will open future stores; -

- ] T
. . .

*  our ability to successfully expand into new product areas, such as boats;
= our ability to locate suitable sites for new stores;
' I ."-_ . B : . [

«  delays in new store openings,

*  our entry into the Internet and catalog businesses which are new businésses for us; ' g

v

»  our ability to attract and retain management talent and store employees; o ’
. - f ' * ' ’ * I

*  disruptions or natural disasters at our distribution facilities or that affect our information systems;

+  strain on our infrastructure, including increased demands 6n our information systems and distribution center
resulting from our growth; ’ '

*  our ability to successfully implement changes to our information systems;
* * our ability to generate sales and control expenses in ordér to operate profitably; '

«  changes in consumer preferences, general economic conditions or consumer discretionary spending;

. o

+  energy and fuel prices;

+  our ability to réspond to increased corhpetition;

+ . the loss of key vendors or manufacturers, including foreign manufacturers of our owned-brand merchandise;

v or

. disruption or delays in shipm;:nts from domestic or foreign suppliers; e

+  changes in commercial practices of our key vendors or manufacturers, such as changes in vendor support and
incentives or changes in credit or payment terms; ,

+ increased regulation of the sale of firearms and related products;

+  the impact of product liability claims, other litigation and government regulations; and




= the interests of the members of the Pratt family,.the Erickson family and their affiliates in our company and
their ability to individually influgnce and collectively contrdl.matters approved by our shareholders.

t N i . : . i

In.some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “could,”
“estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,” “predicts;” “projects,” “should,” “will,” “would,” and similar
expressions intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements reflect our current views with
respect to future events; are based on assumptions and are subject to risks and uncertainties. Given these uncertainties, you
should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Also, forward-looking statements represent our
estimates and assumptions only as of the date of-this report. Except as required by law, we assume no obligation to update-
any forward-looking statements publicly, or to update the reasons actual results could differ materially from those anticipated
in any forward-looking statements, even if new information becomes available in the future. Readers are urged to carefully
review and consider the various disclosures made by us in this report and in our other reports filed from time to time with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, referred to as the Commission, that advise interested parties of the risks and factors
that may affect our business o

LLTS

LT LIS

ITEM 1. BUSINESS .
GENERAL

Gander Mountain Company operates the nation’s largest retail network of stores specializing in hunting, fishing,
camping, marine and outdoor lifestyle products and services." We have expanded our store base.from 26 stares in 1997 to our
current base of 113 conveniently located Gander Mountain outdoor lifestyle stores, providing approximately 6.2 million
square feet of retail space in 23 states. We anticipate opening five new stores in fiscal 2008, including one relocation and the
consolidation of two smaller format stores into one large-format store. .

Since its origin in 1960, cur brand name has developed a strong appeal and relevance to consumers who participate
in outdoor sports and recreation activities. Qur customers value our “We Live Outdoors” culture and theme. Qur core strategy
is to provide our target customers with a unique and broad assortment of outdoor equipment, accessories, related technical
apparet and footwear; expert services; convenient locations; and value pricing: Our stores feature an extensive selection of
leading national and regional brands as well as our company’s owned brands. We tailor our merchandise assortments to take
advantage of our customers’ seasonal and regional or local preferences. We seek to combine this broad product offering with
superior customer service based on our store associates’ extensive product knowledge and outdoor-related experience.

In March 2603, we began transforming our market position'from a traditional specialty store to a large-format,
category-focused store. We did this by opening new stores in a large format and increasing the selling space within our
original, small-format stores, Prior to March 2003, our typical store was approximately 31,000 square feet. Our large-format
stores range from approximately 50,000 to 120,000 square feet, with our current focus primarily upon stores of 60,000 to
65,000 square feet plus an outside selling area. Our large-format stores are generally located with convenient access to a
major highway and have an open-style shopping environment characterized by wide isles, open bar-joist ceilings and high-
density racking. To further build upon our brand’s reputation for high quality and,exceptional value, we are outfitiing certain
stores and our new stores with additional features such as brick and stone accents, log-wrapped columns, and improved
branding, fixture, flooring and signage elements. As of February 2, 2008, 68 of cur 113 stores were in our large format.

The larger format enables us to offer more products and services to our customers. In 2004 we began offering the
Arctic Cat brand of all-terrain vehicles (ATVSs) in our large format stores. In spring 2007 we began to feature the popular
Tracker Marine Group boat brands in our stores, including Tracker and Fisher fishing boats, Sun Tracker and Fisher pontoon
boats, Nitro and ProCraft high-performance fishing boats, Tahoe runabout/deck boats, Mako offshore/inshore fishing boats,
and Kenner Bay boats. To support these efforts we began to offer power shop services in our larger stores, including
maintenarice and repairs for ATVS, boats and other small engines. We have learned that we can be most successful offering
ATVs, boats and related power shop services in selected markets based on market demand, competitive conditions and
customer preferences. As of fiscal 2007 year end, we had reduced the number of our large-format stores offering ATVs and
Tracker brand boats to 22 and 27, respectively.

Qur large-format stores offer other unique features and specialized services, including a full-service gunsmith shop,
a fulliservice archery pro shop and archery target lanes. Some of the large-format stores also include a bait shop that opens
early for the convenience of our customers. We utilize outside selling areas adjacentto most of our large-format stores to
display additional offerings of larger items such as ATVSs, boats, kayaks, trailers and canoes.




Nearly all of our stores have a Gander Mountain Lodge, which is an in-store meeting room available for public use,
where we provide hunter safety classes, outdoor-skills seminars and other community-focused activities.

On December 6, 2007 we acquired Overton’s, Inc., a leading internet and catalog marketing company targeting
recreational boaters and water sports enthusiasts.. Overton’s product ling is extensive, ranging from water skis, wakeboards
and apparel to electronics, boat covers, boat seats and other marine accessories, Overton’s products are sold under two
principal brands, Overton’s and Consumers Marine, through a multi-channel approach that includes catalogs, websites
{(www.Overtons.com and www. Consumersmarine.com) and three retail showrooms. Overton’s is a wholly-owned sub51dlary
of Gander Mountain headquartered in Greenville, North Carolina.

We were originally organized as a Delaware limited liability company on November 27, 1996, and we converted to
a Delaware corporation on December 31, 2000. We reincorporated in Minnesota in January 2004 by merging inte our wholly
owned subsidiary formed solely for that purpose. We completed our initial public offering in April 2004 and our common
stock is traded on the Nasdag Global Market under the symbol “GMTN.” Our principal executive offices are located at 180
East Fifth Street, Suite 1300, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101, and our general telephone number is (651) 325-4300.

We maintain a corporate website at www.GanderMountain.com. The information contairied on and connected to our
website is not incorporated into this report. On our website, you can access our annual reports on Form 10-K, guarterty
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a)
or 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and all other reports we file with the Commission, as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file these reports with, or furnish them to, the Commission. You can also request free
coptes of these.reports on our website or by calling investor relations at 651-325-4600. You can also read and copy any |
materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100.F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549,
Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by, cailmg the SEC at 1-800-SEC- 0330 The
SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other mformatlon regardmg
issuers that file electronically at www.sec.gov.

FISCAL 2007 HIGHLIGHTS : : T , d P
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.*  Weacquired Overton’s, Inc,, a leading internet and catalog marketing company targeting recreational boaters.

'
+

¢ We opened thirteen new stores, including three relocated stores, expanding our industry-leading retail network
to a total of 113 stores offering approximately 6.2 million square feet of retail space. We also closed two
unprofitable stores in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007. o :

+ We entered. one new state in the year——M1551551pp1——brm5mg our total nurnber of states to 23. In addmon t0.
adding this new market, we added nine new stores in the southern and southeastern markets, which increases -
the total number of stores in southern markets to 28. :

OUR BRANDS’ HISTORY : S

Gander Mountam was founded in Wllmot WlS in 1960, as a catalog operation and developed into one of the
largest outdoor catalogs in the United States, with significant name recognition and brand equity within the outdoor lifestyle
sector. Subsequently, the company expanded into retail operations. In 1996, the company discontinved its catalog operations.

In 1996-and 1997, Holiday Companies, which, at the time owned and operated ten retail sporting goods stores, acquired the

17 existing Gander Mountain retail stofes and began to utilize the historic Gander Mountain brand to build a new outdoor

lifestyle business. In March 2003, we began transformmg our market position from a traditional specialty storedtoa ,. *

large-format, category-focused store.

Overton?s'traces its roots to 1970 when Parker, Overton began buying water skis directly, from manufacturers.and -
_reselling them from his father’s Greenville, NC grocery store. Overton’s Inc. was soon formed and the company began a , .
catalog marketing effort promoting water skis, mailing their first color catalog in 1978. Overton’s sales reached $1 miltion by
1980. In order to reach a broader base of customers and better meet current customer needs, the company introduced a marine
accessories line that same year. By 1989, Overton’s was recognized as a leader in “water sports,” with sales reaching
$235 million, and the company earning a reputation for superior service, good value and quality products. During the 1990°s;
the Company continued to grow catalog circulation and sales and added significant distribution capacity. In 1996, the
company launched an internet website (www.Overtons.com) and continued to grow sales through this new marketing channel.
In 2003, Parker Overton sold Overton’s Inc. to a private equity investment group. In 2004, Overton’s acquired Consumers
" Marine Electronics to expand its product offering. Overton’s annual net sales were approximately $93 million in 2006.
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OUR GROWTH STRATEGY' : : A
- ' . 13 ‘~'.
Our long-lenn strategic objectives are to: .

. bu:ld upon the Gander Mountain brand name and significantly expand our network of retail stores in order to
capture additional market share and expand our geographic dwers:ty

«  offer our customers the best comb:nanon of a broad assortment of products and services, convenience and value
in the outdoor lifestyle sector; v

. enhance our growth by adding new products and services that meet the needs of our customers;

-+ * improve our profitability by leveragmg our increasing scale to improve margms and enhance productivity, and
T by controllmg expenses; and -

. develop and expand our internet and catalog selhng capabilities in order to offer current and potential customers
" more shopping opporrunmes :

PR

Expand Our Nerwork of Retail S tores

Consolidate an Underserved Market. We believe'that our unique retail concept has broad appeal and that there are
significant opportunities for profitable new store expansiori By adding new stores, we both capture additional market share
and diversify our operations within the large, highly fragmented and underserved outdoor lifestyle market. We strategically
locate our outdoor lifestyle stores in suburban and rural areas with a high concentration of our target outdoor enthusiast
customets and near hunting, fishing, camping, boating and other outdoor recreation destination areas.

We intend to open stores in new markets and to further penetrate our existing markets to capture additional market
share. We opened thirteen stores in fiscal 2007, all of them in our large format, including the replacement of three smaller
stores wilh new, large-format stores. '

We plan to open five additional stores in fiscal 2008 in both existing and new markets, including one relocanon and
the consolidation of two smaller format stores into one large-format store. Most of these new stores will be located in
moderate to mid-sized markets that meet our site selection criteria. While we will continue to build stores in urban markets,
we believe that moderate to mid-sized markets offer great opportunities. In these markets, we are often the only retailer
offering a broad selection of products and services to outdoor enthusiasts, and it is less likely that one of our larger
competitors will enter one of these markets once we are established there. We will continue to expand our retail network in
southern and southeastern markets in order to increase our geographic diversity.

Employ a Flexible Real Estate Strategy. Our flexible real estate strategy allows us to open stores in different sizes
depending on market characteristics, demographics and availability of sites. Our ability to adapt our store format gives us
flexibility to utilize both recycled or second-use, facilities and build-to-suit opportunmes as the market dictates.

Control Building Costs to Maximize Expansion of Our Rerarl Network. We continually monitor and seek to
optimize our investment in our stores on a per-store basis. One-way we do this is by using recycled real estate where
available which is often available for lesser rental rates than new properties. We also use outdoor selling space adjacent to our
stores to display large items like ATVs, boats and trailers. This reduces our rent.per store while still enabling us to display
our full assortment of products. We believe that our ability to control our investment per-store will allow us to maximize the
expansion of our network of conveniently located retail stores, '

Offer Our Customers the Best Combination of a Broad Assortment of Outdoor Lifestyle Products and Services,
Convenience and Value

Offer a Broad ASsortmem of Outdoor Lifestyle Products. We offer a broad assortment of outdoor equipment,
accessories, related technical apparel and footwear. Qur stores feature an extensive selection of leading national and regional
brands as well as our company’s owned brands. We tailor our merchandise assortments to take advantage of our customers’
seasonal preferences, as well as regional or local preferences.




Another important element of our merchandise strategy is the anticipation of merchandise trends and consumner
preferences as we aim to be the first to market with new and innovative products. We continually assess opportunities to add
complementary product lines desired by our customers. We seek to combine this broad product offering with superior
customer service based on our store associates’ extensive product knowledge and outdoor-related experience.

Offer Convenience., We believe our ability to tailor the size of our stores to the needs of each market and utilize both
new and recycled real estate enabies us to target both larger and mid-sized markets and to cluster our stores in key markets,
such as the Minneapolis/St. Paul metro area and Houston. We provide our customers more convenient shopping opportunities
closer to where they live, work or enjoy their recreational activities than certain of our larger competitors who specialize in
building a more limited number of large destination retail stores.

Offer Value. Our pricing policy is to offer our customers the best value on our broad assortment of products and
services. We believe our competitive pricing reinforces our strong value proposition and instills price confidence in
customers in each of our markets. We achieve price leadership through our commitment 1o an every-day-low-price strategy
and supporting policies such as our “Low Price Guarantee.” Our store format reinforces this commitment to value,

" . . _

Offer Convenient Expert Services. As the nation’s largest retail network of stores specializing in hunting, fishing,
camping, boating, marine and outdoor lifestyle products and services, we have a unique opportunity to become the “provider
of choice™ for a broad range of outdoor-related customer services. Our convenient locations make it easy for our customers to
rely on us to provide expert services to enhance their outdoor experiences,

| . .

We plan to build on our current base of services to strengthen our position as the solution to all of our customers’
needs for outdoor recreation. We are the largest emplover of professional gunsmiths in the country, with gunsmiths in almost
all of our stores and a larger central gunsmith facility in our Kenosha, Wis., store to provide advanced services. We also have
archery technicians in every store to provide customization and repair services for archery enthusiasts, and we have archery
shooting lanes in our large-format stores. Certain of our large-format stores offer a power shop that provides repair services
for ATVs, boats and any other small engines. We also offer fishing reel line winding, hunting and fishing license sales and
other value-added technical support services. We continually assess opportunities to add complementary services desired by
OUr Customers.

We use the Gander Lodge in each of our stores to provide classes and demonstrations that contribute to our
customers’ enjoyment of their outdoor activities. Many of these sessions are conducted by our knowledgeable associates,
who provide expert advice to our customers every day. We conduct a number of gun-safety classes, and in many of our
markets we are the leading provider of hunter education.

Add New Products and Services to Continually Meet Customers’ Needs. We use input from our customers to add to
our already-extensive assortment of products and services to better meet the needs of our customers. In recent years we have
added Arctic Cat ATVs and Tracker Marine Group boats to our product offerings and developed power shop services to
complement these products. Our recent acquisition of Overton’s will enable us to significantly expand our offermgs of
marine and water sports products and accessories. :

1
Develop and Expand our Direct-To-Consumer Marketing Channel and Leverage Synergies wuh our Retail Network

The acqulsmon of Overton’s provndes us with an immediate platform to develop, expand and cap:tahze on the
market opportunity. present in the outdoor lifestyle business by reaching existing and new consumers through catalog and
Internet. The Overton’s expansion will target many product categories of our business, including fishing and marine, apparel,
and camping and other outdoor lifestyle categories. The Gander Mountain catalog and web site capabilities will be focused
on hunting and hunting related products. We have already developed and begun an initiative to integrate an expanded
Overton’s catalog into our retail network of 113 stores. We expect to have that marketing effort produce tangible results as
early as May 2008. Other strategies will be developed over time to cross-merchandise our products and Overten’s products to
each company’s existing customer base. Pursuant to a non-compete agreement entered into by Overton’s as part.of a previous
transaction in 2002, Gverton’s is restricted from selling hunting related products until March 2009. From the combined
Overton’s and Gander direct initiatives, we expect to develop and utilize customer databases that will provide more insight
into consumers’ merchandise preferences and provide us the ability to increase sales penetration. We believe the combination
of expanded catalog reach and new direct marketing capabilities can be a significant driver of the growth of our brand and
serve as an important marketing tool for our retail business.




lmprave Our Pmducnwry and Profitability

Implement Operatmg Initiatives. We are pursuing a number of initiatives designed to improve product margin.
These include sourcing more of our product directly and expanding the penetration of our owned-brand merchandise where
appropriate. Other initiatives are designed to improve how we display our merchandise so our stores are easier to shop. We
are also focused on initiatives to continue to improve our supply chain to improve inventory turnover and reduce inventory
per store, to reduce store labor costs by eliminating non-selling tasks and to control corporate expenses.

For fiscal 2008, our key initiatives are:

+  Gander Gunsmith Certified Program and Gander Gun Owners Club—1In late 2007 we launched programs
intended to provide additional value and benefits to our firearms customers and capitalize on our indusiry
leading staff of certified gunsmiths. Under this program, we extend the manufacturer’s standard warranty on

-+ firearms for an additional year providing complete coverage for parts and labor, cur gunsmiths inspect every
used gun we sell, and we provide a free gun cleaning and safety inspection, membership in the Gander Gun
Owners Club, trade-in benefits and other incentives. The confidence that our customers can derive from this

' program cannot be matched by our competitors and is reflected in our slogan—*“Gander Gunsmith Certified—
Every Gun, Every Day.” Through the Gander Gun Owners Club we provide additional special benefits and
incentives for members and build a database of some of our best customers.

»  Fieldwear—We are implementing several merchandising initiatives to drive increased sales of fieldwear. We
are also reconfiguring the layout of our ficldwear section to increase our space allocation and improve
navigation. Importantly, we are staffing sales in our fieldwear section with associates from our hunting

: department, rather than the apparel department. These hunting associates bnng added knowledge and personal
: field experience to enhance the sales process. - A

= Apparel—Over the past year we have embarked on a significant redesign and upgrade of our men’s and
women’s apparel offerings. The improved quality and styles will be displayed in our stores this fiscal year. We
have expanded our offerings in certain categories, including denim, work wear and logo wear. We have also
designed our product sets around a five-season concept that we believe will enable us to cycle more quickly
through apparel inventory and offer new product sets in our stores more oﬁen throughout the vear.

+  Footwear-—We are expandmg our successful footwear program through our reta11 network. The program for
this fiscal year includes expanded assortments of action footwear and cross-trainers, as well as an expanded
assortments of women’s and youth models.

»  Focus 25 Stores—We are putting an intense focus on improving performance in existing stores. We have also
identified 25 stores where we believe we have the greatest opportunity to grow sales and improve profitability.
- Some of these stores are strong market leaders in their respective areas and some are not performing to our
expectations. In each case, we intend to bring additional management and financial support to these Focus 25
stores to capitalize on the opportumtles we see to grow sales.

We measure performance using key operatmg statistics such as comparable store sales; saies per square foot; gross
margin percentage; and store operating expenses, with a focus on labor, as a percentage of sales, Store operating contribution,
which is calculated by deducting a store’s operating expenses from its gross margin, is used to evaluate overall performance
on an individual store basis. In addition, selling, general and admm:stratwe expenses are. momtored in absolute amounts, as
well ason a percenlage -of-sales basis. .

Leverage Our Inicreasing Scale. We are focused on increasing our store operating margins and profitability through
improved purchasing leverage as we grow and-develop stronger relationships with our vendors. We believe the expansion of
our direct marketing efforts through the Internet and catalogs via our acquisition of Overton’s and our intended launch of a
Gander Mountain Internet store and catalogs will further enhance our scale and prowde'addltlonal opportunities to improve
proﬁtabillty . . .




OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
The key elements of our merchandise strategy that reinforce our “We Live Outdoors” culture and theme are:

+  offer an exfensive selection of products at highly competitive prices on an everyday basis in our large-format
stores; ’

«  focus on nationally br;inded products;

* complement our branded product offerings with our proprietary brands, including Gander Mountain, Guide
Series and Three Forks Ranch, and in the marine and water sports areas, Overton’'s, Gladiator, and Dockmate;

» tailor our merchandise assortments to local and regional market preferences to take advantage of the seasonal
nature of our customers’ outdoor activities;

* introduce new, on-trend merchandise early in its product life-cycle; and

»  support our customers with a superior level of assistance, product expertise and value-added, in-store technical
support services.

Product Offerings Voo

S S oL Y : ‘ .

Since the acquisition of Overton’s, we now have two reportable segments: Retail and Direct. The Retail segment .

sells its outdoor lifestyle products and services through its 113 retail stores located in 23 states. The Direct segment is the
Internet and catalog operations of Overton’s, offering primarily Boating and watersports accessory products through
numerous direct-mail catalogs and its e-commerce websites. We evaluated our operating and reporting segments in N
accordance with SFAS No. 131 and considered the discrete financial information reviewed by our chief operating decision
maker in making decisions regarding allocation of resources and in assessing performance. Reporting in this format provides
management with the financial information necessary to evaluate the success of the segments and the overall business. Prior
to December 6, 2007, we operated under one segment, Retall Results by business segmenl are presented in the following
table for fiscal year 2007. .. v . " :

Fiscal Year 2007 P L
in thousands :

o, ] . . e . . . Retail Direct Tatal
SAlES s rtcreee e e s rean el raveieFeeeniens $963.863 $5,540  $969,403
Adjusted EBITDA .................. e e s e sees st S $22,157  $(380)  $21,777
Interest expense ................... (19,104) (641) (19,745)
Income tax provision : o . “(750) — 7 (750)
Depreciation and amortization.......co...v-... . (26,418) (185) +* {26,603)
Exil costs, impairment and otler chédrges ... : (6,493 L s {(6,493)
INEE LOSS covectruririesssisss s sessssaa e ssss s s bbb ees s bbbt emss e nemress s b s an b s $(30,608)  $(1,206) $(31,814)
Total BSSELS oo, et et e e eree e bbbt eaa st t e srresrnes $622,050 $57,882, $679,932
T T R et 384,510 19,173 403,683
Goodwill and 1ntang|b]e assets .................. s eeeen et ettt r et et 77,083 66,818 73,901
Long termdebt......ccocoovveeieciresee oo s OO $26,673  $37,500  $64,173

We offer a broad and decp assortment of eqmpmem apparel footwear, related accessorles and consumable supplies
to meet the outdoor activity needs of our customers The extensive breadth and depth of our product, offerings allow us to
carry a full range of merchandise at price pomts wnhm each category to appeal to customers ranging from the beginner to thc

- expert. -

Another important element of our merchandise strategy is anticipating new merchandise trends and consumer
preferences and attempting to be the first to market with new products. Our goal is to capitalize on new merchandise trends




early in their product life cycles. We are able to do this by frequent communications between our customers, store associates,
buyers and vendors, and by utilizing consumer research. S

The following table shows our sales during the past three fiscal years by product category:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

Category(1) 2007 2006 2005
HUNEI 1ottt 43.0%  45.1% 42.8%
Fishing and Marine(2} ........ccooivninninneieiemeee e 16.0% 146% 15.5%
Camping, Paddlesports and Backyard Equipment............ccocooeeen 7.2% 1.7% 8.3%
Apparel and FOOIWEAT ...t 240%  25.1% 263%
Powersports . . 43%  3.8%
OHHET ettt e e se et e erar s vas st eansnans . 23% 25%
Parts and services . 0.9% 0.7%

Total....occcene eeeereeeesetesattieeieteeit et et saan et et e sa s e ener et e e e enereEs . 100.0% 100.0%
(1 Certain reclassifications to categories have been made. All years are stated on a comparable basis.
) Overton’s sales of $5.5 million for two months of fiscal 2007 have been mcluded in the Fishing

and Marine category.

Hunting. Hunting is our largest merchandise category, representing approximately 43% of our sales during fiscal
2007. Our hunting merchandise assortment provides equipment, accessories and consumable supplies for virtually every type
of hunting and sport shooting. Gunsmith services and archery technicians support our hunting assortments to service the
complete needs of the hunter, .

Our hunting assortment mckudes a w1de vanety of firearms, mcludmg rifles, shotguns handguns, air guns and black
powder muzzle loaders. We also buy and sell used firearms. In addition to firearms, we carty a wide selection of products in
the ammunmon hunting equlpment optics, dog training, archery and food plots/feeding categories. - :

Fishing and Marine Accessories. Fishing and marine accessories represented approximately 16% of our sales
during fiscal 2007 and includes products for fresh-water fishing, salt-water fishing, fly-fishing, ice-fishing and boating. Qur
broad assortment appeals to the beginning angler and the weekend angler, as well as avid and tournament anglers. [n addition
to lures, rods and reels, our fishing assortment features a wide selection of products in the tackle supplies electronics, fly-
fishing, ice-fishing and marine accessories categories. We also provide fishing line wmdmg services in ali of our stores and
live bait in most of our large-format stores.

Our marine accessory assortment includes products for boat care and maintenance, as well as safety equipment and
products for fun on the water, such as wake boards and tubes. Our acquisition of Overton’s allows us to expand our marine
product line including specialty water sports and accessories, marine apparel, electronics, boat covers and boat seats.

Camping, Paddlesports and Backyard Equipment. Camping, paddlesports and backyard equipment represented
approximately 7.2% of our sales during fiscal 2007. Our camping assortment primarily focuses on family camping and the
weekend hiker, and includes the campm&, paddlesports, backyard cooking and entertainment, and food processing product
categones

Apparel and Footwear. Qur apparel and footwear product categories include both technical gear and lifestyle
apparel for the active outdoor enthusiast. Appare] and footwear represented approximately 24.0% of our sales during fiscal
2007, and our assortments in these categories include fieldwear, sportswear, work wear and marine wear.

Fieldwear apparel and footwear offer technical performance capabilities for a variety of hunting activities, including
upland, waterfowl, archery, big game hunting, turkey hunting and shooting sports. Performance attributes include
waterproofing, temperature control, scent controt features and visual capabilities, including camouflage and blaze orange.
Quterwear, particularly performance rainwear, is an 1mportant category for customers who are fishing, hiking, hunting or
marine enthusiasts. ‘ '

We complement our technical apparel with an assortment of casual ‘apparel and footwear that fits cur customers
lifestyles, as well as workwear and boots.




Power Sports. Certain of our large-format stores carry an assortiment of ATVs and ATV accessories, boats and a
small number of power tools. We are one of the largest ATV dealers in the country. In addition to sclling a high volume of
units, we typically. sell a significant amount of accessories with each vehicle. Qur power sports category reprcsented
approximately 6.8% of our sales during fiscal 2007. . . : .

Many of our customers view ATVs as working vehicles and appreciate the broad assortment of accessories and
attachments we carry to enhance their effectiveness. These attachments range from simple trailers and blades to expensive
cultivators that hunters use to plant food plots for game on their hunting land. Our expansion into the ATV market led us to
develop our power shop services. Qur service shops provide a fult range of services and parts and are staffed with trained
technicians who can service most small engines. As we have expanded our offering of boats, our power shop services have --
expanded to provide marine engine services.

As of February 2008, we distributed a full line of Tracker Marine Group’s popular line of fishing and recreational
boats in 27 of our stores. In addition, we carry Tracker Marine Group jon-boats in all stores and Mercury.or Yamaha engines
in selected stores. We also offer small fishing boats, kayaks, canoes and small boat motors.

T l ! ¥

Other. Producls in this category include cabm and ranch decor itemns, glfts books, v1deos and food. : .

We also operate Outdoor Expeditions, a travel business that specializes in packaging hunting and fishing trips to
domestic and international destinations and providing expert advice on selecting outdoor destinations, gear outfitting, .
accommodations and guide services, Our Outdoor Expeditions staff has accumulated a wealth of knowledge and expertise in
packagmg rewardmg hunlmg and fishing vacations. We do not own or lease any hunting land or provide guide services.

f . . , .

Focus on Branded Products

Qut primary merchandise focus’is to offer our customers a broad selection of competitively priced national and
regional brand products. Our national-brand focus is driven by our customers’ buying preferences for national brands.and the
fact that the national-brand manufacturers are often responsible for most of our industry’s new product innovation and -
development. We not only offer an extensive breadth of brands across multiple product categones but also offer extensive
depth of product within most brands. :

S Another important element of our branding strategy is the development of strong owned brands, primarily Gander
Mountain, Guide Series and Three Forks Ranch, by leveraging the strength of our brand image to create our own line of
high-quality products. Qur owned-brand strategy is designed to augment our assortment of nationally and regionally branded
merchandise with our owned-brand products in select merchandise categories. While the majority of owned-brand products
are in the apparel category, we offer an expanding assortment of owned-brand equipment. .

+ Our Gander Mountain and Guide Series products are designed-and priced to offer our customers the quality
characteristics of many of our branded preducts at a price that reflects exceptional value. We believe that by offering a high-
quality, competitively priced owned brand, we create an even more compelling value proposition for our customers: Our
Three Forks Ranch line of products is comprised of premium hunting and fishing apparel and equipment. Qur owned-brand. -
preducts are sourced from a diversified group of established vendors. Owned brand products accounted for approximately
£3% of our total sales in fiscal 2007 and approximately 11% of our sales in fiscal 2006.

In the recreational boating, specialty water sports and marine accessories categories, our Overton’s, Gladiator, and
Dockmate brand products are recognized for quality and value, These branded products include wetsuits, towables, water
skis, wakeboards, flotation vests, dock supplies and other marine accessories. .

Localization and Relevancy of Product Assortment . . . ‘ .

We customize our merchandise assortment on a market-by-market basis. We do this by featuring well-known
regional brands that we augment with local brands, allowing us 1o tailor our merchandise assortment to the local market. This
is extremely important across many of our merchandise categories, given the significant differences in product and brand -
preferences. Also, as we expand geographically, we need to merchandise each of our stores appropnate]y for the climate and
seasonal variations from market to market. -

i




Services - .o - TS

e " . : R A Y . : oo

We pmv1de our customers with a wide range of in-stofe, value-added, technical support services, Nearly all of our
stores offer full-service gunsmith shops, archery technicians, fishing-reel line winding, and hunting and fishing license sales.
" We also offer small-engine repair services at all of our stores that sell ATVs, including servicing of boat motors. We believe
that offering these services is consistent with our goal of offering products and services for all our customers’ outdoor
lifestyle needs: It is also an important driver of additional sales by building customer traffic and enhancing our relationships
with our customers. We believe the ability to provide the necessary technical support.in our major product categories is
essential to our pesitioning in the outdoor lifestyle market. We also: provxde trammg and seminars for our customers,
including gun-safety training, in all our.stores.

Pricing

Our pricing policy is to maintain prices that are competitive in our markets. We believe our competitive pricing
strategy reinforces our strong value proposition, instills price confidence in both our customers and our store associates, and
is a critical element of our competitive strategy. We achieve price leadership through our commitment to an every-day-low-
price strategy and supporting policies such ag-our “Low Price Guarantee.” Our Three Forks Ranch line of products is priced
at a level reflecting the premium quality of the apparel and equipment. ‘
Store Design and Visual Merchandising . - ' o

't L. Yy . . W8 ! AN o "o L . ]

We design our large-format, open-style stores to create an exciting shopping environment and to highlight our
extensive product assortments. We use our store design and layout to emphasize our positioning as a value-oriented outdoor
lifestyle retailer. We use a variety of display fixtures, in-aisle merchandise displays, tables and end-caps to create a functional
design that enables us to expand and adjust the size of our merchandise offerings by season and market. To further build upon
our brand’s reputation for high quality and exceptional value, we are outfitting certain stores and alt of our new stores with
additional features such as brick and stone accents log-wrapped columns; and improved branding, fixture, flooring and
sngnage clements e ORI “ - ' .

PURCHAS]NG AND DISTRIBUTION

Our merchandising team: is responsible for all product selection and procurement except for certain purchases by our
store managers to address.local customer preferences or seasonal considerations. In addition, our merchandising team’s
responsibilities include the determination of initial pricing, product marketing plans and promotions. They coordinate with
our merchandise planning and allocation team to establish inventory levels and product mix. Qur merchandising team alsn
regularly communicates with our store management to monitor shiftsin consumer tastes and market trends.

Our merchandise planning and allocation team is responsible for merchandise distribution, inventory control, and
replenishment.. This team also coordinates the inventory levels necessary for each advertising promotion with our buyers and
our advertising department: They track the effectiveness of each advertisement to allow our buyers and our advertising
department to-determine the relative success of each promotional program. Other responsibilities include pnce changes
creation.of-purchase orders and determination of store-level inventory. . '

We purchase merchandise from over 2 200 vendors. We have no long -term purchase commitments, and no single
vendor represented more than 4% of our purchases during fiscal 2007. -

. 'J Bt + .

We operate a distribution center to which vendors ship our merchandlse We lease a second building of
approximately 202,000 square feet to add additional capacity at our distribution center, bringing the total capacity to 427,000
square feet. Qur product is processed at our distribution center as necessary and shipped to our stores. In addition,
approximately 20% of our merchandise is shipped dlrectly to our stores by the vendors.

! ]

*** «Overton’s operates a fulﬁllment and d1smbunon center in Greenv:lle North Carolina, with capacity of
approximately 383,000 square feet for its Internet and catalog marketing business. This business distributes substantially all
of its products direct to consumers. Overton’s also maintains an efficient call center operation that is seasonally staffed from
approximately 60 to 150 employees. Calls are answered 24 hours/365 days per year and forecasted and monitored on an
hourly basis tc maximize agent utilization and service levels.
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We believe that we will be able to service our existing stores from our distribution center through fiscal 2009. We
have undertaken a study to analyze our future distribution requirements. We believe we will need to expand our distribution
capabilities in two to three years depending on our business success, the number of additional new stores we build in the
future and the growth of our Internet and catalog business.

MARKETING AND ADVERTISING

Our marketing strategy communicates our “We Live Outdoors” culture and theme and is designed to emphasize
Gander Mountain’s position in the market as a leader in selection, service and competitive pricing in our core categories—
hunting, fishing, camping, boating, apparel and footwear. In addition, we seek to develop a unique relationship with our
customers and establish our store associates as true experts in their field. Our advertising calendar focuses on the key hunting,
fishing and camping seasons.

We use a combination of radio, print, television, and outdoor advertising to communicate our message. We
anticipate our primary advertising vehicle in fiscal 2008 will be radio. Print advertising will support store openings and other
events, using a combination of newspapers and direct mail appropriate to our markets. We also utilize television -
advertisements, sponsorships of key sporting events and fishing tournaments, event marketing and grassroots marketing
through support of community organizations. In addition, cur “We Live Outdoors™ television show airs on The Qutdoor
Channel. i , o ) . .

A significant element of our local and grassroots marketing effort is our use of the Gander Mountain Lodge. The
Lodge is a designated space in nearly all our stores that serves as a meeting place for local outdoor groups. Our store
management schedules presentations and training seminars from our world-class pro-staff in conjunction with natural
resource organizations, including local chapters of Ducks Unlimited, Pheasants Forever, Muskies, Inc. and boy and girl scout
troops. The Lodge is also used for firearms training and youth cemﬁcatlon making us one of the largest providers of hunter
safety training in the country. 0 , : . .

, Overton's direct business uses the Internet and catalogs as marketing tools to generate sales. Orders are received via.
the Internet, telephone and by mail. Overton’s produces and distributes over 15 million catalogs annually in multiple editions
throughout the year. Overton’s employs a variety of marketing tools, mcludmg its proprietary customer database, Internet
marketing arrangements, email marketing and direct mail. ‘

RETAIL STORES AND MARKETS
Store Locations 7 S \ T _ .

. The following table lists the location by state of our 113 stores open as of February 2, 2008 . <, |

States and I\umber of Stores

Northern Markets

Southern Markets

Colorado 2 Alabama - |
Illinois 4 Arkansas 1

. Indiana - 6 Florida 3

. lowa 2 Kansas R
Maryland 1 Kentucky 2
Michigan . 13 . Mississippi . . 1
Minnesota 12 North Carolina 37!
New York 9 Tennessee -3
North Dakota 1 Texas 10
Ohio 9 Virginia 2 . y
Pennsylvania 12 West Virginia 1
Wisconsin 14

85 28

We have announced plans to open five new stores in fiscal 2008, including one relocation and the consolidation of
two smaller format stores into one large-format store. These new stores will further increase our geographic diversity:
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Site Selection
We select geographic markets and store sites on the basis of: . ,
+  demographic information,

= quality and nature of neighboring tenants,

4

»  store visibility,
+  accessibility and - - S . : - o -
»  lease economics.

Key demographics include not only population density, but also the number of outdoor activity participants, as
measured by hunting and fishing licenses, and proximity to outdoor recreation areas. While we will continue to build stores
in urban markets, we believe that moderate to mid-sized markets offer great opportunities, In these markets, we are often the
only retailet offering a broad selection of products and services to outdoor enthusiasts, and it is less likely that one of our
larger competitors will enter one of these markets once we are established there.

Generaily, we seek to locate our néw stores in retail areas with major discount retailers, such-as Wai-Mart or Target,
or other specialty retailers, such as The Home Depot, Bed, Bath and Beyond or Best Buy. Our market and site selettion
decision-making process is ultimately based on the projected economics of the new store. ’

Our ability-to adapt our store format gives us flexibility to utilize both recycled, or second-use, facilities and build-
to-suit opportunities as the market dictates. We have the flexibility to adapt our store model from 30,000 square feet up to
120,000 square feet. We are now building our large-format stores primarily at 60,000 to 65,000 square feet, and we prefer
sites where we can include an outside selling area to display large items such as ATVs, boats, trailers, kayaks and canoes. We
believe that there is ample availability of recycled real estate at reasonable occupancy costs to accommodate a portion of our
future growth. We believe that our flexible real estate strategy will assist us in meeting our expansion objectives and
operating with reasonable occupancy costs. R .

Our expansion strategy is to open stores in both new and existing markets. In our existing markets, we will add
stores to further penetrate certain market areas. In certain situations, opening new stores in existing markets will negatively
impact comparable store sales for a period of time. However, by clustering our stores, we seek to gain additional market share
and take advantage of economies of scale in advertising, promotion, distribution and management supervisory costs. In new
markets, we generally seek to expand in geographically contiguous areas in order to build on our experience in the same or
nearby regions, We intend to continue our expansion into the southern and southeastern markets of the U.S. in order to
expand our geographic diversity. '

INFORMATION SYSTEMS

Over the past several years, we have made significant investments in our infrastructure, including our information
systems, distribution capabilities and management ranks, to support our accelerating growth. We use enterprise-wide
merchandise and financial systems which we believe are scalable. In fiscal 2007, we continued to upgrade our merchandise
and information systems providing enhanced efficiencies in buying, receiving, payables management and provide better and
more detailed operating information for decision making and continued supply chain improvement. We'expect to continue to
evaluate, modify and update our information systems over the next several years.

SEASONALITY :

Our business is subject to seasonal fluctuations. We generated 60% of our annual sales in the third and fourth
quarters of fiscal 2007 and approximately 63% of our annual sales in those same quarters of fiscal 2006. The third and fourth
quarters are primarily associated with the fall hunting seasons and the holiday season. In addition, we typically have opened a
greater number of new stores during the second half of the year, which further increases the percentage of our sales generated
in the third and fourth fiscal quarters. We also incur significant additional expenses in the third and fourth fiscal quarters due
to higher volume and increased staffing in our stores.
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Unseasonable weather conditions affect outdoor activities and the demand for related apparel and equipmient.
Customers’ demand for our products, and therefore our sales, can be significantly impacted by weather patterns.

* We are working to reduce the seasonality of our business by opening new stores in the south and southeast. As of
the end of fiscal 2007, we have increased.our number of stores located outside our traditional northern markets to 28 stores.
Customers in these markets enjoy longer seasons for outdoor activities. As we open more stores in these regions, we expect
aver time to increase the percentage of our sales that are generated in the first half of the year. Our acquisition.of Overton’s
expands our marine business, which we believe will increase our sales in the first half of our fiscal year.

EMPLOYEES . T .

As of February 2, 2008, we had 6,238 associates, approximately 2,650 of whom were employed by us on a full-time
basis. We also employ additional associates during peak selling periods. We consider our relationships with our associates to
be good. None of our associates are covered by a collective bargaining agreement.

COMPETITION

We operate in a large, highly fragmented and competitive industry, which we believe is currently underservéd. The
outdoors is an integral part of many Americans’ lifestyles. We believe the principal competitive factors in our industry are
breadth and depth of product selection, value pricing, convenient locations, technical services, and customer service. Qur
principal competitors include the following:

» local specialty stores; ,

. . H ' s

» large-format entertainment-focused outdoor retailers, such as Cabela’s and Bass Pro Shops;

s other outdoor-focused chains, such as Sportsman’s Warehouse;

1 " LN

+  catalog and Internet-based retailers, such as Cabela’s, Bass Pro Shops and The Sportsman’s Guide;

» traditional sporting goods chains, such as Dick’s Sporting Goods, The Sports Authority and Academy;
..+ discount chains.and mass merchants, such as Wal-Mart and' Kmart;

*» ATV and boat dealers;

. power shops; and C ;

i+

"+ marinds and marine supply stores, such as West Marine and Boater’s World.

Local Specialty Stores. These stores generally range in size from approximately 2,000 to 10,000 square feet, and
typically focus on one or two spec1ﬁc product catcgones such as hunting, fishing or camping and usually lack a broad
selection of product : ’

Large- Format Entertainment-Focused Outdoor Retailers. These large-format retallers generatly range in size from
100,000 to 250,000 square feet and seek to offer a broad selection of merchandise focused on hunting, fishing, camping and
other outdoor product categories. These stores combine the characteristics of an outdoor retailer with outdoor entertainment
and therhe attractions. 'We believe the number of these stores that can be supported in any smgle market area is limited
because of their large size and significant per-store cost.

Other Outdoor-Focused Chains. These smaller chains typically focus on offering a broad selection of merchandise
in one or more of the following product categories—hunting, fishing, camping or other outdoor product categories. The
largest of these chains is significantly smaller than our company. We believe that these other outdoor-focused chains
generally do not offer a siinilar depth and breadth of merchandise or specialized services in all of our product categories.

Catalog and Internet-Based Retailers. These retailers sell a broad selection of merchandise through the use of
catalogs and the Internet. The products are competitively priced and the direct channel offers relative convenience to
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customers. However, catalog and Internet retailers are not able to provide face-to-face customer service and support, nor offer
the expert technical, repair and other services that are provided at our retail stores. .t . '

Traditional Sporting Goods Chains. These stores generally range from 20,000 to 80,000 square feet and offer a
broad selection of sporting goods merchandise covering a variety of sporting goods categories, including baseball, basketball,
football, and home gyms, as well as hunting, fishing and camping. However, we believe the amount of space devoted to our
outdoor product categories limits the extent of their offerings in these areas. - S : '

Discount Chains and Mass Merchants. These stores generally range in size from approximately 50,000 to over
200,000 square feet and are primarily located in shopping centers, free-standing sites or regional malls. Hunting, fishing and
camping merchandise and apparel represent a small portion of the store assortment, and of their total sales.

- " ATV and Boat Dealers. In many markets, the retail' ATV and boat industries are served by franchise and
independent dealers. Although most competitors are primarily local in focus, some of these companies operate retail ATV or
boat stores on a national or regional basis. We are subject to competition from dealers that sell the same brands of new ATVs
or boats that we sell and from dealers that sell other brands of ATVs or boats that we do not represent in a particular market.
Certain ATV or boat manufacturers may designate specific marketing and sales areas within which only one dealer of a given
brand may operate. We may also be impacted by various state franchise or dealer protection-laws from featuring a particular
brand of ATV or boat within any area that is served by another dealer of the same brand; and .we may need manufacturer
approval to relocate or feature a particular brand in a new store. . . L

" .4 I oo

Power Shops. Qur power shop operations are subject to competition from independent ATV and boat service shops
and service center chains. We believe that the principal competitive factors in the service and repair industry, are price,
location, the use of factory-approved replacement parts, expemse with the particular ATV and boat lines, and customer
service, . o e !

Marinas and Marine Supply Stores. There are national chains that sell marine accessories and supplies. These
products can also be found in a wide range of.other retail outlets, including marine dealers, marina shops boat service and
repair shops, sporting goods suppliers and mass merchants. | .. - : Y

GOVERNMENT REGULATION . -, e

We operate in highly regulated industries. A number of federal, state and local laws and.regulations affect our
business. In every state in which we operale, we-must obtain various licenses or permits in order to operate our business.

Because we sell firearms at all of our retail stores, we are subject to regulation by the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco,
Firearms and Explosives, or BATFE. Each store has a federal firearms licenise permitting the sale-of firearms, and our
distribution center has obtained a federal firearms license to store firearms. Qur federal firearms licenses permit gunsmith
activities at each of our stores. We have also obtained in certain stores a federal license to sell black powder used to shoot
muzzle-loading firearms. Certain states require a state license to sell firearms and we have obtained these licenses for the
states in which we operate. o . . . N

We must comply with federal state and local regulatlons 1ncludmg the Natnonal Flreanns Act and the federal Gun
Control Act, which require us, among other things, to maintain federal firearms licenses for our locations and perform a pre-
transfer background check in connection with all firearms purchases. We perform this background check using either the
FBI-managed National Instant Criminal Background Check System, or NICS, or a comparable state government-managed .
system that relies on NICS and any additional information collected by the state, a state point of contact or POC. The federal
categories of prohibited purchasers are the prevailing minimum for all states. States (and, in some cases, local goyernments)
on occasion enact laws that further restrict permissible purchasers of firearms. These background check systems confirm ,
either that a transfer can be made, deny the transfer or require that the transfer be delayed for further review, and provide us
with a transaction number for the proposed transfer. We are required to record the transaction number on BATFE Form 4473
and retain this form in our records for 20 years for auditing purposes for each approved, denied or delayed transfer.

._W e are also subject to numerous other federal, state ahd local laws regarding ﬁrearm sale proce;lures, record
keeping, inspection and reporting, including adhering to minimum age restrictions regarding the purchase or possession of
firearms or ammunition, residency requirements, applicable waiting periods, importation regulations, and regulations
pertaining to the shipment and transportation of firearms. The Protection of Lawful Commerce in Arms Act, which became
effective in October 2005, prohibits civil hablhty actions from bemg brought or continued against manufacturers,
distributors, dealers or importers of firearms or ammunition for damages, injunctions or other relief resulting from the misuse
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of their-products by others. The legislation does not preclude traditional product liability actions. From time to time, federai,
state or local governiments consider proposed bills relating to the sale of firearms, such as laws that confirm or support an
individual’s right to possess a firearm or laws that would further restrict or prohlbn certain firearm sales. r

‘We are subject to a variety of federal, state and local laws and regulauons relalmg to, among other things, protection
of the environment, human health and safety, advertising, pricing, weights and measures, product safety, and other matters.
Some of these laws affect or restrict the manner in which we can sell certain items such as hand guns, black powder,
ammunition, bows, knives and other products. Our ATV and boat dealership operations may be impacted by various state
franchise or dealership protection laws that may prohibit or restrict our ability to feature a particular brand of ATV or boat
within any area that is served by another dealer of the same brand, and we may need manufacturer approval to relocate or
feature a particular brand in a new store. State and local laws and regulations governing hunting, fishing, boating, ATVs and
other outdoor activities can also affect our business. We believe that we are in substantial compliance with the terms of such
laws and that we have no liabilities under such laws that we expect could-cause a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations or financial condition.

In addition, many of our imported products are subject to existing or potential duties, tariffs or quotas, that may-iimit
the quantity of products that we may import into the .S, and other countries or impact the cost of such products. To date,
quotas in the operation of our busmcss have not restnctcd us, and customs duties have not compr:scd a material portion of the
total cost of our products. S A 1,

PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

Each of “Gander Mountain,”**Gander Mountain Guide Series,” “Gander Mtn.,” “Overton’s,” “Gladiator,” and
“Dockmate” and our logos has been registered as a service mark or trademark with the United States Patent and Trademark
Office. In addition, we have other pending applications for additional trademarks, including “We Live Qutdoors.” We also
own other registered and unregistered trademarks and service marks utilized in our business,

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
The following table sets forth the name, age and positions of each of our executive officers as of April 1, 2008.

A

Name Age - . Pasition : Ly

Mark R. Baker ..cc.ccoevceiiieiincen. 50 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

49  Executive Vice President, Merchandisingand Marketing
54  Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Richard . Vazquez...
JoAnn Bailey Boldt

Mark A. Bussard..........ccccoecveeriue. - 44 Sentor Vice President, Retail Sales ;

Kerry D). Graskewicz ....oocoovvcirinnne 43 Senior Vice President, Inventory Management ., - . . : '
Eric R. Jacobsen.........ccccevevevnennnnen. 51 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Robert J. Vold.....ocuenee.ee. S ... 49  Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Mark R. Baker, an avid outdoorsman, was appointed president in February 2004 and has served as our chief
executive officer since September 2002. Mr. Baker was an independent consultant-from August 2001 through September
2002. From May 1996 though July 2001, he served in various positions with Home Depot Inc., including executive vice
president, chief operating officer and chief merchandising officer from Aprit 1999 to July 2001. Prior to joining Home Depot,
Mr. Baker held senior leadership positions in the retail sector, serving in various management positions for Knox Hardware -
and Lumber from 1980 thréugh 1988, as vice president of merchandising and marketing of Scotty’s Home Improvement

"Centers from 1988 through 1992 and as executive vice president of merchandising of HomeBase from 1992 through 1996.
Mr. Baker is a director of The Scotts Company, a public company that manufactures and markets lawn and garden products.

'
r . [N

Richard J. Vazque joined our company as executive vice president, merchandising in August 2005 and assumed
responsibility for marketing in November 2005. Prior to joining our company, Mr. Vazquez served.in various positions at
Home Depot Inc. from 1994 to 2005, most recently as vice president, merchandising and marketing, Mexico Division. He |
served as vice president, merchandising and marketing for Home Depot’s Expo Design Center froni 2002 to 2004; and
general merchandising director, Chile and Argentina, from 1996 to 2001.

. JoAnn Bailey Boldt joined the company in+1999 as Director, Human Resources and was promoted to Vice.
President, Human Résources, in April 2005. Ms. Boldt.is currently-the ¢ompany’s Senior Vice President, Human Resources,
having been appointed in June 2007. Prior to joining the company, Ms. Boldt was with Wells Fargo Mortgage and ADP,
among others. . .
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Mark A. Bussard was named senior vice president of retail sales in December 2006, with responsibility for driving
sales and increasing communication between the stores and the merchant and marketing teams. He began his career at Gander
Mountain in 1994 as a store manager in Michigan and progressed through roles as district manager and regional manager. In
2002, he joined the corporate staff, where he led the hunting and fishing merchant teams as divisional vice president. Before
joining Gander Mountain; Mr. Bussard served as a store manager and as a regional recruiter of store managers.for Quality
Stores, Inc. - :

Kerry D. Graskewicz joined Gander Mountain in October 2005 as Vice President, Merchandise Planning and
Replenishment. He was appointed Senior Vice President, lnventory Management in February 2008, From 2003 to 2005 he
held various positions at Organized Living, most recently serving as Vice President of Merchandise
Planning/Allocation/Space. Between 1992 and 2002 he progressed through several roles at Bath and Body Works, the last of
which was Vice President of Merchandise Planning/Inventory Management. He began his career at May Department stores
and has also held positions at Victoria’s Secret in merchandise planning and at Venture: Stores in inventory management.

Eric R. Jacobsen joined us in May 2005 as senior vice president, general counsel and secretary. From November
1998 to November 2004, he served as general counsel for Northwestern Corporation, serving most recently as senior vice
president and.general counsel, and from 1995 to 1998 he served as vice president, general counsel and secretary of Lodgenet
Entertainment Corporation. Previously, he was a partner in the law firm of Manatt, Phelps & Phillips in Los Angeles,
California, specializing in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Jacobsen holds a JD-MBA degree from the
University of Southern California.

Robert J. Vold was named senior vice president, chief financial officer and treasurer in January 2007. He joined
Gander Mountain in October 2005 as vice president, finance. Mr. Vold previously spent seventeen years in positions of
increasing responsibility in finance at Norstan, Inc. mcludmg chief financial officer. He began his career with Arthur
Andersen LLP. "

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Risks Related to Our Business

v

. i

Our current business strategy that focuses on large-format retail stores has not been proven successful on a long-term
basis and may negatively impact our operating results.

In fiscal 2003, we began implementing our current business strategy that focuses on large-format retail stores. The
viability of this business strategy has not been proven on a long-term basis. We have transitioned from opening '
approximately 30,000-square-foot stores to predominantly opening stores ranging from 50,000 to 120,000 square feet. The
results we achieved at our small-format stores may not be indicative of the results that we may achieve at our new
large-format stores. The large format increases our operatmg costs per store, but may not lead to proportionately increased -

. revenues per store, OQur mix of higher and lower- -margin merchandise in our large-format stores differs from the merchandise
mix in our small-format stores, and therefore, may negatively impact our gross margins in our large-format stores, We cannot
assure you that we will be successful in operating our large-format stores on a profitable basis. If a large-format store is
unproﬁtable the impact on our financial results could be greater than the impact of an unprofitable small-format store. .

Our.concentration of stores in the Great Lakes region of the United States makes us susceptlhle to adverse conditions
in this region, including atypical weather, o '

1
1

The majority of our stores are located in the Great Lakes region of the United States. Our growth may result in other
regional concentrations over time, such as in Texas and Florida. As a result, our operations are more susceptible to regional
factors than the operations of more geographically diversified competitors. These factors include regional economic and
weather conditions, natural disasters, demographic and population changes and governmental regulations in the states in
which we operate. Environmental changes and disease epidemics affecting fish or game populations in any concentrated
region may also affect our sales. If a concentrated region were to suffer an economic downtum or other adverse event, our
operating results could suffer. . .

: Coe ! : .

Qur results of operations may be harmed by atypical weather conditions. Many of our stores are located in areas that
traditionally expetience seasonably cold weather, Abnormally warm weather conditions could reduce our sales of seasonal
iterns and harm our operating results. Moreover, significant snowfalls or other adverse weather on peak shopping days,
particularly during the holiday season, could adversely impact our sales if potential customers chooSc not to shop during
those days.
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Our operating results are subject to seasonal fluctuations. . - ' |

We experience substantial seasonal fluctuations in our sales and operating results. We gencrated approximately 60%
of our net sales in our third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2007, which include the peak hunting and holiday seasons. We incur
significant additional expenses in the third and fourth fiscal quarters due to higher purchase volumes and increased staffing in
our stores. If, for any reason, we miscalculate the demand for our products ot our product mix during the third or fourth fiscal:
quarters, our sales in these quarters could decline, resulting in higher labor costs as a percentage of sales, significantly lower
margins and excess inventory, which could cause our annual operating results to suffer and our stock price to decline
significantly. Due to our significant seasonality, the possible adverse impact from other risks associated with our business,
including atypical weather, consumer spending levels, and general business conditions, is potentially greater if any such risks
occur during our peak sales seasons. - '

The continued growth and eperation of our business'is dependent upon the availability of adequate capital. -

The continued growth and operation of our business depends on the availability of adequate capital, which in tum
depends in large part on cash flow generated by our business and the avatlability of equity and debt financing. We cannot
assure you that our operations will generate positive cash flow or that we will be able to obtain equity or debt financing on
acceptable terms or at all. Our credit facility contains provisions that restrict our ability to incur additional indebtedness or
make substantial asset sales that might otherwise be used to finance our expansion. Security interests in substantially all of
our assets, which may further limit our access to certain capital markets or lending sources, secure our obligations under the
credit facility. The actual availability of funds under our credit facility is limited to specified percentages of our eligible
inventory and accounts receivable. The value of our eligible inventory is subject to periodic adjustment based on independent
valuations performed on behalf of the banks. Any downward adjustment in the value of our inventory resulting from an
independent valuation, whetlier based on an assessment of the nature and quality of our inventory or a perceived increase in
the difficulty of selling collateral under current economic conditions, would adversely affect our availability. Moreover,
opportunities for increasing our cash on hand through sales of inventory would be partially offset by reduced availability
under our credit facility. As a result, we cannot assure you that we will be able to finance our future expansion plans.

v
.

Our expansion mto new, unfamiliar markets presents mcreased risks that may pre\ ent us from being profitable in
these new markets.

Pursuant to our growth strategy, we arc opening stores in new markets. In these new markets, we may have less
familiarity with local customer preferences, difficulties in atiracting customers due to a reduced level of customer familiarity
with our brand, difficulties in hiring a sufficient number of qualified store associates and other challenges. In addttion, entry
into new markets may bring us into competition with new, unfamiliar competitors. We cannot assure you that we will be’ -
successful in operating our stores in new markets on a profitable basis.

Our expansion strategy includes further penetration of our existing markets, which could cause sales at our existing
stores to decline.

Pursuant to our expansion strategy, we are opening additional stores in our existing markets. Because our new,
larger stores typically draw customers from a greater area, a new store may draw customers away from any existing stores in .
the general service area and may cause sales performance and customer counts at those existing stores to decline, which may
adverscly affect our overall operating results. ' .
We are expandmg mto new product areas, such as boats, with which we have limited experience and which may not
be profitable for us.’ . ; '

In fiscal 2007, we began to distribute Tracker boats through many of our large-format stores. We have limited
experience in selling.-boats and entering the boat business on a large scale represents a significant investment of resources by -
us. We may not realize a return on this investment and our boat business may not generate profits while diverting the
attention of management and store-level personnel away from businesses with which we have greater familiarity. [n addition,
Tracker is affiliated with one of our primary competitors, Bass Pro Shops, which may adversely affect our relationship with
Tracker. . .

We are continually looking for new products to introduce at our stores and believe that entering new product areas is
an important part of our growth strategy, We cannot assure you that we will be able to identify new product areas or
successfully introduce them at our stores. In addition, the identification, introduction and operation of these new businesses
may distract our attention from existing product areas and adversely affect our overall operating results.
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An inability to find suitable new store sites or delays in new store openings could materially affect our financial.
perfermance.

*
'

In order to meet our growth objectives, we will need to secure an adequate number of suitable new store sites. We
require that all proposed store sites satisfy our criteria regarding cost and location, In addition, we are experiencing increased
competition for store sites as our competitors seck to expand. Local land use and other regulations applicable to the types of
stores we desire to construct may impact our ability to find suitable locations, and also influence the cost of constructing new
stores. We cannot assure you that we will be able to find a sufficient number of suitable new sites for any planned expansion
in any future period. '

Our expected financial performance is based on our new stores opening on expected dates. It is possible that events
such as problems with our credit, delays in the entitlements process or construction delays caused by permitting or licensing
issues, material shortages, labor issues, weather delays or other acts of god, discovery of contaminants, accidents, deaths or
injunctions could delay planned new store openings beyond their expected dates or force us to abandon planned openings
altogether. Any failure on our part to recognize or respond to these issues may adversely affect our sales growth, which in
turn may adversely.affect our future operating results. : . ‘ - ‘

If we lose key management or are unable to attract and retain the talent required for our business, our operating
results and financial condition could suffer. -

Our performance depends largety on the leadership efforts and abilities of our senior management and other key
employees. None of our employees, except certain senior executive officers, have an employment agreement with us. If we -
lose the services of one or more of our key employees, we may not be able to successfully manage our business or achieve
our growth objectives. As our business grows, we will need to attract and retain additional qualified personnel in a timely
manner. ‘ : .

We rely on a single distribution center for our retail business and a single fulfillment center for our Internet and
catalog business, and if there is a natural disaster or other serious disruption at either facility, we may be unable to
deliver merchandise effectively to our stores or customers. . - ' '

We rely on a single distribution center in Lebanon, Indiana for our retail business, and a single fulfiliment center in
Greenville, North Carolina for our Internet and.catalog business . Any natural disaster or other serious disruption at either
facility due to fire, tornado, flood or any other cause could damage our on-site inventory or impair our ability to use such
distribution center or fulfillment center. While we maintain business interruption insurance, as well as general property
insurance, the amount of insurance coverage may not be sufficient to cover our losses in such an event. Any of these
occurrences could impair our ability to adequately stock our stores or fulfill customer orders and harm our operating results.

Our planned growth may strain our business infrastructure, which could adversely affect our operations and financial
condition.

. Over time, we expect to significantly expand the size of our retail store network. As we grow, we will face the risk
that our existing resources-and systems, including management resources, accounting and finance personnel and operating
systems, may be inadequate to support our growth, We cannot assure you that we will be able to retain the personnel ormake
the changes in our systems that may be required to support our growth, Failure to secure these resources and implement these
systems could have a material adverse effect on our operating results. [n addition, the retention of additional personnel and
the implementation of changes and enhancements to our systems will require capital expenditures and other increased costs
that could also have a material adverse impact on our operating resuits,

+-Qur expansion in new and existing markets and our acquisition of Overton’s may also create new distribution and
merchandising challenges, including strain on our distribution facilities, an increase in information to be processed by our
management information systems and diversion of management attention from operations towards the opening of new stores
and markets. We intend to upgrade and replace certain of our current management information systems in order to support
our growth strategy. Based on our current growth strategy, we will need to increase our distribution capabilitics within the
next few years, which could disrupt our business operations. To the extent that we are not able to meet these additional
challenges, our sales could decrease and our operating expenses could increase.
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We are implementing substantial informatioa systems changes in support of our business that might disrupt our
operations.

"
]

Our success depends on our ability to efficiently source, distribute and sell merchandise through our stores utilizing
appropriate management information systems. We are in the process of implementing modifications to our technology that
will involve updating or replacing our information systems with successor systems over the course of several years. There are
inherent risks associated with replacing or modifying these systems, including supply chain disruptions that could affect our
ability to deliver products to our stores in an efficient'manner: In addition; in updating and replacing our systems, we may be
unable-to accurately capture and transfer data. We may be unable to successfully launch these new systems, the launch of
these new systems could result in business disruptions.or the actual cost may exceed the estimated cost of these new systems,
any of which could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Additionally, there is no
assurance that successfully implemented new systems will deliver the expected value to us. ‘-

Our ability to operate profitably is uncertain.

Through much of our history, we have éxperienced net losses and.negative cash flow from operations. As.of .
February 2, 2008, we had an accumulated deficit of $83.5 million. We have increased our expenses significantly to expand
our store base. We may not generate sufficient revenue to offset these expenditures and may incur losses that we would not
incur if we developed ourbusiness more slowly. If our revenue grows more slowly than we anticipate, or if our cost of goods
sold or operating expenses exceed our expectatlons our operating results would be harmed.

Qur business depends on our ablhty to meet our lahor needs. '

Our success depends in part upon our ability 10 ‘attract, motivate and retain a sufficient number of qualified -
employees, including store managers, assistant managers, customer service representatives and store associates, who
understand and appreciate our “We Live Outdoors™ culture and are able to adequately represent this culture to our customers.
Qualified individuals of the requisite caliber and number needed to fill. these positions may be in short supply in. some areas,
and the turnover rate in the retail industry is high. If we are unable to hire and retain sales associates capable of consistently
providing a high level of customer service, as demonstrated by their enthusiasm for our culture and knowledge of our
merchandise, our business could be materially adversely affected. Although none of our employees is currently covered by
collective bargaining agreements, we cannot guarantee that our employees will not elect to be represented by labor unions in
the future, which could increase our labor.costs. Additionally, competition for qualified employees could require us to pay
higher wages to attract a sufficient number of employees. An inability to recruit and retain a sufficient number of qualified
individuals in the future may delay the planned openings of new stores. Any such delays, any material increases in employee
turnover rates at existing stores or any increases in labor costs could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition or operating results. ;- O e - -

If we fail to anticipate changes in consumer demands, including regional preferences, in a timely manner, our
operatmg results could suffer. - . o
Cal

Our products appeal to consumers who regularl)n hunt f' sh, camp and boat. The preferences of these consumers
cannot be predicted with certainty and are subject to change. In addition, due to different types of fish and game stocks and
different weather conditions found in different markets, it is critical that our stores stock appropriate products for their
markets. Our success depends on our ability to identify product trends in a variety of markets as well as to anticipate, gauge
and react to changing consumer demands in these markets in a timely manner. If we misjudge the market for our products,
our sales may decline significantly and we may face significant excess inventory of some products and missed opportunities
for other products, which could harm our operating results. . .

Failure te protect the integrity and security of our customers’ information could expose us to litigation and materially
damage our standing with our customers.

The increasing costs associated with information security—such as increased investment in technology, the costs of
compliance with consumer protection laws and costs resulting-from consumer fraud—could cause our business and results of
operations to suffer materially, There can be no assurance that our efforts to protect customer and confidential information
will be successful. In addition, advances in computer capabilities, new discoveries in the field of cryptography or other _
developments may not prevent the compromise of our customer transaction processing capabilities and personal data even if
we implement them. If any compromise of our information security were to occur, it could have a material adverse effect on
our reputation, business, operating results and financial condition and may increase the costs we incur 10 protect against such
information security breaches or subject us to fines, penaliies or litigation.
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Our ability to use certain of our trademarks in direct marketing activities is uncertain. : '

We and one of our competitors, Cabela’s Incorporated, have a dispute regarding the enforceability and scope ofa
non-competition agreement entered into in 1996. Although the non-competition provisions of the agreement expired in June
2003, our competitor contends that a contingent trademark licensing provision may require us to grant it a license that would
restrict our ability to use certain of our trademarks that were in existence in 1996 in a “direct marketing business” (as defined
in the agreement).). In July2004; we filed a complaint in the U.S. District Court for the District of Minnesota seeking
clarification as to the interpretation and enforceability of the non-competition agreement. In July 2007, the U.S. District
Court issued an order granting our motion for summary judgment, ruling that the contingent trademark licensing provision -.
was unenforceable. The order provides, in part, that we are free to use our trademarks in all respects including direct
marketing to consumers. Cabela’s has appealed the. ruling to the U.S. Court of Appeals, 8th Circuit. We are not able to
predict the ultimate outcome of this litigation, but it could be costly and disruptive. The total costs may not be reasonably
estimated at this time. If the July 2007 order is reversed, subsequent proceedings might impact the manner in which we
market our products in certain distribution channels in the future. S :

We may be named in litigation, which may result in substantial costs and divert management’s attention and
resources. ; '

-We face legal risks in our businéss, including claims. from disputes with our employees and our former employees
and claims associated with general commercial disputes, product liability and other matters. Risks associated with legal
liability often are difficult to assess or quantify and their existence and magnitude can remain unknown for significant periods
of time. While we maintain director and officer insurance, as well as general and product liability insurance, the amount of:
insurance coverage may not be sufficient to cover a claim and the continued availability of this insurance cannot be assured.
We may in the future be the target of litigation and this litigation may result in substantial costs and divert management’s
attention and resources. : ) : :

Our comparable store sales will fluctuate and may not be a meaningful indicator of future performance.

Our comparable store sales have fluctuated significantly. Changes in our comparable store sales results could
adversely affect the price of our common stock. Ameng the factors that have historically affected, and will continue to affect,
our comparable store sales are: competition, our new store openings, general and regional economic conditions, consumer
trends and preferences, timing and effectiveness of promotional events, toss of key vendors, disruption to our supply chain,
seasonality, natural disasters and adverse weather. There is no assurance that we will be able to maintain or increase our
comparable store sales over time.

QOur computer hardware and software systems are vulnerable to damage that could harm our business.

Our success, in particular our ability to successfully manage inventory levels; largely depends upon the efficient
operation of our computer hardware and software systems. We use management information systems to track inventory
information at the store level, communicate customer information and aggregate daily sales, margin and promotional
information. These systems are vulnerable to damage or interruption from:

« fire, flood, tomado and other natural disasters; -

+  power loss, computer system failures, internet and telecommunications or data network failures, operator

negligence, improper operation by or supervision of employees, physicat and electronic loss of data or security
breaches, misappropriation and similar events; . ' .

e computer viruses; and

4

+  upgrades, installations of major software releases and integration with new systems.

Any failure that causes an interruption in our systems processing could disrupt our operations and resuit in-reduced
sales. We have centralized the majority of our computer systems in our corporate office. It is possible that an event or disaster
at our corporate office could materially and adversely affect the performance of our company and the ability of each of our
stores to operate efficiently. = ' .
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If any of our key vendors or manufacturers fails to supply us with merchandise or changes key business terms, we .
may not be able to meet the demands of our customers and our sales could decline.

We depend on merchandise purchased from our vendors and sourced from third-party manufacturers to obtain
products for our stores. Our vendors and manufacturers could discontinue selling products to us at any time. The loss of any
key vendor or manufacturer for any reason could limit our ability to offer products that our customers.want to purchase. In
addition, we believe many of our vendors obtain their products from China, Taiwan, Korea, Mexico and other foreign
countries and we source products from third-party manufacturers in foreign countries. A vendor could discontinue seiling to
us products manufactured in foreign countries at any time for reasons that may or may not be in our controi or the vendor’s
control, including foreign government regulations, political or financial unrest, war, trade restrictions, tariffs, currency
exchange rates, the outbreak of pandemics, disruption or delays in shipments, port security, changes in local economic
conditions and other issues. In addition, to the extent that any foreign supplier utilizes labor or other practices that vary from
those commonly accepted in the U.S., we could be adversely affected by any resulting negative publicity or otherwise.
Changes in commercial practices of our key vendors or manufacturers, such as changes in vendor support and incentives or
changes in credit or payment terms, could negatively impact our results. Our operating results could also suffer if we are
unable to promptly replace a vendor or manufacturer who is unwilling or unable to satisfy our requirements with a vendor or
manufacturer providing equally appealing products.

We recently acquired Overton’s and may pursue additional strateglc acqmsmons, which could have an adverse
impact on our business.

We recently acquired Qverton’s and we may from time to time acquire complementary businesses in the future.
Acquisitions may result in difficulties in assimilating acquired compantes, and may result in the diversion of our capital and
our management’s attention from other business issues and opportunities. We may not be able to successfully integrate
companies that we acquire, including their personnel; financial systems, distribution, operations and general store- operating
procedures. If we fail to successfully integrate acquired companies, our business could suffer. In addition, the integration of
any acquired business, and its financial results, into ours may adversely affect our operating results.

Risks associated with Internet sales could adversely affect our business.
L
Internet sales through the websites that were acquired as part of the Overton’s business and any website store that
we may launch in the future are subject to numerous risks that could result in lower revenue, increase our costs or otherwise
adversely affect our business, including:

*  operating problems, system failures and reliance on third party computer hardware/software providers;

+  rapid technological change, including a failure to offer new website functionality that customers favor or
increases in software filters that may inhibit our ability to market our products through email messages;

*  extensive federal and state regulations, including liability for online content and violations of privacy laws;
. credit card fraud;

+  risks related to the failure of the computer systems that operate our websites and their related support systems,
including computer viruses, breaches of Imternet security or similar disruptions;

+ failure of telecommunications, power services or other necessary infrastructure resulting in website downtime,
call center closure or other problems; and

»  failure to timely and accurately fulfill customer orders.

There is no assurance that our internet operations will achieve sales and profitability growth.
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Risks associated with catalog sales could-adversely affect our business.

There are risks associated with our catalog sales channel that could result in lower revenue, increase our costs or
otherwise adversely affect our business, including: ) .

Risks Related to Our Industry
3N . e

customer acceptance of our catalog presentations and lower than expected response rates,

increases in paper and printing costs, postage rates and other costs relating to our catalog mailings;

¥

a failure in the timing of design, production or deliveries of catalogs;:

failure to timely and accurately fulfill customer orders;
the implementation of government-mandated return policies that would require us to pay for all returns;

ouf inability to adequately replenish our customer database; and

\

the accuracy, breadth and depth of the information contained in our customer database so0 we can correctly
analyze our mailing lists and maximize our customer targeting efforts. ’

In addition, catalog sales may decline as a result of customers switching from catalog purchases to intemet
purchases. ' : ' :

.

A downturn in the economy may affect consumer i)urchases of discretionary items, which could harm our operating

results.

In general, our sales result from discretionary spending by our customers. Discretionary spending is affected by
many factors, including, among others:

weather,
general business conditions,
interest ratgs,
inflation,
the availabilit'y of consumer c‘red'it. and consumer debt levels,
taxation,

"energy and fuel prices,
unemployment trr.:nds.,
natural disasters,
terrorist attacks and acts of war, and

other matters that influence consumer confidence and spending.

Changes in energy costs impact our business, both by influencing the cost of operating our stores and transporting
goods, and by affecting consumer spending patterns. Our customers’ purchases of discretionary items, including our
products, could decline during periods when disposable income is lower or periods of actual or perceived unfavorable
economic conditions. If this occurs, our operating results could suffer.
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Competition in the outdoor products industry could limit our growth and harm cur operating results.

The retail market for outdoor products is highly fragmented and competitive, with competition increasing in recent
periods. Our current and prospective competitors include many large companies that have substantially’greater market
presence, name recognition, and financial, marketing and other resources than we do. In addition, most of our largest
competitors have undertaken accelerated growth strategies. We compete directly or indirectly with the following categories
of companies:

" t !

* large format entertainment-focused. outdoor. retailers, such as Bass Pro Shops and Cabela’s;

= other outdoor-focused chains, such as Sportsman’s Warchouse;
* catalog and Internet-based retailers, such.as Bass Pro Shops, Cabela’s, and The Sportsman’s Guide;
»  traditional sporting goods chains, such as Dick’s Sporting Goods, The Sports Authority and Academy;

»  discount chains and mass merchants, such as Wal-Mart anid Kmart;
+ ATV and boat dealers, local specialty stores and repair shops; and

*  marinas and marine supply stores, such as West Marine and Boater’s World.

' "
'

Pressure from our competitors could require us to reduce our prices or increase our spending for advertising and
promotion, which could erode our margins. Increased competition in markets in which we have stores or the adoption by
competitors of innovative store formats, aggressive pricing strategies and retail sale methods, such as thé Internet, could
cause us to lose market share and could have a material adverse effect on our busmess fi nanc1al condition and results of
operations. ' v v

We may be subject to product liability claims relating to our sale of outdoor equipment and firearms, and our
insurance may not be sufficient to cover'damages related to those claims.

We may incur damages due to lawsuits relating to equipment that we sell. We may also be subject to lawsuits
relating to the design, manufacture or sale of our owned-brand products. In addition, we sell and service rifles, shotguns and
handguns, along with archery equipment, which are products that are associated with an increased risk of injury and death.
We may incur damages due to lawsuits relating to the improper use of firearms sold by us, including lawsuits by
municipalities or other organizations attempting to recover costs from firearm manufacturers and retailers relating to the
misuse of firearms. We may be subject to lawsuits relating to our performance of background checks on firearms purchasers
as mandated by state and federal law. We also sell and service boats and all-terrain vehicles (ATVs), which are motorized
vehicles designed for off-road use. Lawsuits relating to the products we sell could result in substantial liability, which would
adversely affect our business and financial condition. There is a risk that claims or liabilities relating to products we sell will
exceed our insurance coverage and we may be unable to retain adequate liability insurance in the future. in addition, the
commencement of lawsuits agamst us relating to our sale of outdoor equipment or ﬁrearms could cause us to reduce our sales
of those products. .

Increased regulahun of the sale of firearms could cause us fo reduce’ our firearm sa]es, which could harm our
operating results. : :

Increased federal, state or local regulation, including taxation, of the sale of firearms in our current markets or in
future markets in which we may operate could cause us to reduce our firearm sales or adversely affect our margins on these
sales. Sales of firearms represent a significant peréentage of our net sales and are critical in drawing customers to our stores.
A substantial reduction in-our sales or margins on sales of firearms due to the establishment of new regulations could harm
our operating results. (. . v - :

Some of the products and services we sell are hlghly regulated, which could lead to hlgh compliance costs.
We are subject to regulation by the Bureau of Aleohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Exploswes, the Consumer Product

Safety Commission, the Occupational Safety and Health Admihistration and similar state regulatory agencies. Compliance
with these regulatory requirements is costly and these costs could increase in the future, If we fail to comply with government
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and industry safety standards, we may be subject to claims, lawsuits; fines and adverse publicity that could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. In addition, regulations issued by the Bureau of
Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives may delay our ability to change certain of our officers and prohibit some
individuals from serving in certain of our offices. -

Risks Related to Our Common Stock.

Pratt family members, Erickson family members and their affiliates collectively own a controlling interest in our
company and these individuals and entities may have interests that differ from those of our other shareholders.

Members of the Pratt family, the Erickson family and their affiliates collectively own a controlling interest in us
through a combination of their individual stock ownership and their beneficial interest in certain entities that hold our shares.
While neither the Pratt family nor the Erickson family, together with their respective affiliates, owns a controlling interest in
our company, each of them owns in excess of 30% of our outstanding voting stock. As a result, these shareholders are able to
individually influence and collectively control matters requiring approval by our shareholders, including the election of
directors and the approval of mergers or other extraordinary transactions. They may have interests that differ from or
otherwise conflict with those of other shareholders and may vote in a way with which you disagree and that may be adverse
to your interests. The concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in control
of our company, could deprive our shareholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for their common stock as part of a
sale of our company and might ultimately affect the market price of our common stock.

No members of the Pratt family, the Erickson family or their affiliates are subject to any contractual obligations to
retain their interests. Certain individual members of the Erickson family and certain of the entities described above have
rights to cause us to register their shares. A sale by these shareholders of a large interest in us, or the perception that such a
sale could occur, could cause the market price of our common stock to decline significantly. :

Conflicts of interest may arise as a result of the significant interest in our company held by the Pratt family, the | . |
Erickson family and their affiliates.

Conflicts of interest may arise as a result of the significant ownership interests in us by the Pratt family, the Erickson
family and their affiliates. David C. Pratt is the chairman of our board of directors and two members of our board of directors
are members of the Erickson family, including Ronald Erickson, our vice chairman, and Gerald Erickson. We may face
unavoidable conflicts of interest when our board of directors faces decisions that affect both us and either Pratt family or .
Erickson family interests. .

We can issue shares of preferred stock without shareholder approval, which could adversely affect the rights of,
common shareholders.

Our articles of incorporation permit us to establish the rights, privileges, preferences and restrictions, including
voting rights, of future series of our preferred stock and to issue such stock without approval from our shareholders, The
rights of holders of our common stock may suffer as a result of the rights granted to holders of preferred stock that may be
issued in the future. In addition, we could issue preferred stock to prevent a change in control of our company, depriving
common shareholders of an opportunity 1o sell their stock at a price in excess of the prevailing market price.

Certain provisions of Minnesota law may make a takeover of our company more difficult, depriving shareholders of
opportunities to sell shares at above- market prices. o .

Certain provisions of Minnesota law may have the effect of discouraging attempts to acquire us without the approval
of our board of directors. Section 302A.671 of the Minnesota statutes, with certain exceptions, requires approval of any
acquisition of the beneficial ownership of 20% or more of our voting stock then outstanding by a majority vote of our
shareholders prior to its consummation. In general, shares acquired in the absence of such approval are denied voting rights
and are redeemable by us at their then-fair market value within 30 days after the acquiring person failed to give a timely
information statement to us or the date the shareholders voted not to grant voting rights to the acquiring person’s shares.
Section 302A.673 of the Minnesota statutes generally prohibits any business combination by us, or any of our subsidiaries,
with an interested shareholder, which includes any shareholder that purchases 10% or more of our voting shares within four
years following such interested sharcholder’s share acquisition date, unless the business combination is approved by a
committee of all of the disinterested members of our board of directors before the interested shareholder’s share acquisition
date. Consequently, our common shareholders may lose opportunities to sell their stock for a price in excess of the prevailing
market price due 10 these protective measures.
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The price of our common stock is volatile.

The trading price of our common stock fluctuates substantially. Thesé fluctuations could cause you to lose part or all
of your investment in our shares of common slock The factors that could cause fluctuations mclude but are not limited to, -
the following: : : C . K

»  price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market from time to time;

*  signifi icant vo]anhty in the market price.and tradmg volume of outdoor and sporting goods compames and other
retail companies; oo '

= relatively few shares available for pubtic trading;
*  actual or anticipated changes in our sales and earnings, fluctuations in our operating results or the failure to
meet the expectations of financial market analysts and investorS‘ T - R

4 3

= investor perceptions of the outdoor products, spomng goods and marine industries, the retail mdustry in general
*  and our-company in pamcular ‘ 4

+ the operating and stock performance of comparable compantes;

= general economic conditions and trends;

*  major catastrophic cvents; T : ' ' v

* changes ip accounfing standards, policies, guidance, interpretation-or principles; ‘ : :

= adverse weather conditions in our markets;

* " regulatory changes;- '

*  loss of externalfunding so.urcés;

+  sales of large blocks of our stock or sales by insiders; or
i : L . . . -

. dcp;'irtures_of key pefsdnlrlel. ) \ ‘ -

*

We do not anticipate paying cash dividends_ onour shares of comman stock in the foreseeable future.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our shares of common stock. We currently intend to retain all
future earnings for the operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our shares of
common stock in the foreseeable future. Any payment of cash'dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our board of
directors and will depend upon our results of dperations, earnings, capital reqmrements ‘contractual restnctmns outstandmg
indebtedness and other factors deemed relevant by our board of directors. In addition, our credit facility restrlcts our ability to
pay cash dividends or other non-stock distribuitions on any shares of our capital stock.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

' - .
13 - B .

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters are located in Saint Paul, Minnesota where we lease approximately 63,000 square feet.
The initial term of this lease expires- March 31, 2020, and is subject to two renewal options of five years each. Renewal rent is
to be established at the then-current market rate. This lease also provides us with expansion options.

We currently lease 427,000 square feet in two buildings for our distribution center in Lebanon, Indiana. The first
building is approximately 225,000 square feet with an initial lease term that expires in 2011 and is subject to multiple five-
year renewal options.and rent escalation provisions. The second building is approximately 202,000 square feet with an initial
lease term that expires in 2010 and is subject to multiple one-year renewal options and rent escalation provisions.

We lease dll of our 113 stores, which are in various locations in Alabama, Arkansas, Colorado, Florida, 1llinois,
Indiana, lowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, New York, North Carolina, North Dakota,
Ohio, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, West ¥irginia and Wisconsin. Qur Bemidji, Minn., store is leased from
Holiday Stationstores, Inc.., a company controlled by the Erickson family. Our stores are generally teased for 10 to 15 years,
and most leases contain multiple five-year renewal options and rent escalation provisions.

Overton’s leases 383,000 square feet in a building in Greenville, North Carolina that functions as the fulfillment and
distribution center for its direct-to-consumer marketing business. Overton’s also leases 46,000 square feet of office space.

4

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Trademark Litigation On July 2, 2004, we filed a complaint in the U.S, District Court for the District of Minnesota
seeking declaratory relief that the contingent trademark licensing provision of a noncompetition agreement dated May 16,
1996, made between our predecessor and Cabela’s Incorporated, is invalid and unenforceable. Although the noncompetition
provisions of the noncompetition agreement expired in fune 2003, Cabela’s contends that a contingent trademark licensing
provision of the noncompetition agreement requires us to grant Cabela’s a license that would preclude our use of certain of
_our trademarks for direct marketing purposes. :

On July. 10, 2007, the U.S. District Court issued an order granting our motion for summary judgment, ruling that the
contingent trademark licensing provision was unenforceable. The order provides, in part, that we are free to use our
trademarks in all respects including direct marketing to consumers. Cabela’s has appealed the ruling to the U.S. Court of
Appeals, 8th Circuit. :

We are not able to predict the ultimate outcome of this litigation, but it could be costly and disruptive. The total
costs may not be reasonably estimated at this time. If the July {0, 2007 order is reversed, subsequent proceedings might
impact the manner in which we market our products in certain distribution channels in the future. Such an adverse result is
not expected to have.an affect on our marketing of products through our retail stores.. Nor would an unfavorable result

.preclude us from engaging in direct marketing activities using trademarks not in dispute. A favorable Tesult would confirm
our right to use the subject trademarks in all direct marketing activities. .

. Other Legal Claims Various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal course of business mlay be pending against
us from time to time. The subject matter of these proceedings typically relate to commercial disputes, employment issues,
product liability and other matters. As of the date of this report, we are not a party to any Jegal proceedings that are expected,
individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007.
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PART 11 . : o

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQurty SECURITIES ' . .

Shares of our common stock are traded on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “GMTN.” Qur,comimon
stock began trading on Aprit 21,-2004. The following table Shows the high and low sales prices of our common stock on the
Nasdaq Global Market for the penods indicated:

Fiscal 2007:

FIrst QUATTEE .....c.eovrivirsieeeereeteecee e ceeenssts s seessesseeseesnsesinestesessnsereessnesmesennemnnene 313,78 $9.36
SeCONA QUAEIIET ... ettt e e se et s et e e ensss et e s sbarsstenssaneeren $16.00 3$9.49
Thirtd QUATTET ...ttt eeeesrants ettt et ee e bR b b ee e aen 81119 $4.95
FOurth QUAEE ......oeve et ee s s st e et e s ree e n st ebeaneanan $5.83  34.00
Fiscal 2006:

FIISt QUATLET ...t cveireeeeer e easeeetetesae e see e ensemsessssesanteasentermanssnsansn s sensanesans $9.90 $6.05
SeCONA QUATTET .....ooveeieecirrr ettt et vass oot ee st sns e s s ebar s srnsesesesse e nesnnsees $9.97 $5.01
TRITD QUATTEE......civviviiii e et cr bt eses b e b s sne st e b s sans s ess srensseentenesbsasarsssanes $7.75 $4.95
Fourth QUATTEr ... v e e as s e s e sra s enneaen $1049 §7.31

On April 25, 2008, the last reported sale price for shares of our common stock on the Nasdaq Global Market was
$5.33 per share.

Holders

There were 89 hoiders of record of our common stock as of April 25, 2008.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

We did not ma};e any purchases of our equity securities during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007.
Dividends -

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our shares of common stock. We currently intend to retain all
future earnings for the operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipaté paying cash dividends on our shares of
common stock in the foreseeable future. Any payment of cash dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our board of
directors and will depend upon our results of operations, earnings, capital requirements, contractual restrictions, outstanding
indebtedness and other factors deemed relevant by our board of directors. [n addition, our credit facility restrlcts our ablllty to
pay cash dividends or other non-stock distributions on any shares of our capital stock.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

On December 6, 2007, we entered into stock purchase agreements with Gratco, LLC, an entity controlled by
David C. Pratt, our Chairman, and with Holiday Stationstores, Inc., an entity controlled by Ronald Erickson, our Vice
Chairman, and Gerald Erickson, a member of our board of directors, Pursuant to the agreements we sold an aggregate of
4,067,797 shares of common stock at $5.90 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $24.0 million. Gratco purchased ,
3,065,000 shares and Holiday Stationstores purchased 1,002,797 shares . The net proceeds were used to partially fund the
purchase price of Overton’s.

The shares were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933 upon issuance. We offered and sold the shares to the
purchasers in reliance on the exemption from registration provided by Rule 506 promulgated under Regulation D. We relied
on this exemption from registration based in part on representations made by the purchasers in the stock purchase
agreements.
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Company Stock Performance

The following graph compares the quarterly change in the cunmulative total shareholder return on our common stock
from April 21, 2004, which is the day our common stock began to trade publicly, through February 2, 2008 with the
cumulative total return on the Nasdag Composite Index and S&P Retailing Index. The comparison assumes $100 was
invested on April 21, 2004 in our common stock and in'each of the foregoing indices and assumes that dividends were
reinvested when and as paid. We have not declared dividends on our common stock. You should not consider shareholder
return over the indicated period to be indicative of future shareholder returns.

COMPARISON OF 47 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Gander Mountain Company, The NASDAQ Composite Index
And The S&P Retailing Group
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data is qualified by reference to and should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in Ttem § and our “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included in'Item 7. :

The selected financial data presented below under the heading “Statement of Operations Data” for the years ended
February 2, 2008, February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, and the selected financial data presented below under the heading
“Balance Sheet Data™ as of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007 have been derived from our audited qonsohdated financial
statements mcluded under Item 8.

The selected financial data presented below under the heading “*Statement of Operations Data” for the years ended
January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004 and the selected financial data presented below under the heading “Balance Sheet
Data™ as of January 28, 2006, January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004 have been denved from our audited consolidated
financial statements that are not required to be included in this report.

The fiscal year ended Februar.y 3, 2007 included 53 weeks. All other fiscal years presented include 52 weeks. The
unaudited selected financial data presented below under the heading “Operating Data,” for all periods have been derived from
our internal records of our operations, except for “Gross profit as a percentage of sales,” which is derived from our audited
consolidated financial statements. Our fiscal year ended February 2, 2008 is referred to'as fiscat 2007, our fiscal year ended
February 3, 2007 is referred to as fiscal 2006, our fiscal year ended January 28, 2006 is referred to as fiscal 2003, our fiscal
year ended January 29, 2005 is referred 1o as fiscal 2004, and our fiscal year ended Jarmary 3, 2004 is referred to as fiscal
2003. Qur fiscal year ending January 31, 2009 is referred to as fiscal 2008 :

Beginning with Ihis filing of our Form 10-k for fiscal 2007, the Company changed the presentation of its
consolidated statement of operations as a result of the acquisition of Overton’s, a direct marketing company, by the historical
retail-only Gander Mountain Company. Previously, we presented two-operating expense captions: “Store Operating
expenses” and “General and Administrative expenses™. These two captions are now combined. into the caption “Selling,
General and Administrative expenses”. This reclassification has been made for all years presented. -

'

Fiscal Year Ended(l)

February 2, February 3, . January 28, .- January 29, January 31,
2008 2007 . 2006 2005 2004
. ' (dollars in thousandé, except per share data)

Statement of Operatlons Data . ot o . )
SEIES . ittt . $969,403 $911,438 $804,474 5644014 $489,530
Cost of goods sold(2)...coeeciivrrien 728,649 686,722 612,029 479,662 370,532
Gross Profit ... .o.eecoeeeemninsiaeeeeerennns 240,754 224,716 192,445 . 164,352 118,998
Operating expenses: ) - ' '

Selling, general and administrative .

EXPENSES ..cervreenrrneereieensorsaesesesnasens 240,744 207,431 187,956 . 149,343 107,844
Exit costs, impairment and other . ' o . L '
Charges .....ocvcve e, 6,493 458 - 2,635 108 —

Pre-opening expenses et 4,836 3,245 6,555 8,194 4,921

Gain on insurance settlement.............. - {1,400 = — —

Gain on contract settlement ............... — — (2,500) — —
Income (loss) from operations............... (11,319) 14,982 (2,201) 6,707 6,233
Interest eXPense ....ccevveeeieeeerceeescerniennns 19,745 19,187 11,106 5,137 4.760
Debt conversion charge .....c....c...oorvns — 9,037 — — —
Income (loss) before income taxes ........ (31,064) (13,242) (13,307) 1,570 . 1,473
INCOMmE taX Provision ..o.c.ovveceesereennnn. ' 750 — — — —
Net income (1085) ... tevvvivnnc v, $(31.814) $(13,242) $(13,307)- $1,570 81,473
Loss applicable to common S S o :

shareholders .................... eeevesenrraasaees $(31.814) $(13,242) 5(13,307) $(2,735) $(15.050)
Basic and diluted loss applicable to . ’ g

common shareholders per share......... $(1.52) L $(0.88) $(0.93) '$(0.25) $(15.47)
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Historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations to be expected for future periods. See
Note 2 and Note 18 to our consolidated financial statements included in this report for a description of the method used to

compute basic and diluted net earnings (loss) per share.

Fiscal Year Ended(1)

February 2,

February 3, January 28, January 29, January 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
., . (dollars in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data i L ' :

Cash and cash equivalents ......... T $2,622 $1.342" $1,580 $1,033 3970
Inventories, net ........ et ant e naes © 403,683 -349,120 308,395 264,138 180,361
Goodwill and other intangible assets......: 73,901 2,837 2,837 2,837 2,837
Total assets .....ocoevreenrnnen, e 679,932 521,617 458,930 385,843 249,701
Borrowings under revolving credit. |, ~ ' A '

FACHIIY oo e © 246,013 168,485 174,936 114,441 102,058
Long term debt......ccoooooll oo, ‘ 64,173 16,421 30,953 11,757 —
Notes payable to affiliate — — = — 9,840
Total shareholders’ EQUILY -oeoerrreeerncans $193,820 5196,791 $149,825 £162,308 $64,498

Fiscal Year Ended(1)
February 2, February3, Januvary 28, " January 29, “January 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
- (dollars in thousands, except per square foot data)
Operating Data ' v SE : ‘ : .
Comparable store sales increase / ' o S '

(decrease)(1X(3). v enrmvnreieennins 5.4)% (1.1% (6.00% (2.5)% 11.5%
Number of stores at end of period......... 113 105+ .. 98 Lo 82 65
Total square feet at end of period «......... . "1 6,182916 5,483,029 4,999,813 3,773,835 2,533,223
Sales per square foot(d) ........... reremenees e $165 - 8175 $180 $205 ©§227
Gross profit as a percentage of sales(5). 24.8% 24.7% 23.9% 25.5% 24.3%
Operating margin(6) ........coveivisennene (1.2)% 1.6% (0.3)% 1.0% 1.3%
Adjusted EBITDA(7)...cccovirivreieernceans $21,777 $37.415 $18,667 $18.471 $14,459
') QOur fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to the end of January, electing a 52-53 week fiscal year. All years

presented herein include 52 weeks, except the fiscal year ended February.3, 2007, which includes 53 weeks.

For the year ended February 2, 2008, the comparable store sales decrease of ~5.4% is based on a 52-week to 52-

week comparison, and is not derived from a comparison to the 53 week year ended February 3, 2007.

For the yéar ended February 3, 2007, the compeirable-stores sales decrease of —1.1% is based on a 53-week to 53-

week comparison, and i$ not derived from a comparison to the 52-week year ended January 28, 2006.

(2) B Beginning in fiscal 2004, we agreed with our'vendors to eliminate proof-of-performance requirements on
substantially all of our contracts. Accordingly, vendor monies that support our advertising programs are now
recorded as a reduction in the cost of inventory, and are recognized as a reduction of cost of goods sold when the
inventory is sold. Prior to fiscal 2004, vendor monies were accounted for as a reduction of advertising costs at the

time the advertising programs occurred.

(3) For fiscal 2003, a store was included in the comparable store base in its fourteenth full month of operations. A
relocated store was returned to the comparable store base in its fourteenth full month of operations following
relocation. Beginning in fiscal 2004, we include a store, including a relocated store, in the comparable store base in
its fifteenth full month of operations. This change did not have a material impact on comiparable store sales,

{4) Calculated based on the weighted average of-the gross square footage in the period, which includes office, storage
and receiving areas, Excludes catalog and Internet sales of Overton’s.

(5) Gross profit includes store occupancy costs and distribution costs for all years presented. For fiscal year 2007 it also
includes the cost of goods sold for the acquired Overton’s direct-to-consumer business for approximately two

months.
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(6) Calculated based on operating income (loss) and sales for.the period. A v

(7 Adjusted EBITDA consists of net income (loss) plus interest expense, plus income tax provision or minus income
- tax-benefit, plus depreciation and amortization, plus exit costs, impairment and.other charges, and plus debt
conversion expense. This term, as we define it, may not be comparable to a similarly titled measure used by other
companies and is not a measure of performance presented in‘accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. We use Adjusted EBITDA as a measure of operating performance because it assists us in comparing
performance on a consistent basis, as it removes from our operating results the tmpact of our capital structure, which
mcludes interest expense and depreciation and amortlzatlon ) Co '

We do not use it as a measure of liquidity. The funds depicted by Adjusted EBITDA are not necessarily available for
discretionary use and exclude the impact of interest expense,income taxes and other items. Adjusted EBITDA
should not be considered as a substitute for net income or net loss, net cash provided by or used in operations, or
other financial data prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, or as a measure of
llquldlty ‘ S

B :

We believe Adjusted EBITDA i is useful t0 an investor in evaluating our operating performance because:
+ - itis a widely accepted financial 1nd1cator ofa c0mpany ] ablhty to service its debt S -

« itis widely used to measure a company’s operaling performance without regard to items such as depreciation
and amortization, which can vary depending upon accounting methods and the book value of assets, and to
'present.a meaningful measdre of cotporate performance exclusive of our capxtal structure and tbe method by

which assets were acqmred and . - . C Ty

* it helps investors to more meamngful!y evaluate and compare the results of.our operations’ from penod to period
by removing from our operating results the impact of our capital structure, primarily interest-expense from our
outstanding debt, and asset base, primarily depreciation and amortization of our property and equipment:

Our management uses Adjusted EBITDA: . ' i

-+ asa measurement of operating performance because it assists us in comparing our performance on a consistent
. basis, as it removes from our operating results the impact of our capital structure, which includes interest
expense from our outstanding debt, and our asset base, which includes depreciation and amortization of our
property and equipment; ' : - .

*  under our secured credit facility which sets the apphcable margm on LIBOR based loans with reference to our
. EBITDA; and ‘.

. -

. in presentations to the members of our board of directors to enable our board to have the same consistent
measurement basis of operating performance used by management.

i

The following table provides a reconciliation of net income_‘(loésl) to Adjusted EBITDA:

! - ‘ . 4 Fiscal Year Ended(1) ' '
’ February 2, February3, ~ January 28, ’ January 29, Jonuary 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
' [ Ve . '+ + {dollars in thousands) .
- th income (loss) ................... Lo 831,814 $(13,242)  $(13,307) $1,570 © $1,473
Depreciation and e . . : o
. amortization{8) .......cccovveenn. ¢ 26,603 21,975 . - 18,233 11,656 - 8226 .
Interest expense : 19,745 19,187 . .. 11,106 , 5,137 . 4760 .,
Debt conversion charge............, = » 9,037 L —_ R —
Exit costs, impairment and . oo L o T, “
other charges..............cococe... 6,493 458 + 2,635 - 108 - - —
Income tax provision.... 750 — — = e
Adjusted EBITDA.......cccococe... 521,777 $37.415 518,667 518471 $14,459
(8) Excludes amortization of loan origination fees whichi are included in interest expense. !
33




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion may contain forward-looking statements regarding us, our business prospects and our
results of operations that are subject to certain risks and uncertainties posed by many factors and events that could cause our
actual business, prospects and results of operations to differ materially from those that may be anticipated by such forward-
looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences inchide, but are not limited to, those described
in Item 1 A—"Risk Factors.” Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which
speak only as of the date of this report. We undertake no obligation to revise-any forward-looking statements in order to
reflect events or circumstances that may subsequently arise. Readets are urged to carefully review and consider the various
disclosures made by us in this report and in our other reports filed with the Commission that advise interested parties of the
risks and factors that may affect our business.

Overview

Gander Mountain Company operates the nation’s largest retail network of stores specializing in hunting, fishing,
camping, marine and outdoor lifestyle products and services. We have expanded our store base to 113 conveniently located
Gander Mountain outdoor lifestyle stores, providing approximately 6.2 million square feet of retail space in 23 states:
Alabama, Arkansas, Colorado, Florida, 1llinois, Indiana, lowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota,
Mississippi, New York, North Carolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, West Virginia and
Wisconsin. We anticipate opening five new stores in 2008, including one relocation and the consolidation of two smaller
format stores into one large-format store. . ‘

Our core strategy is to provide our target customers with a unique and broad assortment of outdoor equipment,
accessories, related technical apparel and footwear; expert services; convenient locations and value pricing. Our stores feature
an extensive selection of leading national and regional brands as well as our company’s owned brands. We tailor our
merchandise assortments to take advantage of our customers’ seasonal and regional or local preferences. We seek to combine
this broad product offering with superior customer setvice based on our store associates’ extensive product knowledge and
outdoor-related experience. - . . :

Since its origin in 1960, our brand name has developed a strong appeal and relevance to consumers who participate
in outdoor sports and recreation activities. Our customers value our “We Live Outdoors” culture and theme. From 1960 to
1996, our predecessor operated a nationwide catalog business that, by 1996, included 17 retail stores. In 1996 and 1997,
Holiday Companies, which at the time owned and operated a group of retail sporting goeds stores, acquired these Gander
Mountain retail stores, formed our company and began to build a new outdoor lifestyle business utilizing the historic Gander
Mountain brand. - .

In March 2003, we began transforming our market position from a traditional specialty store to a large-format,
category-focused store. We did this by opening new stores in alarge format and increasing the selling space within our
original, small-format stores. Prior to March 2003, our typical store was approximately 31,000 square feet. Our large-format
stores range from approximately 50,000 to 120,000 square feet, with our current focus primarily upon stores of 60,000 to
65,000 square feet plus an outside selling area. Our large-format stores are generally located with convenient access to a
major highway and have an open-style shopping environment characterized by wide aisles, open bar-joist ceilings and high-
density racking. To further build upon our brarid’s reputation for high quality and exceptional value, we are outfitting certain
stores and our new stores with additional features such as brick and stone accents, log-wrapped columns, and improved
branding, fixture, flooring and signage elements. As of February 2, 2008, 68 of our 113 stores were in our large format.

The larger format enables us to offer more products and services to our customers. In 2004 we began offering the
Arctic Cat brand of all-terrain vehicles (ATVs) in our large format storeS. In spring 2007 we began to feature the popular
Tracker Marine Group boat brands in our stores, including Tracker and Fisher fishing boats, Sun Tracker and Fisher pontoon
‘boats, Nitro and ProCraft high-performance fishing boats, Tahoe runabout/deck boats, Mako offshore/inshore fishing boats,
and Kenner Bay boats. To support these efforts we began to offer power shop services in our larger stores, including
maintenance and repairs for ATVs, boats and other small engines. We have learned that we can be most successful offering
ATVs, boats and related power shop services in selected markets based on market demand, competitive conditions and
customer preferences. As of fiscal 2007 year end, we had reduced the number of our large-format stores offering ATVs and
Tracker brand boats to 22 and 27, respectively.
Our large-format stores offer other unique features and specialized services, including a full-service gunsmith shop,
a full-service archery pro shop and archery target lanes. Some of the large-format stores also include a bait shop that opens
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early for the convenience of our customers. We utilize outside selling areas adjacent to most of our large-format stores to
display additional offerings of larger items such as ATVs, boats, kayaks, trailers and canoes.

Nearly all of our stores have a Gander Mountain [:odge, which is an in-store meeting room available for public use,
where we provide hunter safety classes, outdoor-skills seminars and other comimunity-focused activities.

On December 6, 2007 we acquired Overton’s, Inc., a leading internet and catalog marketing company targeting
recreational boaters and water sports enthusiasts.. Overton’s product line is extensive, ranging from water skis, wakeboards
and apparel to electronics, boat covers, boat seats and other marine accessories. Overton’s products are'sold under two
principal brands, Overton’s and Consumers Marine, through a multi-channel approach that includes catalogs, websites - i
(www.Overtons.com and www. Consumersmarine.com) and three retail showrooms. Qverton’s is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Gander Mountain headquartered in Greenville, North Carolina.

)
.

- We are utilizing several strategic and operating initiatives aimed at improving our merchandise offerings, enhancing
profitability and expanding the number and geographic diversity of our stores. We measure performance using such key
operating statistics as comparable store sales, sales per square foot, gross margin percentage and store operatmg expenses,
with a focus on labor, as a percentage of sales. . . !

We also measure and evaluate investments in our retail locations, including inventory and property and equipment.
Inventory performance is primarily measured by inventory per square foot and by inventory turns, or the number of times
store inventory turns over in a given period, and amounts of owned inventory at various times based on payment terms from
our vendors. The most significant investments in property and equipment are made at the time a store is opened by us.

We believe that the overall growth of our business will allow us to generally maintain or increase our product gross
margins. Increased merchandise volumes should enable us to improve our purchasing leverage and achieve greater support
throughout the supply chain, The mix of merchandise in our total sales also influences our product gross margins. As we
continue sales and store growth, a number of other factors may impact, positively or negatively, our product gross margin
percentage, including: . . .

* »  the introduction bf new product cateéories‘with varying gross margin percen'lage chara'cte;"istics, o
. chanées in the merchandise mix at our current locations, | o |
« differences in merchandise mix by geographic location, . . e
+  price’competition, - -
+  clearance activities in connection with seasonal inventory management,
* closeout sales in (;onnection with store relocations and consolidations,
. §ourcing of prbducts from Iolcalions_oulside the United States,
= vendor programs, and

«  supply chain enhancemenits.

In addition, our gross margin is impacted by store occupancy and distribution costs. We monitor these costs in
absolute dollars and as a percentage of sales.

The most sngmﬁcam store operating expenses are labor and related employee benefits and advertising. Qur
employee benefits include health insurance, the cost of which continues to increase faster than the general rate of inflation,
We commua]ly monitor this cost and review strategies to effectively control increases, but we are subject to the overall trend
of increases in health care costs. Advertising costs are monitored as a percentage of sales. These costs are largely variable,
which allows us 1o actively manage them to fac:lltate achieving our sales, gross margm percentage and store operating
contribution objectives.
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Store operating contribution, which is calculated by deducting a store’s operating expenses from its gross margin, is
used to evaluate overall performance on an individual store basis. . ‘ :

Selling, general and administrative.expenses are monitored and controlled as a percentage of sales. We have made
significant investments in infrastructure, including our information systems, distribution capabilities and personnel. Our
current infrastructure facilitates our planned opening of stores. We expect these expenses to decrease as a percentage of sales
over time. ) S :

Pre-opening expenses will continue to be related to store openings, including relocations. These expenses will
fluctuate based on the number and timing of new store openings. :

Inventory turns are based on cost of sates and average inventory for the applicable period. We recognize that our
inventory tums may be lower than those of other retailers, which we believe is due, in part, to the categories of merchandise
we carry, including firearms, and the large quantities of merchandise we use in our in-store displays. We believe we have the
opportunity to enhance our supply chain to improve our inventory turns. Additionally, in merchandise categories that
experience slower inventory turs, we continue to work with vendors to increase our trade credit terms to reduce our -
investment in owned inventory. We cannot assure you that we will be able to improve our inventory turns or inventory
investment.

Identification of appropriate new store sites is essential to our growth strategy. We believe our focus on our larger
store size and our ability to utilize either recycled, or second-use, facilities or build-to-suit locations provides.us with
increased opportunities to find optimal real estate locations on attractive terms. We evaluate and invest in new stores based
on site-specific projected returns on investment.

Since the acquisition of Overton’s, we now have two reportable segments: Retail and Direct. The Retail segment
sells its outdoor lifestyle products and services through its 113 retail stores located in 23 states. The Direct segment is the
internet and catalog operations of Overton’s, offering primarily boating and watersports accessory products through
numerous direct mail catalogs and its e-commerce websites. We evaluated our operating and reporting segments in
accordance with SFAS No. 131 and considered the discrete financial information reviewed by our chief operating decision
maker in making decisions regarding allocation of resources and in assessing performance. Reporting in this format provides
management with the financial information necessary to evaluate the success of the segments and the overall business. Prior
to December 6, 2007, we operated under one segment, Retail. ‘ '

Results of Operations

The following table presents, for the periods indicated, selected items in the consolidated statements of operations as
a percentage of our sales:

Fiscal Year Ended

52 weeks + 583 wecks 52 weeks
February 2, February 3, January 28,
2008 2007 1006
Sales v 100% 100% 100%
Cost of goads 50ld ..o 75.2% . 75.3% 76.1%
Gross Profil...c e 24.8% 24.7% 23.9%
Operating expenses: : ‘
Selling, general and administrative expenses .... 24.8% 22.8% 23.4%
Exit costs, impairment and other charges.......... 0.7% 0.1% 0.3%
Pre-opening EXPenses .........covoeereieiceerirsssaisieasns 0.5% 0.4% 0.8%
Gain on insurance settlement.......oovvverveeeceenes — 0.2)% —
Gain on contract settlement ........oeeveveevecieinreenns — — {0.3)%
(Loss) Income from operations. ...........cc.cee., e o (1.2)% " 1.6% {0.3y%
Interest EXPEnSe, Nt .....uuererreeereeeernenes 2.0% C210% 1.4%
. Debt conversion Charge ... — 1.0% —
Lass before inCome taxes ... ivoniereisierenceiiins o (3.2% (1.5)% (1.7)%
Income tax provision 0.1% — —
INELTOSS cuecvnrerrrerereercrcemece e rs st (3.3)% (1.5% (L. 1Y%
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Sales consist of sales from comparable stores, new stores and non-comparable stores, as well as direct sales through
Overton’s since December 6, 2007. A store is included in the comparable store base in its fifteenth full month of operations.
A relocated store returns to the comparable store base in its fifteenth full month after relocation. New store sales include sales
from stores we opened during the current period. Non-comparable store sales include sales in the current period from our
stores opened during the previous fiscal year before they have begun their fifteenth month of operation.

Cost of goods sold includes the cost of merchandise, freight, distribution, inventory shrinkage and store occupancy .
costs, Store occupancy costs include rent, real estate taxes and common area maintenance charges. Cost of goods sold alse
includes the cost of merchandise and freight expenses of our wholly owned subsidiary, Overton’s, :

+
+ 4 s .

Selling, general and administrative expenses include store associate payroll, taxes.and fringe benefits, advertising,
maintenance, utilities, depreciation, insurance, bank and credit card charges and other store level expenses. It also includes all
expenses associated with operating our corporate headquarters in St. Paul, MN as well as the expenses of Qverton’s direct
marketing business since December 6, 2007, the date of acquisition. Refer to Note.} in the'accompanying notes to our
consolidated financial statements for further detail on expense claSSlﬁcatlon v .

Pre-opening expenses consist primarily of payroll rent, recruiting, advemsmg and other costs mcurred priorto a
new store opening. : .

Fiscal Year 2007 compared to F m:al Year 2006

Sales. Sales increased by $58.0 million, or 6.4%, to $969.4 milllon in fiscal 2007 from $91 l 4 m:lhon in fiscal -
2006. The increase resulted from sales of $122.3 million from fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 new stores not included in the
comparable store sales base, a comparable store sales decrease of $58.0 million and an $11.8 million sales decrease from
stores closed during 2007 but open in 2006 as well as changes in other revenue, Overton’s sales for two months in fiscal 2007
also contributed $5.5 million of the increase. In fiscal 2007, we opened 13 new stores, including three'relocated stores, and
added 700,000 square feet of retail selling space, a 12.8% increase. We also closed two underperforming stores in the fourth .
quarter of fiscal 2007. During fiscal 2006, we opened elgh! new stores, including one relocated store, and added 483 000
square feet of retail selling space;a 9. 7% increase, ; )

Our comparable store sales declined 5.4% for fiscal 2007, as compared to a comparable store sales decline of 1.1%
for fiscal 2006. For fiscal 2007, the 5.4% decline is calculated by comparing the 52 weeks of fiscal 2007 to 52 weeks, not the
actual 53 weeks, for fiscal 2006. The fiscal 2007 decline is due to weak sales in the second half of fiscal 2007. Comparable
store sales in our fiscal third quarter decreased 8.4% and our fiscal fourth quarter decreased 11.9%; eroding the 2.7%
comparable store sales increase in the first half of fiscal 2007. The sales decline was impacted by worsening-overall
economic conditions, including credit concerns, housing market foreclosures, rising fuel and food prices, and decreased -
consumer confidence. We believe these conditions negatively impacted many specialty retailers especially in the fourth
quarter. In addition, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 we believe sales were. negatwely impacted by our decision to reduce
advertising expenditures, !

. ‘. - . L]

Overall, the sales mix for fiscal 2007 was relatively consistent with fiscal 2006 with no product category changing
its sales mix more than 125 basis points, except the powersports category. Powersports continved to gain market share with a
significant increase in comparable stores sales and increased sales penetration of 252 basis points, driven largely by increased
penetration of boat sales. The apparel category expertenced a decline in its share of the sales mix, driven by less clearance
sales in fiscal 2007 and less traffic in our stores during our third and fourth quarter prime seasons. The fishing category
increased its penetration due partly to store expansion into the south and southeast'where fishing participation is year-round,
while footwear increased penetration due to store merchandising changes and new products.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased by $16.0 million, or 7.1%, to $240.8 million in fiscal 2007 from $224.7 million
in fiscal 2006. As a percentage of sales, gross profitincreased 18 basis points to 24.8% in fiscal 2007 from 24.7% in fi scal
2006. The more significant factors affecting gross margin during fiscal year 2007 were:

+  an inittal product margin increase of 180 basis points as a result of continued benefits from increasing scale, the
positive impact of our Evéryday Low Price strategy on our pricing structure, higher penetration of our owned-
brand merchandise, and lower clearance inventory coupled with better management of clearance merchandise
and pricing,

= a 73 basis point negative impact on initial margin from the change in our product mix, largely due to increased
lower margin power sports sales and decreased higher-margin apparel sales, and
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+  a 55 basis point negative impact from increased store occupancy costs as a result of reduced leverage from
'lower comparable store sales and lower sales per square foot at our newer, less mature stores.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. SG&A expenses increased by $33.3 million, or 16.1%, to
$240.7 million in fiscal 2007 from $207.4 million-in fiscal 2006. As a percentage of sales, SG&A expenses increased
208 basis points to 24.8% in fiscal 2007 from 22.8% in fiscal 2006. The primary factors in this increase were (i) labor costs in
the retail stores that accounted for 66 basis points of the increase, as labor costs could not be adjusted commensurate with the
sales decline, (ii) increased depreciation at the retail store level that resuited in a 29 basis points negative impact, and
(iii) other selling, general and administrative costs which were negatively impacted 84 basis points from de-leverage due to
weak sales. Overton’s also added 28 basis points in selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal 2007 during a
seasonally slow two month sales period for Overton’s. : ‘

Exit Costs, Impairment and Other Charges. During the latter half of fiscal 2007, in response to changes in
economic and retail industry conditions, management began efforts to streamline operating activities and took further actions:
designed to improve profitability. This included closing two unprofitable stores, a reduction in the stores and markets that
sold our powersports products and reductions in workforce at our headquarters location in St. Paul. In addition, we recorded
severance costs earlier in fiscal 2007 relative to two executive terminations. Also, as a result of the Overton’s acquisition in
December 2007, we wrote-off certain assets, whose use was discontinued, related to capitalized web site development costs
that began earlier in fiscal 2007,

These charges in the aggregate were $6.5 million for fiscal 2007 with $4.3 million incurred in the fourth quarter. For
fiscal 2006, these charges were $458,000 and represented exit costs for closed stores and severance costs only.

, . - 1. .

Pre-opening Expenses. Pre-opening expenses increased $1.6 million, or 49.0%, to $4.8 million in fiscal 2007 from .
$3:2 million in fiscal 2006. We opened 13 new stores in fiscal 2007 and eight new stores in fiscal 2006, including relocated
stores in both periods. Pre-opening expenses on a per store basis declined slightly in fiscal 2007 due to continued efficiencies
in store opening processes and cost control. N o Lot

Gain on Insurance Settlement, During our third quarter of fiscal 2006, we recorded a gain of $1.4 million in
connection with an insurance settlement resulting from flood damage at one of our stores.

Interest Expense, net. Interest expense.increased by $0.6 million, or 2.9%, to $19.7 million in fiscal 2007 from
$19.2 million in fiscal 2006. The increase in interest expense resulted from higher average outstanding borrowings used to
fund our growth and operating loss. Average outstanding borrowings during fiscal 2007 increased 13%, as compared to fiscal
2006, due primarily to increased cash used to fund our growth and operating loss, for capital expenditures in connection with
new and ‘existing stores and the Overton’s acquisition. Higher average borrowings were substantially offset by an
approximately 50 basis points decrease in average interest rates due to general interest rate declines and as a result of the
February 28, 2007 amendment to our credit facility. Average interest rates on our outstanding borrowings were 56 basis
points lower in fiscal 2007 than in fiscal 2006. The average effective interest rate on all of our outstanding borrowings as of
February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007 was 6.82% and 7.85%, respectively.

Debt conversion charge. In December 2006, we completed a private placement of $50 million of our common
stock. The purchase price was paid with $30 million in cash and the tender of our.outstanding $20 million convertible note in
exchange for 5,701,255 shares of common stock. In connection with this transaction, we recorded a non-cash charge of
$9.0 million in fiscal 2006 representing the fair value of the common shares issued in excess of the shares that were issuable
under the original convertible note agreement exccuted in August 2005, .

Income Tax Provision. Our fiscal 2007 tax provision primarily represents minimum or net worth taxes due in
various states. Certain states have adopted an adjusted gross receipts tax. We have no provision for Federal income tax for
fiscal 2007 or fiscal 2006 due to the uncertainty of the realization of the net operating loss carryforwards. We have
determined the realization of the tax benefit related to ournet deferred tax asset is uncertain at this time and a valuation
allowance was recorded for the entire balance of our net deferred tax asset. '

Net Loss. Our net loss was $31.8 million for fiscal 2007, as compared to net loss of $13.2 million for fiscal 2006,
due to the factors discussed above. + e :
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Fiscal Year 2006 compared to Fiscal Year 2005 b

Sales. Sales increased by $107.0 million, or 13.3%, to $911.4 million in fiscal 2006 from $804.5 million in fiscal
2005. The increase resulted from sales of $118.4 million from fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 new stores not included in the
comparable store sales base, a comparable store sales increase of $2.3 million and a $13.7 million sales decrease from stores
closed during 2006 but open during 2005 and changes in other revenue. Qur comparable store sales decline of 1.1% is the
result of comparing the 53 weeks of fiscal 2006 to 53 weeks, not the actual 52 weeks, for fiscal 2005..1n fiscal 2006, we
opened eight new stores, including one relocated store, and added 483,000 square feet of retail selling space, a 9.7% increase.
During fiscal 2005, we opened 19 new stores, including two relocated stores, and added 1.2 million square feet of retail
selling space, a 33% Increase.

Comparable store sales decreased 1.1% for fiscal 2006 primarily from weak sales in our first half of fiscal 2006.
Comparable store sales in our fiscal third quarter increased 7.4% and were approximately flat in our fiscal fourth quarter at
0.4%. Our fiscal fourth quarter was negatively impacted by particularly warm weather in our northern states in December,
which adversely affected apparel and footwear. The slower first half of fiscal 2006 is primarily reflective of (i) reduced
spending in advertising and promotions, (i) our focus on our Everyday Low Price strategy that resulted in fewer promotions
to drive customer traffic, and (iii) lower levels of clearance merchandise available to customers. Cannibalization from some
of the new store openings and new competition entering some of our markets continues to reduce our overall level of
comparable store sales.

Owerall, the sales mix for fiscal 2006 was relatively consistent with fiscal 2005 with no product category changing
its sales-mix more than 1%, except the firearms/ammunition category. Our firearms/ammunition category continues to gain
market share with a significant increase in comparable stores sales and increased sales penetration of 170 basis points. The
power sports category increased its sales penetration by 60 basis points, driven largely by ATV sales at new large-format
stores and increased penetration of boat sales in our second year with this category. The apparel/footwear category
experienced a decline in its share of the sales mix, primarily driven by weather factors.”

RS ' * ' . -

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased by $32.3 million, or 16.8%, to $224.7 million in fiscal 2006 from ‘
$192.4 million in fiscal 2005. As a percentage of sales, gross profit increased 80 basis points to 24.7% in fiscal 2006 from
23.9% in fiscal 2005. The more significant factors primarily affecting gross margin during fiscal year 2006 were:

« an initial product margin increase of approximately 140 basis points as a result of continued benefits from
increasing scale, the positive impact of our Everyday Low Price strategy on our-pricing structure, higher
penetration of our owned-brand merchandise, and lower clearance inventory coupled with better rnanagcment of
clearance merchandise and pricing,

.*  an approximately 40 basis point negative impact from the change in ouir product mix,
+  an approximately 30 basis point favorable impact from increased co-branded credit card revenues,
*  an approximately 25 basis point favorable impact from improved leverage from distribution costs,

*  an approximately 30 basis point negative impact from increased store occupancy costs as a result of reduced
'Ieverage from lower comparable store sales and lowér sales per square foot at.our newer, less mature stores,

*+ an approxnmately 40 basis point negative impact from reduced vendor discounts for new stores ag aresult of
opening fewer new stores with lower inventories for those new stores, and

* an approximately 25 basis point negatwe impact from the continuation in the trend toward higher freight-in
costs as fuel prices increased.,

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. SG&A expenses increased by $19.5 million, or 10.4%, to
$207.4 million in fiscal 2006 from $188.0 million in fiscal 2005. As a percentage of sales, SG&A expenses decreased
61 basis points to 22.8% in fiscal 2006 from 23.4% in fiscal 2005. ‘Advertising expense decreased 74 basis points due to our
decision to reduce advertising in the first half of the fiscal year and shift a portion of advertising expendltures from print
media to local radio in the second half of the fiscal vear, "
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Exit Costs, Impairment and Other Charges. Exit costs, impairment and other charges decreased by $2.2 million, or
82.6%, to $458,000 in fiscal 2006 from $2.6 million in fiscal 2005. In fiscal 2006, we incurred minimal charges for stores
that were closed for relocation and a minimal amount for severance. In fiscal 2005, we incurred $1.3 million in charges for
stores that were closed for relocation, one with a significant remaining lease commitment and an additional $1.3 million in
severance costs, primarily at the executive and corporate level.

Pre-opening Expenses. Pre-opening expenses decreased $3.3 miltion, or 50.5%, to $3.2 million in fiscal 2006 from
$6.6 million in fiscal 2005. We opened eight new stores in fiscal 2006 and 19 new stores in fiscal 2005, including relocations.
Pre-opening expenses on a per store basis declined slightly due to continued efficiencies in store opening processes and cost
control, with the exception of costs related to one significantly larger store.

Gain on Insurance Settlement. During our third quarter of fiscal 2006, we recorded a gain of $1.4 million in
connection with an insurance settlement resulting from flood damage at one-of our stores,

- Gain on Contract Settlement. During our first quarter of fiscal 2005, we received a $2.5 million non-recurring
payment relating to the termination of our contract with the former provider of our co-branded credit card services in
consideration of the lost opportunity.. ' S

Interest Expense, net. Interest expense increased by $8.1 million, or 72.8%, to $19.2 million in fiscal 2006 from
$11.1 million in fiscal 2005. The increase in interest expense resulted from higher average net borrowings used 1o fund our
growth, including the placement of $20 million of convertible debt in August 2005 and the addition of a 520 million term
loan to our credit facility in March 2006. Average interest rates on our credit facility were approximately 200 basis points
higher in fiscal 2006 than in fiscal 2005. The interest rate in effect on our credit-facility at February 3, 2007 and January 28,
2006 was 7.3% and 6.5%, respectively. Co

Debt conversion charge. In December 2006, we completed a private placement of $50 million of our common
stock. The purchase price was paid with $30 million in cash and the tender of our outstanding $20 million convertible note in
exchange for 5,701,255 shares of common stock. In connection with this transaction, we recorded a non-cash charge of
$9.0 million representing the fair value of the common shares issued in excess of the shares thdt were issuable under the
original convertible note agreement executed in August 2005.

Income Tax Provision. We did not record an income tax provision for fiscal 2006 or fiscal 2005 due to the
uncertainty of the realization of the net operating loss carryforwards. We have determined the realization of the tax benefit
related to our net deferred tax asset was uncertain and a valuation allowance was recorded for the entire balance of our net
deferred tax asset. '

Nel Loss. Our net loss was $13.2 million for fiscal 2006, as compared to net loss-of $13.3 million for fiscal 2003,
due to the factors discussed above.

Quarterly Results of Operations and Seasonality

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate significantly because of several factors, including the timing of new
store openings and related expenses, profitability of new stores, weather conditions and general economic conditions. Our
business is also subject to seasonal fluctuation, with the highest sales activity normally occurring during the third and fourth
quarters of our fiscal year, which are primarily associated with the fall hunting seasons and the holiday season. In recent
years, the second half of our fiscal years have generated approximately 60% to 65% of our annual sales, including new store
sales. In addition, our customers’ demand for our products-and therefore our sales can be significantly impacted by
unseasonable weather conditions that affect outdoor activities and the demand for related apparel and equipment. Our grand
opening activities surrounding.our new store openings can also cause fluctuations in sales when compared to operating
periods in later months. 1t is for this reason we include a new store in our comparable store sales base in its fifteenth full
month to minimize the effect of grand opening activities.

This seasonality also impacts our inventory levels, which tend to rise beginning approximately in April, reach a peak
in November, and decline to lower levels after the December holiday season. . e

The recently acquired Overton’s business is also subject to seasonal fluctuations, with its highest sales activity
normally occurring during the first and second quarters of our fiscal year, which is the primary season for boating, marine
and watersports related products. Historically, Overton’s has generated approximately 65% to 70% of its sales during the first
half of our fiscal year and approximately 50% during the second quarter of our fiscal year. .

40




Our pre-opening expenses have and will continue to vary significantly from quarter to quarter, primarity due to the
timing of store openings. We typically incur most pre-opening expenses for-a new store during the three months-preceding,
and the month'of, it’s opening. In addition, our labor and operating costs for a newly opened store can be greater during the
first one to two months of operation than what can be expected after that time, both in,aggregate dollars and as a percentage
of sales. Accordingly, the volume and timing of new store openings in any quarter has had, and is expected to continue to
have, a significant impact on quarterly pre-opening costs and store labor and operating expenses. Due to these. factors, results
for any particular quarter-may not be indicative of results to be expected for any other quarter or for a full fiscal year.

i L . . ' . . o

See Note 21— “Summary of Quarterly Results™ to our financial statements included in this report for additional

information.

qumdlty and Capital Resources . W T
Our primary capital requ1remcnts are for inventory, property and cqulpmenl and pre-opening expenses to support
our new store growth plans and, to the extent of the highly seasonal nature of our business, operating losses. Until the
completion of our initial public offering, our main sources of liquidity were equity investments by, and advances from,
Holiday Companies znd its affiliated entities, and borrowings under our credit facility. The following chart summarizes the
principal elements of our cash flow for the past three fiscal years and the number of stores opened during the period.

. Cash Flow Summary
,  Fiscal Year Ended

52 weeks 53 weeks 52 weeks

February 2, ‘ February 3, January 28,

2008 2007 2006
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities.......ccccocoeeeerenvnnisienivnee $(30,397) 3604 " $(30,279)
Net cash used in investing activities.........., treent et b et n e vaes ( 122,316} - (28,291) (49.477)
Net cash prowded by fmancmg actlvmes ............ o . e e ‘ 153,993 T 27449 80,303
Total net increase (decrease) in €ash ... $1,280 $(238) $547

Details of financing activities: - o .o .o . :

.Borrowings (repayments) under credit facility ......c..ccoocoveieieevevininnne . $77,528 . $(6,451) $60,495
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debl....ooviiveiiieieeee e 53,082 . . 5,300 20,000
Reductions in long-term debt.........cooovveiiiinininnnn e s naen _ , (3,874) . v {1,229) (697)
Proceeds from stock sales and exercise,of options .........ccccccovvuu... 27,257 29,829 505
Net cash provided by financing activities ................cocovevneireieer e $153,993 . - $27449 380,303
New store openings, including relocated SLOTES eevveoeesvoeresosereeersesssecineiens 13 ¢ ' 8 19

Net cash used in operatmg activities was $30 4 ‘million i in ﬁscal 2007, compared to net cash provided by operating
activities of §0. 6 million in fiscal 2006 and net cash used in operatmg activities of $30.3 million in fiscal 2005. The overall |
$31.0 mllhon increase 1n net cash used in ope:ratmg activities in ﬁscal 2007 compared 10 fiscal 2006.is primarily due to;

+ * decreased funding of $18.3 million as a resuit of the increased net loss in ﬁscal 2007 as compared to fiscal .

2006, adjusted for changes in non-cash charges (depreciation and amortization, exit costs, impairment and other
charges, and the debt conversion charge) |,

»  decreased funding from accounts payable and other accrued liabilities of approximately $26.5 million primarily
from (i) a $16.4 million boat inventory increase in fiscal 2007, for which a substantial part of the vendor
financing had expired by year end and the related accounts payable balances were reduced, and (ii) a general
reduction in accounts payable balances due to lower inventory turn as a result of sales weakness in the third and
fourth quarters of fiscal 2007, offset by

*  anincrease of $12.6 million in funds as a result of account balance activity in accounts receivable, inventories,
prepaid assets and other assets. Cash used for inventories was $4.4 million less in fiscal 2007 as we decreased
* the amount of opening inventories in our new stores as well as decreased the inventories in-existing stores {non-
power sports}. Cash provided by accounts receivable was $6.2 million more in fiscal 2007 than fiscal 2006 due
to insurance receivables in 2006 and less growth in vendor allowance receivables. Cash used for prepaids and
other current assets was $4.0 million less due primarily to an increase in prepaid rent in fiscal 2006 due to the
53-week year.
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Net cash used in investing activities was $122.3 million in fiscal 2007, $28.3 million in fiscal 2006-and ~ °
$49:5 million in fiscal 2005. In fiscal 2007, net.cash used in investing activities includes $76.5 million for'the acquisition of
Overton’s (372.3 miilion) and the.acquisition of a retail competitor in Baxter, MN ($7.1 million). The $76.5 million cash-
outlay isnet of $1.4 million in cash acquired and $1.5 million in deferred payments. Excluding the fiscal 2007 acquisitions,
net cash used in investing activities consists entirely.of purchases of property and equipment, net of proceeds received from
sales of assets, and insurance proceeds. We use cash for leasehold improvements and equipment to open new and relocated
stores and to remodel and upgrade existing stores. We opened 13,8 and 19 new stores in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, RIS
respectively. Purchases of property and equipment also include purchases of information technology systems and
expenditures for our distribution facility and our corporate headquarters. -« - v ¢ ' .

Net cash provided by financing activities was $154.0 million in fiscal 2007 compared to $27.4 million in fiscal 2006
and $80.3 million in fiscal 2005. The financing activities during these periods were primarily related to financing the
increased inventory levels and property and equipment purchases for store openings and operating losses. In fiscal 2007, cash
provided by financing activities also included proceeds of $40 million from the issuance of Term Note B to Bank of
America, NA and $24 million in proceeds from our sale of an aggregate of 4,067,797 shares of the Company’s common -
stack at a per share purchase price of $5.90. Both these proceeds were used to fund the acquisition of Overton’s. An
additional approximately $6 million was borrowed under our revolving credit facility to fund the balance of the Overton’s
purchase price. ‘ - . . ,' T o :

Also included in cash provided by financing activities in fiscal 2007 are proceeds of $12.8 million from two
promissory notes with two banks that allowed us to finance capital expenditures of certain of our new stores under secured
financing arrangements. The notes carry fixed interest rates and four and five year repayment terms.

Credit Facility

We have maintained a reyolving credit facility with Bank of America, N.A. since 2001, On Augusl 15,2007,
pursuant to an amended and restated agreement, we agreed with Bank of America, N.A., as ‘agent, and the lenders named _‘
therein, to increase our revolving credit facility to $345 million from $275 million, with an option to increase the revolving
- facility by another $55 million subject to certain terms and conditions. The amended facility also extends the maturity date
for the revolving and term loan, by three years, to June 30, 2012.- The actual availability under the credit facility is limited to
specific advance rates on eligible inventory and accounts receivable. Typically, availability will be highestin the latter half of
our fiscal year as inventory levels and advance rates increase. Interest on the outstanding indebtedness under the revolving
poition of the credit facility currently accrues at the lender’s prime commercial lending rate, or, if we elect, at the one, twd,
three or six month LIBOR plus 1.25% to 1.75%, depending on our EBITDA, as defined in the credit agreement. Our
obligations under the credit facility are secured by interests in substantiaily all of its assets. « .

Term Loan A. In addition to the revolving credit facility, our credit facility includes a $20 million term loan. The
amount of the term loan is not deducted in determining availability under the revol_{finglcredit facility, except'to the extent
that the balance of the term loan exceeds approximately 4% to 5% of the eligible borrowing base. The term loan matures on
June 30, 2012 and bears interest at either (a) 1.25% over the higher of (i) Bank of America’s prime rate or (i) the federal
funds rate plus 0.5%, or (b) LIBOR plus 2.75%. This additional financing was obtained to maintain the liquidity levels

necessary to fund continued growth and seasonal cash flow needs. .
The table below summarizes pertinent information regarding the Co.mpany’s credit facility with Bank of America,
N.A. as of the end of fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005:

. Fébruary2, February3, - Januaryl8,
i ; 2008 - s . 2007 . 2006
(in thousands) .
Maximum credit facility available.........coneereenno $345,000 . -$275,000 . $275,000
Revolver and Term Loan A balance...........c.ce. $246,013 $168,485 $174,936
Term loan B balance (leng-term). .............. feeeerenes $40,000 ;- . + 35— $—
. Outstanding letters of credit.. o ovvioinincenicinae . 37,271 - . $9,619 $5,120
Borrowing availability ..o e 522,313 - $51,299 $18,960
Interest rate at year end....c...oooifueinens? foevernreniiiee T 6.3%. 7.3% _ 6.5%

Agreement MAtUTity ......cocoeoaieinnnnnrorees s June 2012 June 2009 June 2009

[
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Credit Facility Amendment and Long Term Note Paypable in Connection with Acquisition

On December 6, 2007, the Company entered into a Fourth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement
with Bank of America, N.A., as agent (“Bank of America”}, Bank of America Securities, LLC, as the lead arranger, Wells
Fargo Foothill, Inc., as the syndication agent, the CIT Group/Business Credit, Inc., as collateral‘agent, General Electric
Capital Corporation, as documentation agent, and the.lenders named therein, The amendment and restatement was effected in
order to add an additional $40.0-million term loan (“Term Loan B”) to the Company’s secured credit facility to partially fund
the acquisition of Overton’s and to make certain other amendments, including reducing permitted capital expenditures and
replacing former covenants relating to minimum operatmg, cash flow and EBITDA with a minimum excess availability
reserve covenant, :

Term Loan B will-have a four year maturity with interest only payments in year one, mandatory semi-annual
principal payments in years two and three, and mandatory quarterly principal payments in year four. that will fully amortize
the loan. Interest on Term Loan B will be on a tiered schedule ranging from LIBOR plus 3.375% to LIBOR plus 3.875%,
based on the principat amount outstanding. Term Loan B may be prepaid at any time without penalty, provided that any such
prepayments are subject to specified minimum availability tests. The Company will not have the ability to exercise the
$55.0 million accordion feature under its revolving credit facility while Term Loan B is outstanding. All of the proceeds of
Term Loan B were vsed by the Company to partially fund the acquisition of Overton’s. The amendment and restaternent does
not change the interest rates applicable to revolving advances or the Company’s previously outstanding term loan. The long-
term portion of Term Loan B is classified as long term debt in the consolidated balance sheets. . :

David C. Pratt, our Chairman, and Holiday Stationstores, Inc., an affiliate of Ronaid A. Erickson, our Vice
Chairman, and Gerald A. Erickson, a director of our company, provided guaranties of Term Loan B to Bank of America in
connection with the financing. Mr, Pratt is guaranteeing up to $40.0 million-of the obligations under Term Loan B while
Holiday is separately guaranteeing up 1o $9.9 million of the obligations under Term Loan B. Neither Mr. Pratt nor Holiday
received any consideration in exchange for their guaranties.

1

+ Availability. Outstanding borrowings under the credit facility, including Term Loan A,.as of February 2, 2008 and
February 3, 2007, were $246.0 million and $168.5 million, respectively. These amounts exclude Term Loan B which was
made in connection with the Overton’s acquisition. Our remaining borrowing capacity under the credit facility, afier
subtracting letters of credit, as of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007 was $22.3 million and $51.3 millian, respectively.

Covenants. Effective withthe December'6, 2007 amendment, financial covenants under the credit facility require
that availability under the line of credit not fall below 5% of the lower of the borrowing base, as defined, or the credit facility '
limit. This availability test is applied and measured on a daily basis. The 5% requirement increases to 7.5% in August 2009.
The credit facility also contains other covenants that, among other matters, restrict our ability to incur substantial other
indebtedness, create certain liens, engage in certain mergers and acquisitions, sell assets, enter into certain capital leases or
make junior payments, including cash dividends. We were in compliance with-all covenants as of February 2, 2008 and
February 3, 2007. Although our current expectations of future financial performance indicate that we will remain in
compliance with the covenants under our credit facility, if actual financial performance does not meet our current
expectations, our ability to remain in compliance with these covenants will be adversely affected. We face a number of
uncertainties that may adversely affect our ability to generate sales and carnings, including the possibility of continued
weakness in the retail environment in North America, which weakness may negatively affect future retail sales.

Unregistered Sale of Equity Securities Issued in Connection with the Acquisition of Overton’s

On December 6, 2007, we entered into stock purchase agreements with Gratco, LLC, (“Gratco™)an entity controlied
by David C. Pratt, our Chairman, and with Holiday Station Stores, Inc, (“Holiday™) an affiliate of Ronald A. Erickson, our
Vice Chairman, and Gerald A. Erickson, a member of our board of directors. Pursuant to the agreements we sold an
aggregate of 4,067,797 shares of common stock at $5.90 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $24.0 million. Gratco
purchased 3,065,000 shares for a purchase price of $18.1 million and Holiday purchased 1,002,797 shares fora purchase
price of $5.9 million. The net proceeds were used to partially fund the purchase price of Overton’s.

The shares were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933 upon issuance. We offered and sold the shares to the
purchasers in reliance on the exemption from registration provided by Rule 506 promulgated under Regulation D. We relied
on this exemption from registration based in part on representations made by the purchasers in‘the stock purchase
agreements. . .

v
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We provided customary registration rights to the purchasers under the stock purchase agreements. Under the stock
purchase agreements, we agreed to file a shelf registration statement on Form 8-3 for resales of the shares within 365 days of
the closing date of December 6, 2007. We are further obligated to use our best efforts to cause the shelf registration statement
to become effective under the Securities Act of 1933 within 420 days after the closing date (480 days in the event of a full
review of the shelf registration statement by the Securities and Exchange Commission). Each of Gratco and Holiday have
confirmed to us their long-term investment focus and represented to us in their respective stock purchase agreement that they
are purchasing the shares for their own account and have no present intent to rescll or distribute the shares. The shares may
not be offered or sold in the United States absent registration or an applicable exemption from registration requirements.

Unregistered Sale of Equity Securities and Conversion of Convertible Subordinated Note

On December 8, 2006, we agreed with the holder of our $20.0 million floating rate convertible subordinated note
due August 15, 2010 to amend and restate the note in order to (i) eliminate the right to corivert the note into shares of our
common stock and to (i) eliminate the floating rate feature of the note and fix the interest rate at 6.75% per year, a reduction
of 25 basis points. The holder of the note was a trust, the annual income beneficiary of which is our chairman, David C. Pratt.
Following the amendment of the note, the trust assigned the note to a newly formed limited liability company managed by
M. Pratt and comprised of certain Pratt family trusts, the current beneficiaries of which are Mr. Pratt or members of his
immediate family.

On December 11, 2006, we entered into a stock purchase agreement pursuant to which we sold 5,701,255 shares of
common stock to the limited liability company for an aggregate purchase price of $50.0 million, or $8.77 per share. The per
share price of the stock purchase was equal to the closing bid price per share of our common stock on the Nasdaq Cilobal
Market on December 11, 2006. The purchase price for the shares was paid by surrendering the note for cancellation of the
$20 million in principal due thereunder and by delivering $30 million in cash for the balance of the purchasé price. The net
proceeds from the stock purchase, after deducting the expenses incurred to complete the deal, were approximately o
$29.5 million, and were used to reduce outstanding borrowings under our credit facility. :

The modifications to the note and subsequent tendering and cancellation of the note in.a short time period were
deemed to be anin-substance conversion and, in effect, represented a modification to the conversion price. Accordingly; we
recorded a non-cash debt conversion charge in fiscat 2006 in the amount of $9.0 million. This charge was required because
the note was tendered as consideration for equity shares and we issued additional shares beyond the number of shares
issuable in the original note agreement. U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the resulting incremental
1.03 million shares issued, valued at the $8.77 fair value, be reﬂected as a debt conversion charge in our statement of
operauons

The 5,701,255 shares were not re;_.,lstered under the Securities Act of 1933 upon issuance, but we are reqmred to
register these shares.

Other Financings

During fiscal 2007, we entered into agreements with two banks that allowed us to finance capital expenditures of
certain of our new stores under long-term, secured financing arrangements. In June 2007, in exchange for $7.3 million, we.
issued a promissory note camrying a fixed interest rate of 8.7% and a five year repayment term. In September 2007, in
exchange for $5.5 million, we issued a promissory note carrying a fixed interest rate of 8.0% and a four year repayment term.
Monthly payments of principal and interest are' made under these notes, which are secured by certain property and equipment
of 18 new stores we opened in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005.

During July 2006, we completed the purchase of an aircraft and financed $5.3 million of the $5.7 million purchase -
price with a term note. The term note matures-in seven years and has a 7.26% fixed annual interest rate. The note is
collateralized by the aircraft. We received $2.1 million in proceeds from the sale of the aircraft we replaced.

During fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006, we purchased information technology equipment totaling $3.6 million and
$2.4 million, respectively, financed through capital lease transactions. These capital lease purchases are excluded from the
caption “purchases of property and equipment” in our statements of cash flows for fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006, as they did not
require the use of cash. ' . b

The deferred payments in connection with the aquisition of Overton’s require a $900,000 payment in each June
2009 and June 2010. The liability was discounted using a long termn borrowing rate with an adjustment for risk premium.
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Income Taxes / Net Operating Losses

Our tax provision in fiscal 2007 primarily represents minimum or net worth taxes due in various states. Certain
states have recently adopted an adjusted gross receipts tax. We have no provision for Federal income tax for the three fiscal
years ending February 2, 2008 due to accumulated operating losses. Due to the uncertainty of the realization of net operating
loss carry forwards, we have determined the realization of the tax benefit related to our net deferred tax asset is uncertain at
this time and a valuation allowance was recorded for the entire balance of our net deferred tax asset.

In 2005, we determined that a “change in ownership”, within the meaning of Section 382 of the Intemnal Revenue
Code, occurred effective February 8, 2005. This change in ownership imposes a limitation on the amount'of-our net operating
losses that we may deduct for tax purposes in any given year. We have federal and state net operating loss carry-forwards of
approximately $83.4 million expiring between 2016 and 2027. The amount of our net operating loss carry-forwards subject to
the Section 382 limitation was $9.4 million at Febmary 2, 2008. Unrestricted net operating losses carry-forwards were -
$74.0 million. We do not expect this limitation to materiatly impact our future tax provision for financial reporting purposes.

Future Capital Requirements

Our future capital requirements will primarily depend on the growth and success of our direct marketing business,
the number of new stores we open, the timing of those openings within a'given fiscal year and the need to fund operating
losses. These requirements will include costs directly related to opening new stores and may also include costs necessary to
ensure that our infrastructure, including technology and distribution capabilities, is able to support our store base and
expected growth in our retail stores and internet and catalog business. We opened 13, 8 and 19 new stores in each of fiscal -
years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, including one to three relocated/consolidated stores in each year. Our cash used in
investing activities, for property and equipment purchases, was approximately $46 million, $28 million and $50 million in
fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. :

We currently plan to open five new stores in fiscal 2008, including one relocation and the consolidation of two
smaller format stores into one large- format store and expect our total capital expenditures in fiscal 2008 to be approximately
$22 to $25 million, including capital expenditures to improve certain existing stores. However, business conditions, business
strategy or other factors may cause us to adjust these plans. We believe that we will be able to service our business from our
existing distribution facilities through fiscal 2009. We believe the timing of any expansion of our distribution capabilities will
depend on the number of new stores we open, the growth of our internet and catalog business and the ability to finance an
expansion. The number of new stores we open will depend on the success of our business in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2009.

In December 2007, we expended $72.3 million to acquire Overton’s, a direct-to-consumer marketing.company. This
acquisition enables us to leverage the value of our retail store distribution network and develop strategies to reach our
customers through other channels—catalog and internet based selling. As Overton’s is a company with existing fulfillment
and business capacity that is a close match with our seasonal needs, we do not anticipate our capital investment in the
Overton’s business in fiscal 2008 to exceed $1 million 10 $2 million. . .

In 2006, we began a significant effort to upgrade our merchandise and information systems that will provide
enhanced efficiencies in buying, receiving, payables management and provide better and more detailed operating information
for decision making and continued supply chain improvement. We expect to continue to update our information systems over
the next several years. . . : ] '

. Woe intend to satisfy our capital requirements in fiscal 2008 with cash flows from operations, funds available under
our credit facility and equipment financing leases. However, if capital requirements for our business strategy change, or if
sales and cash flows from operations do not meet anticipated levels, we may need to seek additional debt or equity financing
in the public or private markets. Beyond fiscal 2008, we anticipate needing additional financing to grow our business. There
is no assurance that we will be successful in borrowmg additional funds at reasonable rates of interest or issuing equ1ty ata
favorable valuation, or at all.

Interest Rate Risk

Our earnings are affected by changes in interest rates due to the impact those changes have on our interest expense
on borrowings under our credit facility. Our floating rate indebtedness was $286.0 million at February 2, 2008 and
$168.5 million at February 3, 2007. If short-term floating interest rates on our averagé fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 variable
rate debt had increased by 100 basis pomts our annual interest expense woild have increased by approximately $2.4 million
and $2.1 million, respectlvely, assuming comparable borrowing levels. These amounts are determined by considering the
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impact of the hypothetical interest rates on our average amount of floating rate indebtedness outstanding for éach of the
respective fiscal years, We have not contracted for any derivative financial instruments. We have no international sales,
however, we import certain items for sale in our stores. Substantially all of our purchases are denominated in U.S. dollars.

Impact of Inflation

We believe that inflation has not had a material impact on our results of operations for each of our fiscal years in the
three-year period ended February 2, 2008. We cannot assure you that inflation will not have an adverse impact on our
operating results and financial condition in future periods. Inflation in particular commodities, for example gasoline and food,
that impact the general economic well-being of consumers does impact consumer confidence and therefore may negatively
impact our sales, depending on the severity of price increases and negative changes in economic conditions. -

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table contains information regarding our total contractual obligations, including off-balance sheet
arrangements, as of February 2, 2008: .

Payments due by pay period (in thousands)

. Less than More than

Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 vears 5 years
Operating 1eases(1) c.ouvmeeirmesesi e, ~ $809,748. $70,116 $142,937 $139,582 £457,113
Purchase obligations(2).......oocceorirmrmnnsnnniinns 11,748 10,042 . 1,667 _ 40 —
Capital lease obligations(3) ..ccoovvvienrnimenniniinnnninns 17,048 3,264 4,203 1,732 7,849
Long-term debt(4). .o 70,937 10,863 33,615 22,648 31811
TOLAL oo vveeiveiieree s et eee ettt sr e s a et ere e £909.481 $94,284 - $182,422 $164,002 $468,773
{(H Includes store-operating leases, which generally provide for payment of direct operating costs, primarily common

area costs and real estate taxes, in addition to rent. These obligation amounts include future minimum lease
payments and exclude direct operating costs. In accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,
these obligations are not recorded in our financial statements. ‘ ' o

2) In the ordinary course of business, we entér into arrangements with vendors to purchase merchandise in advance of
expected delivery. Because these purchase orders do not contain any termination payments or other penalties if
cancelled, they are not included in this table of contractual obligations. In accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles, these obligations are not recorded in our financial statements. '

These obligations include standby and documentary letters of credit outstanding in connection with the importing of

merchandise, as well as for insurance purposes. Also includes-other obligations for miscellaneous goods and services

acquired, related primarily to marketing, advertising and information technology obligations. In accordance with U.S.

generaily accepted accounting principles, these obligations are not recorded in our financial statements.

(3) Includes the payment obligation associated with the capital lease of one of our stores, which provides for a
maximum'S$150,000 payment quarterly for 20 years from lease inception. The payment obligation is reflected herein
with interest to be paid. This obligation will be reduced by allowable sales tax credits as defined in the related
development agreement. We can not estimate the amounts of these future credits, and accordingly, have not reduced
payment obligations by any allowable credits. These obligations also include capital leases for certain information
technology equipment.: i S ) . '

{4) Inctudes the $40 million Term Loan B, various secured equipment notes payable and a deferred payment obligation

" in connection with the Overton’s acquisition. oo o “ '

Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

2006 Adoptions:
1 i

.t

SFAS No. 123R Effective January 29, 2006, we adopted the fair-value récognition provisions of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board’s Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, which requires the measurement
and recognition of compensation expense for all stock- based payment awards made to employees and directors including
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employee stock option awards and employee stock purchases made under our employee stock purchase plan. We, adopted the
provisions of SFAS No. 123R, using the modified- prospective transition method. Under this transition method, stock-based
compensation expense was recognized in our financial statements for granted, modified, or settled stock options and for
expense related to our employee stock purchase plan: The provisions of SFAS No. 123R apply to new-stock options and . -
stock options outstanding, but not yet vested, on the effective date of January 29, 2006. In accordance with the -
modified- prospeclwe transition method, results for prior periods have not been, restalcd . PR oL
e I o, e
EITF No 06-3 In March 2006, the Financial Accountlng Standards Board s Emergmg Issues Task Force released
Issue 06-3, How Sales Taxes Collected From Customers and Remitted to.Governmental Authorities Should Be'Presented in
the Income Siatement. A consensus was-reached that entities may adopt a policy of presenting sales taxes in the statement of
operations on either a gross or net basis. If taxes are significant, an entity should disclose its policy of presenting taxes and
the amount of taxes if reflected on a gross basis in the income statement. EI'TF 06-3 is effective for pertods beginning after
December 15, 2006. We present sales net of sales taxes in our statement of operations and have adoptcd 10 contmue that
policy. . :

SAB No. 108 In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifping Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements, which provides interpretive guidance on the consideration of the effects of prior year misstatements in
quantifying current year misstatements for the purpose of a materiality assessment. SAB No. 108 was effective for fiscal
2006. The-adoption of this statememt did not have a material impact on our results of operations, cash flows or financial -,
posttion. . . . . . ‘ . .

2007 Adoplmns

F IN 48 In-June 2006, the Fmancml Accountmg Standards Board lssued Interpretallon No. 48, Accormnng Jor .
Unceriainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation,of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for ..
Income Taxes. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes by prescribing a recognition threshold for tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 13, 2006.
The adoption of FIN 48 did not have a matetial impact on our results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

, . o

2008 and Future Adoptions;

SFAS No. 157 In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 137, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No, 137 defines fair value, cstablishes a framework for
measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair. value measurements.
SFAS No. 157 applies to other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, as the Financial
Accounting Standards Board previously concluded in those accounting pronouncements that fair value is the releyant
measurement atiribute. Accordingly, SFAS No. 137 does not require any new fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 was
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. However, a Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff
Postion issued in February 2008, delayed the effectiveness of SFAS No. 157 for one year, but only as applied to nonfinancial
assets and nonfinancial liabilities. We plan to adopt SFAS No. 157 beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2008. We do not
expccl its adoption to have a materlal impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows., ;.

[
1

SFAS No 159 In February 2007, the Financial Accountmg Slandards Board issued Statemem of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. SFAS159 permits
entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. SFAS 159 will be effective at
the beginning of fiscal 2008, We have elected not to adopt SFAS No. 159,

SFAS No. 141R In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141R, Business Combinations, which replaces FAS
No. 141. FAS 141R establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer of a business recognizes and measures.-in its
financial statements the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. In addition, under SFAS 141{R) adjustments
associated with changes in tax contingencies that occur after the one year measurement period are recorded as adjustments to
income. This statement is effective for all business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after December 15, 2008; however, the guidance in this standard regarding the
treatment of income tax contingencies is retrospective to business combinations completed prior 1o January 1, 2009. We
adopt SFAS 141(R) for any business combinations occurring at or subsequent to January 1, 2009, . .
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Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates . : L
- . ! . LK 2.

. Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. In
connection with the preparation of the financial statements, we are required to make assumptions, make estimates and apply -
judgment that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses.and the related disclosures. We base our
assumptions, estimates and judgments on historical experience, current trends and other factors that we believe to be refevant
at the time the financial statements are prepared. On a regular basis, we review the accounting policies, assumptions,
estimates and judgments to ensure that our financial statements are presented fairly and in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. However, because future events and their effects cannot be determined with certainty, actual
results could differ from our assumptions and estimates, and such differences could be material.

* - i .
Our significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 2 to our financial statements included elsewhere in this
report, and readers should review those policies for additional information. We believe that the followinig. accounting policies
are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial results.

Inventory Valuation ‘ . : ‘

We maintain inventoryat the lower of cost or market. We reduce inventory costs for estimates of: vendor
allowances, as described below. Valudtion reserves are established based primarily on forecasted consumer demand,
inventory aging and obsolescence. If our estimates regarding consumer demand are inaccurate or other changes impact
demand for certain products in an unforeseen manner, we may be exposed to losses in excess of our established reserves that
could be material.

We also establish inventory shrink reserves. We estimate a provision for these losses based on independent, periodic
physical inventory counts. We accrue for anticipated physical inventory losses on a location-by-location basis, based on a
number of factors, including historical results. If our estimates regarding inventory losses are inaccurate, we may be exposed
to.losses in excess of our established reserves that could be material. - : ’

We are not aware of any events or changes in-demand or price that would indicate to us that our inventory valuation
is not in compliance with our policy. ‘ :

Vendor Allowances

We receive allowances in the form of reductions to amounts owed and/or payments from vendors related to volume
rebates, new store purchases, cooperative advertising allowances and other purchase discounts. Amounts to be received from
a vendor are estimated on a monthly basis and are recognized as a reduction of costs of goods sold as the merchandise is sold.
We record an estimate of earned allowances based on actual and estimated volumes of merchandise purchased from these
vendors. The mdjority of these vendor allowances are based on specific contract terms with our vendors.

* i

Valuation df Long-Lived Assets Cor- . oo

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles are reviewed for impairmént whenever eévents or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets o be held and
used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the assets to future, undiscounted net cash flows estimated by us
to be generated by these assets. 1 such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is the amount
by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. ~* - " ’

Our impairment loss calculation contains uncertainty because management must use judgment to estimate future
cash flows and asset fair values and to determine the useful lives of the assets. If actual results are not consistent with our
assumptions and estimates regarding these factois, we may be exposed to losses that could be material.

' ] . . f

'

Costs Associated with Exit Activities - : . . :

The calculation of our location-closing liability requires us to make assumptions and to apply judgment regarding -
the timing and duration of future vacancy periods, the amount and timing of futuré lump sum settlement payments and the:
amount and timing of potential future sublease income. - ‘
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When making these assumptions, we consider a number of factors, including historical settlement experience, the
owner of the property, the location and condition of the property, the terms of the underlying lease, the specific marketplace
demand and general economic conditions. Financial accounting standards require that we estimate the potential value of sub-
lease income for store locations slated to be ciosed in our calculation of lease termination charges. Estimated sub-lease
intome can be of material amounts. If actual results are not consigtent with our assumptions and judgments; we may be
exposed to additional charges that could be material. We are not aware of any events or-changes in circumstances that would
require calculation of a location closing liability at this time, except as we have recorded and dlsclosed in our current
financial statements. -

Insurance

’
r f ! V

We retain a portion of the risk related to certain general liability, workers’ compensation, property loss and
employee medical and dental claims. Liabilities associated with these losses are calculated for claims filed, and claims
incurred but not yet reported, at our estimate of their.ultimate cost, based upon analysis of historical data and actuarial
estimates, Qur expected loss accruals are based on estimates, and while we believe the amounts accrued are adequate the
ultimate loss may differ from the amounts prowded

.

ITEM TA. QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
* . - N . . | 1

Our earnings are affected by changes in interest rates due to the impact those changes have on our interest expense

on borrowings under our credit facility. Our floating rate indebtedness was $286.0 million at February 2, 2008 and

$168.5 million at February 3, 2007. If short-term floating interest rates on the average fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 variable

. rate debt had increased by 100 basis points, our annual interest expense would have increased by approximately $2.4 million

and $2.1 million, respectively, assuming comparable borrowing levels. These amounts are determined by considering the

impact of the hypothetical interest rates on our average amount of floating rate indebtedness outstanding for each of the

respective fiscal years. We have not contracted for any derivative financial instruments. We have no international sales,

however, we import certain items for sale in our stores. Substantially all of our purchases are denominated in U.S. dollars.
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Management’s Report on Iriternal Control Ovef,Financi_a] Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Rule |3a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Qur intemal controls are designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of fi nancnal statements for external
. purposes in accordance with g g,cnerally accepted accountmg principles. - - SN

M +

All internal controls, no maner how we]l desngned, have inherent iimitations. Therefore, even those controls
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and
presentation, Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to-future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate,

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and chief
financial officer, we assessed the-effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of February 2, 2008. In
making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsonng Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO) in Imemal C'omro!—]megmted Framework. . .

Qur assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the
internal controls of Overton’s Inc, which is included in the February 2, 2008 consolidated financial statements of Gander
Mountain Company and constituted 13.5% of total assets as of February 2, 2008 and 0.6% and 3. 8% of revenues and net
- income, respectively, for the year then ended. e : ‘

Based on our evaluation under the framework in lnternal Control—Integrated Framework, our management |
concluded that our company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of February 2, 2008.:

Ermnst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation report on the
Company’s internal controls over financial reporting as of February 2, 2008 as stated in their report included herein,

f [ . y. B

/S/ MARK R. BAKER _
Mark R. Baker ' o ‘ o S
Chief Executive Officer and Presrdem ; -

/s/ ROBERT J. VOLD
Robert J. Void ‘
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

May 2, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Gander Mountain Company

We have audited Gander Mountain Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of February 2, 2008,
based on criteria established in /nternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria}: Gander Mountain Company’s management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting; and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial,
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion-on Gander Mountam Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit. .

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) (PCAOB). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk-that a material weakness exists,
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. . '

A company’s internal control over finaricial reporting is a process designed to.provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairty reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized .
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting,
management’s assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did riot include
the internal contrals of Overton’s Inc., which is included in the February 2, 2008 consclidated financial statements of Gander
Mountain Company and constituted 13.5% of total assets as of February 2, 2008 and 0.6% and 3.8% of revenues and net *
income, respectively, for the year then ended. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of Gander Mountain
Company also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Overton’s Inc.

In our opinion, Gander Mountain Company maintained, in all material respects, effective inteal control over
financial reporting as of February 2, 2008, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB, the consolidated balance sheets of Gander
Mountain Company as of February 2, 2008, and February 3, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity, and cash fows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended February 2, 2008, and our report
dated May 1, 2008, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP -

Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 1, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Gander Mountain Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Gander Mountain Company as of February 2,
2008, and February 3, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended February 2, 2008. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed
in Item 15(a). These financial statements and Schedulc are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opmlon on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits. :

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) (PCAOB) Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as eva]uatmg the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audnq‘prowde a reasonable basis for-our opinion. ‘

In our opinion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Gander Mountain Company at February 2, 2008, and February 3, 2007, and the consolidated results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended February 2, 2008, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth
therein. o

As discussed in Note 2, in 2006, Gander Mountain Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payvment.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB, the effectiveness of Gander Mountain
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of February 2, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and
our report dated May 1, 2008, expressed an unqualifi cd opinion thereon.

/sf Ernst & Young LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 1, 2008
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Gander Mountain Company

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands)

February 2, February 3,
. 2008 . 2007
Assets
Current assets: ‘
Cash and cash BQUIVALENTS ..o s et s $2,622 $1,342
Accounts teCeIVADIE ........o v e Ce deveerreeenees 10,992 10,337
Tncome 1ax receivable ... s 486 —
LB = 1L £ 1= U T OO PO OO PO OIOUPESTPUUONNVOPIVRPYS. 403,683 349,120
Prepaids and other current assets .................. U SOV PT T UR S 15,987 10,681
TOUA] CUITEIIE BSSEIS wevvvveverraesereiaeserereseesesesasrereeresrreneeransasssssasssames s saatebassas s srsesressnsesasssueessemess 433,770 371,480
Property and equipment, Net.....o.ccovvvvmrreimiennininiiins S O SOOI 168,685 144,439
GOOAWILL ... ee et stesaet e et eemeeee st enbe e sbas s e s e aresae b s ses s noeasaae s smcnmerdsabaa b et s b ann e s b g raenanas 48,803 2,837
Acquired in1angible a8SEtS, MEL .........cuiiirininierne s e 25,098 —
ORRET BSSEUS, MEL..eeeeieicecariietssis i b aeae bbb b s b 3,576 2,861
TOUAL ASSES 1evrenreeeeeeee oo esestistassensrensresnsseessensassasessessnssesebnrenmsnenteassnsssanssnsssneneenssbensisiassdannsnnns $679,932 $521,617
Liabilities and shareholders® equity
Current liabilities: - ‘ !
Borrowings under credit fAcility ..o $246,013 "$168,485
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ......cveier sttt ettt e s s 72,563 62,868
Accrued and other current liabilities........... e ttertereatrrrar ettt iatasoanrieeateseteteaarenabaerenraneeneee s : 60,606 48,032
Current maturities of long term debt. ... 8,247 1,677
Tlal CUITENT LADIHTES ..ot ceiit et sestrsasvarss e er s emeroe e rts s bc i sbs s s srara s b e s e ne s esessan s eas s nns e 387,429 281,062
LoNg termm debl. ..o e s 64,173 16,421
Deferred iNCOME tAXES .oveereeeeeceeecesievemreernresnees et er et et et etear et e et e s aa s e reasaeensenn e entres '\ 7,113 —
Other long term HabiliEs ...o.c.oco il st s 27,397 - 27,343
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock ($.01 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and
OUISIANGINE) ©..cevveev oot ere s sees st sas s e er e E a1k s — —
Common stock ($.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 24,049,064 and
20,027,788 shares issued and outstanding) ... 241 200
Additional paid-in-Capital.....cc.ccocoirrriii e 277,110 252,408
Notes receivable from Shareholders ..o e e e sss s mre s e srbaeaes — (4,100)
ACCUMUIALE AEFICHE . coveeieeeeeee vt rrereer e e et s b e e b e e sae st (83,531) (51,717)
Total shareholders’ equity ... ' 193,820 196,791
Total liabilities and shareholders equtty ............................... et e e $679,932 $521,617

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Gander Mountain Company.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except per share data)

Fiscal Year

55

) ) 52 weeks 53 weeks 52 weeks
ot . s February 2, February 3, January 28,
X ¢ e 2008 2007 2006

O ettt e bbb e R et a e e TR R e r et ereenseeen s $969.403 $911,438 $804,474
Cost of 2oods sold"......ccoo e Tt e e sne e ea e benabeane 728,649 686,722 612,029
GIOSS PIOTIE oot e semes s e s eee e et ee e srsr s e emeaee e 240,754 224,716 192,445
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative eXpenses .........vereevemrvierirnnecens - 240,744 207,431 187,956

Exit costs, impairment and ather charges SR R erevestnreaaaeaas 6,493 458 - . 2:635

Pre-Opeiing €XPENSES oo cen e sitsenienee e neesinresseressesanens et . 4,836 3,245 - 6,555

Gain on INSUrance SeHICMEeNt........cc.oev vt ieeeseeee e a e — ¢« (1,400) —

Gain 0N CONMTACE SEMIEIMENT ......coveeeeereeee e eese et eeesresesee e eeeereas — — (2,500
(Loss) income from Operations ............ccocccocrenvmeomcnscsseconsrersssesieesseeees (11,319) 14,982 (2,201
[NEETESL @XPENSE, NEL..otiiiiirici ittt b ' 19,745 19,187 11,106
Debt cONVersion Charge ...........oo......eereeen — 9,037 L
Loss béfore income taxes . (31,064) (13,242) (13.307)
INCOME 1AX PIOVISION .vvoeerierreecieererereeseseennaae et s 750 o — - —
INEE LSS . vvocvr e ereseeeeeere e eeesseeeaeessesessseees e s et eesassensereeeseessesenassaremereenes $(31.814) $(13,242) 3(13,307)
‘Basic and diluted loss per common share ......c.cc.ooooovverviieeinean, ST . 3(1.52) 3(0.88) $(0.93)
Weighted average common shares outstanding.........cc.cooevvvvvrienrniveecniennne, 20,913 15,100 14,257

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. ’ ’
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(In thousands) -

Gander Mountain Cempany-

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Fiscal Year

52 weeks 53 weeks 52 weeks
February 2, February 3, January 28,
2008 2007 2006
Operating activities . .
Net loss .. . $(31,814) $(13,242) $(13,307)
Ad]ustments to recon(:lle net Ioss to nct cash (used m) / prowded
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amMOIZAtion ..........cov s s 27,589 22,829 18,754
Exit costs, impairment and other charges ....................................... 4,561 — —
Debt conversion Charge ..o s — 9,037 —
Stock-based compensation EXPenSe ... imenisnseenen: 1,587 1,343 319
Loss / (gain) on disposal of assets........ooovviimrnneininscninnn 289 (700) 389
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
. (Net of acquired assets and acquired liabilities) )
Accounts 1eCeIVADIE ..o 484 (5,?22) 2,132
INVEMLOTIES «vovveviriiiieeasssrareseeseeseneemeersaesbeatsrs e ressirasssressesneananenass (36,324) (40,725) (44,257)
"Prepaids and other CUTTENL ASSELS .......cuvrrrvesoercrsserrmssrnresssrsssons (3,947) (7,940) (119
OHhEE BSSELS .eveeneivireierierenteiniase s ererrariesssbassesanars e s sba s abasatesnares (2,046) — —
Accounts payable and other liabilities .. 9,224 35,724 5,810
Net cash (used in) / prov1ded by operatmg activities.. {30,397) 604 (30,279)
Investing activities h
Purchases of property and equipment........cccovvromiiinnn. (46,549) (36,488) (60,320}
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash dcquired of $1.4 million......... (76,493) — —
Proceeds from insurance settlement.............ocoeeiirmimicrennmrsnnimeinescane 726 6,097 —
Proceeds from sale 0f assets .........ocovvceveeernoverieni e — 2,100 10,843
Net cash used in investing actiVities ......ocooereeerniiins i {122,316) (28,291) (49.477)
Financing activities
Borrowings (repayments) under credit facility ..o 77,528 (6,451) 60,495
Proceeds from sales of common stock, net of expenses ........ccoeeee.ee. 23,967 29,540 —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and employee stock
PULCRASES 1.vvveveeeececee et bbb sam bt e 3,290 289 505
Proceeds from long term debt ..o 53,082 5,300 20,000
Reductions in long term debt ... e (3,874 (1,229) {697)
Net cash provided by financing activities ... 153,993 27,449 80,303
Net increase / {decrease) in cash...........oimin i, 1,280 (238) 547
Cash, beginning of period. ..., 1,342 1,580 1,033
Cash, end of period ..o s $2,622 $1,342 $1.580
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Gander Mountain Company
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

4+ .

Balance, January 29, 2005
Netloss ....... e e
Exercise of stock options
Common stock issued under )

employee stock purchase plans . ...
Stock option expense ‘

Balance, January 28, 2006
Netloss ....oovivniiiiiinn...
Exercise of stock options
Stock purchase agreement
Common stock issued under

employee stock purchase plans . . ..
Stock option expense ,

Balance, February 3, 2007 P, S

Net loss ' '

Stock purchase agreements
Common stock issued under
empoyee stock purchase plans. .. ..
Stock option expense
Balans:e, February 2, 2008

' See accompanying notes:io consolidated financial statements.

(In Thousands, Except Share Data)

] P

)

! Notes

Common Stock Additional Receivable . Total
. Paid-in From Accumulated Shareholders®

Shares s Capital Shareholders Deficit Equity
14,221,925 $142  $191,434 $(4,100) ©  $(25,168) ° $162,308
: L — R— g— (13,307) (13,307
35,000 0.4 290 N — 291
28,362 03 214 - —_ 214
S — 319 o — 319
14,285,287 5143 $192,257 $(4,100) $(38,475) $149.825
— —_ — — (13,242) (13,242)
3,637 — 24 - — 24
5701255 57 58518 — - 58,575
37,609 0.4 266 — — 266
— — 1,343 — —_ 1,343
20,027,788  $200  $252,408 $(4,100)  $(51,717) $196,791
- — — — (31814 (31,814)
(428 928) @) (4,096) 4,100 N —_
323,543 3 2,930 — — 2,933
4,067,797 41 23,926 — — "23,967
58,864 06 355 — — 356
— — 1,587 — — 1,587
24,049,064 3241 $277,110 $— $193,820
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Gander Mountain Company

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business

Gander Mountain Company Inc. (“the Company”) operates the nation’s largest retail network of stores specializing
in hunting, fishing, camping, marine and outdoor lifestyle products and services. Since its origin in 1960, the Company’s
brand name has had a heritage of strong appeal and relevance to consumers who participate in outdoor sports and recreation
activities. The Company’s core strategy and focus is to provide its target customer with a unique retail experience founded
upon the Company’s “We,Live Outdoors™ culture and theme. The Company. is transforming its market position from a
traditional specialty store to a large-format, category-focused store by opening large-format stores and increasing the selling
space within its existing stores. The large-format strategy has allowed the Company to offer its customers a broader and
deeper assortment of merchandise. The Company offers competitively priced hunting, fishing, camping and boating
equipment, accessories and related technical apparel and footwear, as well as gunsmith, archery, ATV and marine services.
It’s stores feature national, regional and local brands as well as its owned brands, and the Company’s associates provide
knowledgeable customer service. '

As of February 2, 2008, the Company operated 113 stores in 23 states: Alabama, Arkansas, Colorado, Florida,
llinois, Indiana, lowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, New York, North Carolina, North
Dakota, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Texas, Tennessee, Virginia, West Virginia and Wisconsin. ’ )

On December 6, 2007, the Company completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding equity securities of
Overton’s Holding Company (“Overton’s”). Overton’s is a leading internet and catalog marketer of specialty water sports
and related marine accessories. Overton’s product line is extensive, ranging from water skis, wakeboards, dive gear, apparel
and footwear to marine electronics, GPS devices, boat maintenance and repair, trailers, and boat and truck accessories.
Overton’s products are sold under two principal brands, Overton’s™ and Consumers Marine®, through catalogs, websites
(www.Overtons.com and www. Consumersmarine.com) and three product showrooms. The acquisition of Overton’s will
enable the Company to accelerate its strategy to reach customers through an integrated, multi-channel approach utilizing
catalogs, websites and retail stores. Overton’s will continue to operate under the “Overton’s®” brand and as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Overton’s since its acquisition
date. "

With the acquisition of Overton’s the Company has two reportable segments: Retail and Direct. The Retail segment
sells its outdoor lifestyle products and services through our retail stores. The Direct segment is the internet and catalog
operations of Overton’s. The Company has evaluated it’s operating and reporting segments in accordance with SFAS
No. 131 and has considered the discrete financial information reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in making
decisions regarding allocation of resources and in assessing performance.

The following table shows the Company’s sales during the past three fiscal years by product category:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
Category(l) 2007 2006 2005
HHUITEIIE covvcveeececi ettt st ese b ba e R e d o b bbb s 43.0% 45.1% 42.8%
Fishing and Marine(2) ........c....... ST S OO SOR USRS ORON 16.0% 14.6% 155%
Camping, Paddlesports and Backyard Equipment 7.2% 77%  8.3%
APPAre] and FOOIWEAT......cuiivriuiimraisins et sbe bbb 24.0%  25.1%  26.3%

6.8% 4.3% 3.83%
1.8% 2.3% 2.5%
1.2% 0.9% 0.7%
100.0% 100.0% 106.0%

(1) Certain reclassifications to categories have been made. All years are stated on a comparable basis.
2 Overton’s sales of $5.5 million for two months of fiscal 2007 have been included in the Fishing and Marine
category. ' :

58




Fiscal Year The Company’s year-end is the Saturday closest to the end of January, electing a 52 or 53 week year.
The fiscal year ended February 3, 2007 (fiscal 2006) included 33 weeks. The fiscal years ending February 2, 2008 (fiscal
2007) and January 28, 2006 (fiscal 2005) included 52 weeks.

Reclassifications Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
These reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net income, cash flows, or financial position.

Cost of Sales and Selling, General and Administrative Expenses The classification of these expenses.varies
across the retail indusiry. The following describes the primary costs classified in each ‘of our major expense categories:

.

Cost of sales:
Retail segment includes costs of product sold and the following:

(i) frclght expenses associated with moving merchandlse from our vendors to our dlsmbutlon centers and to
our retail stores

(i} vendor income that is not t'eiml:)ursemer)t.0‘1c specific, incremental and identifiable costs

(iii) ) rr‘u;lr'kdowns and changes in reserve baianbes‘ for produ-cts with marketaval.ue lower tharl cost

(iv) shrink

() distribution center costs, which includes all costs to operate (;ur distribution c.enter iﬁcludrng freight

expenses associated with replenishment of product to our stores, labor and occupancy costs
(vi) store occuparicy costs such as rent, taxes and common area maintenance charges.

Direct marketing segment includes costs of product sold and the following:

[ +

() freight expenses associated with delivery of product direct to consumers o ‘
Selling, general and admmutrattve expeunses:

Begmnmg with'this filing of our form 10-K for fiscal 2007 the Company changed the preqentatlon of the
consolidated statement of operations as a result of the acquisition of Overton’s, a direct marketing company. Previously, the
Company presented two operating expense captions: “Store Operating expenses” and “General and Administrative
expenses”. These two captions are now combined into the caption “Selling, General and Admmlstralwe expenses”. This
reclassification has been made for all years presented, : ’

Retail segmemmcludes: o ‘ . . .o .

(i) marketing and advertising expenses
(1) compensation and benefit expenses for our stores and corporate office
(iii) other'store operating expenses such as depreciation, supplies, store maintenance, credit card fees, and other

direct store expenses
(iii) expenses of our corporate offices in St. Paul, MN

{iv) expenses associated with shared service and corporate functions such as merchandising/buying,
information technology, human resources and finance/ accounting

Direct marketing segment includes: |

() catalog production and distribution expenses and other marketing expenses
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(ii} compensation and benefit expenses for our order fulfillment center and call center

(iii) expenses of the Overton’s corporate office in Greenville, NC..

(iv)-  expenses associated with shared service and corporate functions of Overton’s such as
merchandising/buying, information technology, human resources and finance/ accounting

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. ° b

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Management’s estimates relate primarily to the valuation of receivables
and inventories and the recorded amounts of certain accrued liabilities. Ultimate results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash equivalents represent short-term investments with a maturity of three months or
less from the time of purchase and are carried at cost, which approximates market.

t

Accounts Receivable Accounts receivable consist primarily of third-party credit card receivables, earned but
unbilled vendor allowances and receivables from landlords. No allowance is needed against these receivables for expected
losses.

The Company also has amounts due from vendors for returned products and certain vendor allowances reflected as
reductions in accounts payable in the Company’s balance sheets because the Company has the right of offset against amounts
owed to vendors for merchandise purchases. An allowance is recognized for these receivables in an amount equal to the
anticipated future write-offs based on historical experience and other factors. The allowances for these amounts due to the
Company were $250,000, and $150,000 as of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007, respectively.

Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of weighted average cost (which approximates the first-in, first-out
cost) or market. Inventories consist of the direct cost of merchandise including freight. [nventories are net of shrinkage,
certain vendor allowances, and other valuation reserves. Valuation reserves are established based primarily on forecasted
consumer demand, inventory aging and obsclescence. '

Property and Equipment Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense as incurred. Major additions, replacements and improvements are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization have
been computed using the straight-line method for financial reporting purposes and an accelerated method for income tax
reporting purposes. . . o -

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their useful life or the initial lease term of the lease,
without considering renewal periods. The Company will include a renewal period in determining the amortizable life of
leasehold improvements in situations where a material investment in a leased property is made substantially after the initial
lease term has begun. The Company will consider the number of years remaining on the initial lease term and other
circumstances as appropriate. Estimated useful lives by major asset category are as follows:

Asset Catepory . . , Life (in years)

BUilding ..o vovrvveeecc e . 40°
Furniture and equIPment............cocvmmmmimsimecencins , y . 3-10.
Leasehold improvements........weseseeseeseniains Initial lease term

Computer software and BardwWare ..o 3-8

Long-Lived Assets All long-lived assets are reviewed when events or chang‘es in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when estimated undiscounted cash
flows to be gencrated by those assets are less than the carrying value of the asset. When an impairment ,ldss is recognized, the
carrying amount is reduced to its estimated fair value. Fair value is based on appraisals or other reasonable methods to
estimate value. The Company follows the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. ‘
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over fair value of net
assets acquired. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, prohibits the
amottization of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. SFAS No, 142 requires that these assets be tested
annually for impairment in the same manner as other long-lived assets. The Company tested its goodwill in the fourth
quarters of fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 and no impairment recognition was required based on those tests. Intangible assets
with indefinite lives are tested for impairment at teast annually or whenever an event has occurred that would more likely
than not reduce fair value below the carrying amount. Subsequent to the acquisition of Overton’s, the Company determmed
that it has two reporting units for purposes of impairment testing—Retail and Direct.

Stock-Based Compensation Effettive January 29, 2006, the Company adopted the fair-value recognition
provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share- Based Pavment, which
requires the measurement and recognition of compensation cxpense for ail stock-based payment awards made to employees -
and directors including employee stock option awards and employee stock purchases made under the Company’s employee
stock purchase plan. The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, using the modified-prospective transition-
method. Under this transition method, stock-based compensation expense was recognized in the Company’s financial
statements for granted, modifted, or settled stock options and for expense related to the employee stock purchase plan. The
provisions of SFAS No. 123R apply to new stock options and stock options outstanding, but not yet vested, on the effective -
date of January 29, 2006. Results for prlor periods have not been restated, in accordance with the medified-prospective
transition method.

Through fiscal 2003, the Company had continued to apply Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting
Jor Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations in accounting for its stock-based employee compensation plans.
Accordingly, any compensation cost for stock options was measured as the excess, if any, of the fair market value of the
Company’s stock at the measurement date over the employee’s option exercise price.

. Net Income (Loss) per Share- Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings per Share (EPS),
requires dual presentation of basic EPS and diluted EPS on the face of all statements of operations. Basic EPS is computed as
net income (loss) available to common shareholders divided by the weighted average number of comimon shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur from common shares issuable through stock
options, warrants, and ‘convertible securities. .

Outstanding options and convertible securities to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock were not
included in the diluted EPS calculation for all years presented in the' financial statements, as they were antidilutive. The
shares of common stock subject to potential issuance as a result of these outstanding securities totaled 3,507,113, 3,945, 475
and 4,930,804 as of Fehruary 2, 2008, February 3, 2007 and January 28. 2006, respectively.

The potential 4,930,804 shares issuable as of January 28, 2006 included 1,250,000 shares that were issuable upon
conversion of the subordinated unsecured convertible note. This convertible note was no longer outstanding as.of February 3,
2007. . '

Revenue Recognition Revenue from retail sales is recognized at the time of sale. Revenue generated from sales is
reduced by a reserve for estimated returns. The estimated returns reserve is based upon historical experience. Revenue from
layaway sales is recognized upon receipt of final payment from the customer. Revenue does not include sales tax as the
Company considers itself a pass-through conduit for collecting and remitting sales tax.

For internet and catalog generated revenue, the Company recognizes revenue at the time of shipment from its
distribution center or from its factory direct vendors’ distribution center. The Company records sales generated as a result of
the Company’s factory direct or drop ship arrangements when the third-party factory direct vendor confirms to the Company
the shipment to the Company’s customer.

Freight charges billed to customers in the Direct sepment are included in net sales and freight expense incurred with
shipping products to customers:is included as a component of cost of goods sold in.the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations. Freight revenue included in net sales for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2008 was $377,000.

- The Company offers-a co-branded credit card to its customers-through a third party who manages the program and
directly extends the credit. In exchange for providing access to customers, the Company receives royalties for each activated -
account.and rebates for customer purchases in Gander Mountain and non-Gander Mouritain stores. These revenues are
recognized when earned and included in sales in the accompanying statement of operations. The estimated cost of discounts
offered in conjunction with the credit card program is recognized as a reduction of sales as customers earn the discounts, In
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February 2005, the co-branded credit card program that commenced in fiscal 2003 was terminated by mutual agreement. In
March 2005, the Company received $2,500,000 relating to the termination of its contract with the former provider. This
payment to the Company is reflected as a separate line item in the accompanying statement of operations for fiscal 2005. In
October 2003, the Company launched a new co-branded credit card with similar provisions and features through a new third
party provider. : '

Revenues from cash received from gift certificates and gift cards are deferred and are recognized when redeemed for
merchandise. Prior to their redemption, the gift certificates and gift cards are recorded as a liability.

Vendor Incentives The Company receives incentives in the form of reductions to amounts owed and/or payments
from vendors related to volume rebates, new store purchases, cooperative advertising allowances, and other purchase
discounts. The Company accounts for vendor incentives in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force No. 02-1 6,
Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor. Under this guidance,
the presumption is that cash consideration received from a vendor should be classified as a reduction of cost of sales when
the inventory is sold. If the consideration received represents a payment for assets delivered to the vendor, it should be.
classified as revenue. If the consideration is a reimbursement of a specific, incremental, identifiable cost incurred in selling
the vendor’s product, the cost should be characterized as a reduction of the cost incurred.

Leases The Company leases all of its store locations and the order fulfillment center and office facilities from
which it's wholly owned subsidiary Overton’s operates. The Company accounts for its leases under the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, dccounting for Leases, subsequent amendments, and appropriate ETIF
guidance, which require that the Company’s leascs be evaluated and classified as operating or capital leases for financial
reporting purposes. All store leascs, except for one,are treated as operating leases for financial reporting purposes.

Certain leases have scheduled rent increases. In addition, certain leases include an initial period of free or reduced
rent as an inducement to enter into the lease agreement (“rent holidays”): The Company recognizes rent expense for rent
escalations and rent holidays on a straight-line basis over the initial term of the lease {or usefui life if applicable), beginning
on the earlier of the commencement date of the lease or the date when the Company takes possession of the building for
construction of leaseholds or the initial setup of fixtures and merchandise. Certain leases also stipulate that additional rent is
paid when sales at those leased stores exceed a specified threshold. The additional rent expense under these leases was not
material in any fiscal years presented.

Historically, the Company typically has received tenant improvement allowances from the property landlord to fund
leasehold improvements. Such allowances were minimal in fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006. The Company records these
allowances in a deferred rent liability account, These credits are amortized on a straight-line basis, as a reduction to rent
expense, over the same period as rent expense described above.

'
wot -

Extended Warranty Program Company’s vendors are primarily responsible for warranty claims. Warranty costs
relating to merchandise and services sold under warranty, which are not covered by vendors’ warranties, are estimated based
on the Company’s historical experience and are recorded in the period the product is sold. In November 2002, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board issucd Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor's Acconnting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others. FIN 45 provides guidance on the recognition and
disclosure of certain types of guarantees, including product warranties.

The Company offers a limited extended warranty program primarily for firearms. Customers can purchase one year
of coverage above and beyond the manufacturer’s warranty period. Under the terms of the warranty program, revenue has
been deferred and is recognized over the contractual period of the program, The deferred revenue amount for warranties at
February 2, 2008, February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 was $741,000, $1,182,000 and $824,000, respectively.

Store Closures [n accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146, Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities, the Company establishes reserves for closing expenses when these liabilities are
incurred. Reserves for store closures are established by calculating the present value of the remaining lease obligation, if any,
adjusted for estimated sub-tenant rental income and any contractual lease buyouts. Expenses associated with these costs are
reflected in “exit costs, impairment and other charges” on the accompanying statement of operations. The remaining lease
obligation is inclusive of the net future minimum lease payments plus estimated common area maintenance charges, less any
remaining accrual for straight-line rent. Store fumniture and cquipment are either transferred at historical cost to another
location, written down to their net realizabie value and sold or written down to zero if the Company does not expect 10
transfer or sell the assets. When a store is identified for closure, the amortization of store leasehold improvements is
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accelerated over the estimated remaining life of the store. Charges to store operating eXpenses totaled $2,882,000, $180,000
and $1,303,000 in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Refer to note 11 for a discussion of these charges.

e A

Gift Cards Revenues from cash received from gift cards and gift certificates (gift cards) are deferred and are
recognized upon redemption. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company changed its method of extinguishing
unredeemed gift card liabilities pursuant to guidance and views published by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
Commission) in December 2005. The Company now records the extinguishment of unredeemed gift card liabilities based on
actual redemptions for the purchase of goods or services. Previously, the Company récorded the extinguishment of *-
unredeemed gift card liabilities at the point of gift card issuance. The difference between these methods was not material and
accordingly, there was no material impact on net earnings, cash flows or financial position as a result of the change.

Based on guidance and views published by the Commission, the Company records the extinguishment of
unredeemed gift card liabilities as revenue in the accompanying statement.of operations. Unredeemed gift cards recorded as
revenue as described above totaled $1,310,000, $1,247,000 and $1,035,000 in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

3 . . . 3

Advertising Costs Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in selling, general and administrative -
expenses in the accompanying statement of operations. Gross advertising expense was $26,295,000,-$23,004,000 and
$27,248,000 for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Certain advertising allowances received from non-
merchandise vendors are recorded as a reduction to advertising expense and were $77,500, $147,000 and $1,033,000 for
fiscal years-2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Included in “Prepaids and other current assets” in the Company’s-balance
sheet are prepaid advertising expenses of $4,087,283 and $1,384,000 as of Fcbruary 2,2008 and February 3 2007,
respectlvely . v,

Overton’s incurs significant catalog costs in conducting their direct marketing business, typically in the first and -
second quarter of the fiscal year. These costs were not material in fiscal 2007 because the consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of Overton's only since its acquisition date. In accordance with Statement of Position 93-7, Reporting on
Advertising Costs, these costs are prepaid and amortized ratably over the llfe of the Catalog based on historically based
revenue patterns. :

Store Pre-opcmng Expenses All xtart-up costs, such as payroll, rent, travel and marketmg costs, associated with
the opening. of new stores are expensed as incurred. : : - ‘

Income Taxes Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, income
taxes are recognized for the amount of taxes payable for the ¢urrent year and for the impact of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, which represent future tax consequences of events that have been recognized differently in the financial statements
than for tax purposes. Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax -
bases of assets and labilities at currently enacted tax rates. A valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets is recorded
when it is more Ilkely than not that some portion or all of the deferred income tax assets will not be realized.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments The carrying amounts of the Company s financial instruments, pnmanly
debt instruments, approximate fair value at February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007.

Software Implementation Costs The Company capitalizes labor costs associated with the implementation of
significant information technology infrastructure projects. This is based on actual labor rates per person including benefits,
for all the time spent in the implementation of the software in accordance with Statement of Position (“SOP”) No. 98-1,
Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use. In fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006, the
Company recorded approximately $3,063,000 and $967,000, respectively, in costs for its.significant software implementation
project, including $213,000 and $78,000 in labor costs. There were no significant software implementation costs in fiscal
2005. : . -

Recent Accounting Pronouncemcnts are as follows

FIN 48 In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB lmerpretatlon No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tuxes (“*FIN 487), an interpretation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes by prescribing a
recognition threshoid for tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax retum. The recognition threshold requires that
the Company determine whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, and then the
position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate
settlement. Unrecognized tax benefits are tax benefits claimed on our tax returns that do not meet these recognition and
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measurement standards. FIN 48 was effective as of the beginning of the first quarter of fiscal 2007. As of February 2, 2008
and February 3, 2007, the Company does not believe that reserves for uncertain income tax positions need to be recorded
pursuant to FIN 48. As a result, and due to the Company’s full valuation allowance, it does not have any unrecognized tax
benefits. Thus, our adoption of FIN 48 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of
operations. The Company does not believe-there will be any material changes in its unrecognized tax positions over the next
12 months. : ) ‘ :

SFAS No. 157 In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS No. 157").
SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes'a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting
principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies to other accounting
pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, as the FASRB previously concluded in those accounting
pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement atiribute. Accordingly, SFAS No. 157 does not require any new
fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. However, a
Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff Postion issued in February 2008, delayed the effectiveness of SFAS No. 157 for
one year, but only as applied to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities. The Company plans to adopt SFAS No. 157
beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2008. The Company does not expect its adoption to have a material impact on its
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. -

SAB No. 108 In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC}) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Curvent Year Financial
Statements, which provides interpretive guidance on the consideration of the effects of prior year misstatements in .
quantifying current year misstatements for the purpose of a materiality assessment. SAB No. 108 was effective for fiscal
2006. The adoption of this statement did not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows or
financial position. :

_ SFAS No. 159 in February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Liabilities—Including an Amendment.of FASB Statement No. 115 (“SFAS No. 1597). SFAS No. 159 permits us to choose to
measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value (the
“Fair Value Option”). Election of the Fair Value Option is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis and is irrevocable. At
the adoption date, unrealized gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities for which the Fair Value Option has been
elected would be reported as a cumulative adjustment to beginning retained earnings. The Company has elected not to adopt
SFAS No. 159.

SFAS No. 141R In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141R, Business Combinations, which replaces FAS
No. 141. FAS 141R establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer of a business recognizes and measures in its
financial statements the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. In addition, under SFAS 141(R} adjustments
associated with changes in tax contingencies that occur afier the one year measurement period are recorded as adjustments to
income. This statement is effective for all business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after December 15, 2008; however, the guidance in this standard regarding the
treatment of income tax contingencies is retrospective to business combinations completed prior to January 1, 2009. The
Company will adopt SFAS 141(R) for any business combinations occurring at or subsequent to January 1, 2009.

Note 3. Business Acquisitions S

Overton’s Holding Company

On December 6, 2007, the Company completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding equity securities of
Overton’s Holding Company (“Overton’s”) pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement among the Company, Overton’s
and the sellers named therein. As a result of this transaction, Overton’s became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
The total purchase price for the acquisition was $72.3 million, including the repayment of Overton’s existing long term
indebtedness at closing and direct costs of the acquisition. The Company financed this purchase price with the new term loan

described in Note 5, the equity financing described in Note 7 and borrowings under the Company’s revolving credit facility.

Overton’s is a leading internet and catalog marketer of specialty water sports and related marine accessories.
Overton’s product line is extensive, ranging from water skis, wakeboards, dive gear, apparel and footwear to marine
electronics, GPS devices, boat maintenance and repair, trailers, and boat and truck accessories. Qverton’s products are sold
under two principal brands, Overton’s and Consumers Marine, through catalogs, websites (www. Overtons.com and
www. Consumersmarine.com) and three product showrooms.
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The acquisition of Overton’s will enable the Company to accelerate its strategy to reach customers through an
integrated, multi-channel approach wtilizing catalogs, websites and retail stores. Overton’s will continue to operate under the
QOverton’s brand and as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.'Pursuant to a non-compete agreement entered into by
QOverton’s as part of a previous transaction in 2002, Overton’s is restricted from selling hunting related products until March
2009. Between Gander Mountain and Overton’s capabilities and resources, the Company will be able to feature a full
complement of internet and catalog offerings.

Overton’s results of operations are included in the Company’s statement of operations from the acquisition date. The
transaction was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business
Combinations. The acquisition of Overton’s was not material to Gander Mountain Company and therefore the Company has
not provided pro-forma financial information. The total $72.3 million purchase price is comprised of the following (in
thousands):

Cash paid - : $70,000-

. Present value of deferred PAYMIENIS ..ottt st 1,479
DIitect COStS .ovieriiiriinecinirc e IS 853
Total PUrEhase PriCe......ccoovierrectirererncreieescnerennenssse SO vt $72,332

The deferred payments require a $900,000 payment in each June 2009 and June 2010. The ]iabilify was discounted
using a long term borrowing rate with an adjustment for risk premium. Direct costs include mainly legal and accounting fees,
business valuation and other external costs directly related to the acquisition.

Purchase price allocation: In accordance with SFAS No. 141, the total purchase price was allocated to Overton’s
net tangible and intangible assets and liabilities based upon their fair values as of December 6, 2007. This allocation is
preliminary and subject to finalization of a valuation by an independent appraiser. The Company expects to finalize the
purchase price allocation in the first half of fiscal 2008. The excess purchase price over the value of the net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets was recorded as goodwill. The Company employed the services of an independent valuation
specialist to assist in the valuation and allocation of goodwill resulting from the acquisition. The following represents the
allocation of the purchase price 1o the acquired net assets of Overton’s and the associated estimated useful lives (in
thousands):

Amount Esltimnted Useful Life
Net tangible assets.......... $11,487 —
Property and equipment.... 1,020 2-5 years
Tradenames /Trademarks .... 21,223 indefinite
Noncompete agreement ... 1,927 3 years
Customer relationships .. 1,506 7 years
Goodwill.....cooovniniciecen, ettt 42,282 indefinite
Deferred tax liabilities................... P — (1,113 —

$72,332

The noncompete agreement and the Customer relationships intangible assets were determined by management to
have finite lives. The uscful life of the customer relationships was estimated to be seven years based on management’s
previous experience with customers’ buying habits. The useful life of three years for noncompete agreements was based on
the expiration term of the noncompete contract that was executed with the prior owners and management. None of the
amortizable assets are expected to have a residual value at the end of their respective useful lives. It was determined that the
Tradenames/Trademarks intangible asset had an indeterminate life as the Company believes it will derive value from the
utility of the Overton’s brand for the foreseeable future, The Company will continue to use the Overton’s long-standing brand
awareness and reputation in growing and expanding its Direct business. The mtanglble assets with {inite lives are amortized
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. . . :

Acquisition of Remil Competitor

In September 2007, we acquired a competitor’s business consisting of a retail store that was selling similar outdoor
lifestyle products and which was located within close proximity to one of our retail stores. The purchase price paid in cash
was $7.1 million including transaction costs. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in
accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, The purchase price allocation resulted in an excess of purchase
price over net tangible assets acquired of $3.7 million. Substantially all of the excess was attributed to goodwill except for
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$250,000 which was allocated to a covenant not-to-compete agreement. The goodwill will not be subject to amortization for
book purposes but rather an annual impairment test for recoverability. The goodwill will be deductible for tax purposes. We
have closed the competitor’s store and transferred the operation and assets to our location. Results of the acquired business
have been included in our operations from the date of the acquisition. '

Note 4. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for goodwill according to the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. The Company has performed an annual. testing for impairment of its
- goodwill and intangible assets. As of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007, the reported goodwil! and intangible assets are
as follows: : .

Gross cost—by reporting Less: Accumulated Net Amount
segment amortization
. February 2,
Retail Direct” Total Retail Direct Total 2008
GoodWill{1)(2) e $8,064  $42,282  $50,346 5(1,543) 5— $(1,543) $48.803
Tradenames /Tradémarks(1)}................ — 21,223 21,223 — — — 21,223
Noncompete agreements ... 1,046 1,927 2,973 (484) (120) (604) 2,369
Customer relationships .oeeeeeererereenne — 1,506 1,506 — — — 1,506
Intangible assets.......cccooininnnnns . S1.046  $24,656  $25702  $(484)  $(120) ~ §(604) $25,098
Gross cost—hy reporting Less: Accumulated .
segment X amortization Net Amount
. C o ) . February 3,
Retail Direct “Taial Retail . Direct Total 2007
GoodWill(1)(2) v $4,380 $— 34,380 $(1,543): $— $(1,543) $2,837
(1) These assets have indefinite lives and are not amortized for f'l‘n.;anci'al reporting pllrp(;ses. -
(2). Goodwill amounts prior to the Overton’s acquisition will continue to be amortized for tax purposes. The Company’s

retail segment also continues to amortize goodwill for tax purposes. The Company’s amortizable goodwill is
approximately $14.9 million as of February 2, 2008.

As of Februéry 2, 2008, the Company expects amortization expense for intangible assets in future periods to be as
shown below (in thousands): '

. Amortization
Fiscal Year ’ - ) Amount
2008 e e e 5857
2000 e e e 857
20T ot e 857
200 e e 215

2012 ..o e s $215
Note 5. Credit Facility and Long Term Debt

The Company-has maintained a revolving credit facility with Bank of America, N.A. since 2001. On August 15,
2007, the Companny agreed with Bank of America, N.A., as agent, and the lenders named therein, to-increase its revolving .
credit facility to $345 million from $275 million, with an option to increase the revolving facility by another $55 million
subject to certain terms and conditions. The amended facility also extends the maturity date for the revolving and term loan,
by three years, to June 30, 2012, The actual availability under the credit facility is limited to specific advance rates on eligible
inventory and accounts receivable. Typically, availability will be highest in the latter half of the fiscal year as inventory levels
and advance rates increase. Interest on the outstanding indebtedness under the revolving portion of the credit facility
currently accrues at the lender’s prime commercial lending rate, or, if the Company elects, at the one; two, three or six month
LIBOR plus 1.25% to 1.75%, depending on the Company’s EBITDA, as defined in the credit agreement, The Company’s
obligations under the credit facility are secured by interests in substantially all of its assets. . -
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Term Loan A. In addition to the revolving credit facility, the Company’s credit facility includes a $20 million term
loan. The amount of the term loan is not deducted in determining availability under the revolving credit facility, except to the
extent that the balance of the term loan exceeds approximately 4% to 5% of the eligible borrowing base. The term loan
matures on June 30, 2012 and bears interest at either (a) 1.25% over the higher of (i} Bank of America’s prime rate or (i1) the
federal funds rate plus 0.5%, or (b} LIBOR plus 2.75%. This additional financing was obtained to maintain the liquidity
levels necessary to fund continued growth and seasonal cash flow needs.

The table below summarizes pertinent information regarding the Company’s credit facility with Bank of America,
N.A. as of the end of fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005:

February 2, February 3, January 28,
2008 2007 . 2006
(in thousands} ~
Maximum credit facility available ... $345,000 . $275,000 $275,000
Revolver and Term Loan A balance .....ccccoovivviveieeieeovre e venvrreseeeceeee s venreas $246,013 . $168,485 - $174,936
Term loan B balance {in long-term)............... ettt et ettt eean $ 40,000 3y = 3 —
Qutstanding letters of credit. ..., $ 7,271 $ 9,619 $ 5,120
Borrowing availability .......cccocoovviiiriiie e srrnsre s sseese e sanreveres $22,313 - $51,299 $ 18,960
Interest rate at year end........ccccnnn et ettt s n et er e s r e st e s 6.3% 7.3% 6.5%

ALIEeemENt MATUTILY ..eovovveirecerreeereireerrrere s s see s sseseesies e emerssesresnsses June 2012 June 2009 June 2009
Credit Facility Amendment and Long Term Note Payable in Connection with Acquisition

On December 6, 2007, the Company entered into a Fourth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement
with Bank of America, N.A., as agent (“Bank of America®), Bank of America Securities, LLC, as the lead arranger, Wells
Fargo Foothill, Inc., as the syndication agent, the CIT Group/Business Credit, Inc., as collateral agent, Genera!l Eleciric
Capital Corporatlon as documeritation’ agent, and the lenders named therein. The amendmem and restatement was effected in
order to add an additional! $40.0 million term loan (“Term Loan B™) to the Company’s secured credit facility to finance the
acquisition of Overton’s and to make certain other amendments, including reducing permitted capitat expenditures and
replacing former covenants relating to minimum operating cash flow and EBITDA with a minimum excess avaitability
reserve covenant. '

" Term Loan B will have a four year maturity, with interest only payments in year one, mandatory semi-annual
principal payments in years two and three, and mandatory quarterly principal payments in year four that will fully amortize
the loan on September 30, 2011. Interest on Term Loan B will be on a tiered schedule ranging from LIBOR plus 3.375% to
LIBOR plus 3.875%, based on'the principal amount outstanding. Term Loan B may be prepaid at any time without penaity,
provided that any such prepayments are subject to specified minimum availability tests. The Company will not have the
ability to exercise the $55.0 million accordion feature under its revolving ¢redit facility while Term Loan B is outstanding.
All of the proceeds of Térm Loan B were used by the Company to finance the acquisition of Overton’s. The amendment and
restatement does not change the interest rates applicable to revolving advances or the Company’s previously cutstanding term
loan. The long-term portion of Term Loan B is classified as as long term debt in the consolidated financial statements.

David C. Pratt, our Chairman, and Holiday Stationstores, Inc:, an affiliate of Ronald A. Ertckson, our Vice
Chairman, and Gerald A. Erickson, a director of our company, provided guaranties of the Term Loan B to Bank of America
in connection with the financing. Mr. Pratt is guaranteeing up to $340.0 million while Holiday is separately guaranteeing up to
$9.9 million of the Term Loan B. Neither Mr. Pratt nor Holiday received any consideration in exchange for their guaranties.

Availability

Outstanding borrowings under the credit facility, including Term Loan A, as of February 2, 2008 and February 3,
2007, were $246.0 million and $168.5 million, respectively. These amounts exclude Term Loan B which was made in
connection with the Overton’s acquisition. The Company’s remaining borrowing capacity under the credit facility, after
subtracting letters of credit, as of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007 was. $22.3 and $51.3 million, respectively.

Covenants

Effective with the December 6, 2007 amendment, financial covenants under the credit facility require that
availability under the line of credit not.fall below 5% of the lower of the borrowing base, as defined, or the credit facility
limit. This availability test is applied and measured on a daily basis. The 5% requirement increases to 7.5% in August 2009.
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The credit facility also contains other covenants that, among other matters, restrict the Company’s ability to incur substantial
other indebtedness, create certain liens, engage in certain mergers.and acquisitions, sell assets, entet into certain capital leases
or make junior payments, inciuding cash dividends. The Company was in compliance with all covenants as of February 2,
2008 and February 3, 2007. :

Note 6. Long Term Debt

The Company’s long term debt consists of the following (in thousands): -

February 2, February 3,

2008 2007

TEITI NOLE Boaeeoeeeeeee e eee s eer e ees e easenssemtsnasbesn s a s s s s e nee e ssbrsen £40,000 $—
Equipment finAancing NOtES ... s 16,659 5,204
Capitalized lease obligations ... 14,213 12,894
Obligation from ACQUISIHOR ......ccvsirisceeeree s s 1,548 —
Total long term debt oblgations.......coevevurrvceiveriinnnsd reeereneeee s en b 72,420 18,098
LeSS: CUITENT MAUTITES 1vevveeveeeeeririnriessassinsrris s sessnsss e (8,247) {1,677)
Long term deDt ... $64,173 $16.421

Term Note B—The Company secured a $40 million term loan with a maturity date of September 30, 2011, in ’

" connection with the acquisition of Overton’s. Refer to Credit Facility Amendment and Long Term Note Payable in

Connection with Acquisition in Note 5 for a more detailed discussion.

Equipment financing notes—During fiscal 2007, the Company entered into agreements with two banks that
allowed it to finance capital expenditures of certain new stores under long-term, secured financing arrangements. In June
2007, in exchange for $7.3 millian, the Company issued 2 promissory note carrying a fixed interest rate of 8.7% and a five
year repayment term. [n September 2007, in exchange for $5.5 million, the Company.issued a promissery note carryinga
fixed interest rate of 8.0% and a four year repayment term. Monthly payments of principal and interest are made under these
notes, which are secured by certain property and equipment of 1§ new stores opened in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005.

In July 2006, the Company completed the purchase of an aircraft and financed $5.3 million of the $5.7 million
purchase price with a term note. The term note matures in seven years and has a 7.26% fixed annual interest rate. The note is
collateralized by the aircraft. . ' ,

. Capitalized lease obligations—The Company leases certain technology equipment and leasehold improvements
under leases that have been accounted for as capital leases. The leases vary from four to 15 years in term and require monthly
payments of principal and interest. The Company also entered into a lease agreement in fiscal 2004 for a retail store that
requires a maximum $150,000 quarterly payment obligation for 20 years from lease inception. The agreement also provides a
bargain purchase option at the end of the lease term, as defined. The required payment obligation is reduced by allowable.
sales tax credits that the Company earns under a related site development agreement.

Acquisition obligation—In connection with the acquisition of Overton’s, we incurred an obligation consisting of a
$900,000 payment due June 2009 and a $900,000 payment due June 2010. The outstanding balance at February 2, 2008
represents the present value of that obligation using a 10% discount factor. . . o,

Note 7. Equity Financing
Unregistered Sale of Equity Securities Issued in Connection with the Acquisition of Overton’s

On December 6, 2007, the Company entered into Stock Purchase Agreements (the “Stock Purchase Agreemenis™)
with Gratco, LLC (“Gratco™), an entity controlled by David C. Pratt, the Company’s Chairman, and with Holiday
Stationstores, Inc, (“Holiday™) an entity controlled by Ronald Erickson and Gerald Erickson, members of our Board of
Directors. Pursuant to the agreements, the Company sold an aggregate of 4,067,797 shares of common stock at $5.90 per
share for an aggregate purchase price of $24.0 million. Gratco purchased 3,065,000 shares for a purchase price of
$18.1 million and Holiday purchased 1,002,797 shares for a purchase price of $5.9 million. The net proceeds were used to
partially fund the purchase price of the Company’s acquisition of Overton’s.

r - .o '
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The shares were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933 upon issuance. The Company offered and-sold the
shares to the purchasers in reliance on the exemption from registration provided by Rule 506 promulgated under
Regulation D. The Company relied on this exemption from registration: based in part on representatlons made by the
purchasers in the Stock Purchase Agreements, .. Co o L '

The Company provided customary registration rights to the purchasers under the stock purchase agreements. Under
the stock purchase agreements; the Company has agreed to file a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 for resales of the
shares within 365 days of the closing date of December 6, 2007. The Company.is further obligated to use its best efforts to
cause the shelf registration statement to become effective under the Securities Act-of 1933 within 420 days after the closing .
date (480 days in the event of a full review of the shelf registration statement by the Securities and Exchange Commission).
Each of Gratco and Holiday have confirmed to the Company their long-term investment focus and represented to the
Company in their respective stock purchase agreement that they are purchasing the shares for their own account and have no
present intent to resell or distribute the shares. The shares may not be offered or sold in the United States absent registration
or an applicable exemption from registration requirements. .

Unregistered Sale of Equity Securities and Conversion of Convertible Subordinated Note

On December 8, 2006, the Company agreed with the holder of its $20.0 million floating rate convertible .
subordinated note due August 15, 2010 to-amend and restate the note in order to (i) eliminate the right to convert the note into
shares of the Company’s common stock and to (ii) eliminate the floating rate feature of the-note and fix the interest rate at
6.75% per year, a reduction of 25 basis points, The holder of the note was a trust, the annual income beneficiary of which is
the Company’s chairman, David C. Pratt. Following the amendment of the note, the trust assigned the note to a newly formed
limited liability company managed by Mr. Pratt and comprised of certain Pratt famlly trusts, the current beneficiaries of -
which are Mr. Pratt or members of his immediate family. . L

On December 11, 2006, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement pursuant to which it sold 5,701,255
shares of its common stock to the limited liability company for an aggregate purchase price of $50.0 miltion, or $8.77 per .
share. The per share price of the stock purchase was equal to the closing bid price per share of'the Company’s common stock’
on the Nasdaq Global Market on December 11, 2006. The purchase price for the shares was paid by surrendering the note for
cancellation of the $20 million in principal due thereunder and by delivering $30 million in cash for the balance of the
purchase price. The net proceeds from the stock purchase, afier deducting the expenses incurred to complete the deal, were
approximately $29.5 million, and were used to reduce outstanding borrowings-under the Company’s credit facility.

' ) Lo ) . . . . ' )

The modifications to the note and subsequent tendering and cancellation of the note in a short time period was
deemed to be an in-substance conversion and, in effect, represented a modification to the conversion price. Accordingly, the
Company recorded a non-cash debt conversion charge in fiscal 2006 in the amount of $9.0 million. This charge was required
because the note was tendered as consideration for equity shares and we issued additional shares beyond the number of
shares issuable in the original note agreement. U.S. generaily accepted accounting principles require that the resulting
incremental 1.03 million shares issued, valied at the $8.77 fair value, be reflected as a debt converswn charge in the
Company’s statement of operations. . . . <

The 5,701,255 shares were not reglstercd under the Securities Act of 1933 upon issuance, but the Company 15 .
required to register these shares. :

Placement of Convertible Debt

On August 16, 2005, the Company completed a private offering of a $20 million subordinated unsecured convertible
note in a transaction exempt from registration pursuant to Rule 506 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933. The note
was convertible into common stock at any time by the holder at an initial conversion price of $16.00 per share, The
conversion price had no reset feature and adjusted only for dividends, stock divisions or combinations, recapitalizations and
similar occurrences. The note had a maturity date of August 16, 2010 and bore interest at 7.0% per annum for the first two
years, payable semi-annually. The proceeds from the note were used to reduce the outstanding borrowings under the
- Company’s credit facility. Transaction costs associated with the placement were approximately $85,000. This note was
canceled in December 2006 as part of the equity financing described immediately above.

r .. 1 ¢ - [
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Note 8. Shareholders’ Equity

Upon completion of the Company’s initial public offering in April 2004 and the filing of its Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation in connection therewith, the authorized capital stock of the Company consisted of 100,000,000
shares of common stock, par value $.01 per share, and 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $.01 per share.

Common Stock Holders of the Company’s common stock are entitled to one vote per share in the election of
directors and on all other matters on which shareholders are entitled or permitted to vote. Holders of common stock are not
entitled to cumulative voting rights. Therefore, holders of a majority of the shares voting for the election of directors can elect
all the directors. Subject to the terms of any outstanding series of preferred stock, the holders of common stock are entitled to
dividends in amounts and at times as may be declared by the board of directors out of funds legally available. Upon the
Company’s liquidation or dissolution, holders of common stock are entitled to share ratably in all net assets available for
distribution to shareholders after payment of any liquidation preferences to holders of preferred stock. Holders of common
stock have no redemption, conversion or preemptive rights.

In November and December 2007, we accepted the tender of outstanding shares of common stock in exchange for
the cancellation of the outstanding notes receivable from three shareholders and former officers of the Company that became
due and payable. Accordingly, and in accordance with the original purchase agreement, we have cancelled and removed
$4,100,000 of notes receivable and decreased our common stock and additional paid-in-capital accounts appropriately. We
cancelled 428,928 shares of outstanding common stock in connection with this event. '

Preferred Stock The Company’s 5,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock can be issued in one or more series
and with the designation and preferences for each series as are stated in the corporate resolutions providing for these
preferences and designations, adopted by the Company’s board of directors. The Company’s articles of incorporation
authorize its board of directors to determine the voting, dividend, redemption and liquidation preferences and limitations
pertaining to the series. The board of directors, without shareholder approval, may issue preferred stock with voting rights
and other rights that could adversely affect the voting power of the holders of the Company’s common stock and could have
certain anti-takeover effects. The Company has no present plans to issue any shares of preferred stock.

Note 9. Stock-Based Compensation

+
1

Plans The Company provides to its employees, including executive management and members of the Company’s
board of directors, stock-based compensation awards as a long-term incentive. The Company has issued options to purchase
shares of common stock at various times and under different stock option plan and non-plan programs.

In February 2004, the Company adopted the 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan, which, as amended, authorizes the granting
of stock-based awards up to 4,000,000 shares of common stock. This plan was originally approved by shareholders in March
2004 and an amendment and restatement of this plan, including an increase in the number of available shares, was approved
by shareholders in June 2005. Under this plan, awards may be made to employees, directors, and consultants. The types of
awards that may be granted under the plan include restricted and unrestricted stock, incentive and nonstatutory stock options,”
stock appreciation rights and other stock awards. Under this plan, as of February 2, 2008, there were 2,753,609 options to
purchase common stock outstanding, with a weighted average exercise price of $9.66 and a weighted average remaining life
of 7.5 years. The options granted under this plan, for which the vesting was not accelerated, typically vest in three or four
equal annual increments from the date of grant.

In February 2002, the Company implemented the 2002 Stock Option Plan, a compensatory nonqualified stock
option plan for certain store and office management personnel. As of February 2, 2008, there were 132,588 options
outstanding under this plan to purchase the Company’s common stock with the ability to exercise being contingent upon the
attainment of a $32.06 per share price for its common stock as of the end of a fiscal year based upon the higher of the closing
price on the last day of the fiscal year or a five-day trailing average stock price taken at that time. The options have a 10-year
life and vest in equal annual increments over three years beginning June 30, 2004, subject to the Company meeting the
targeted stock price of $32.06 per share at a fiscal year end. The exercise price is $4.47 per share. The Company is no longer
authorized to grant any awards under the 2002 Stock Option Plan. : ' :

Certain approved awards were granted in fiscal 1998 and fiscal 2002 and were not under a specific option plan

program. As of February 2, 2008, the Company has outstanding 620,916 options to purchase common stock from these non-
plan awards. '
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As of February 2, 2008, there were a total of 3,507,113 options to purchase common stock outstanding, under all of
the Company’s stock option plans and non-plan stock options, with a weighted average exercise pnce of SIO 14 and a
weighted average remaining life of 7.0 years. ) o

Stock-Based Compensation Expense Under SFAS 123R, the amount of compensation expense for stock-based
awards to be recognized during a period is based on the portion of the awards that are ultimately expected to vest. The
Company estimates option forfeltures at the time of grant and revisi those estimates in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ significantly from those estimates. Cost is recognized using a stralght-lme amortization method over the
requisite service penod which typically is the vesting period. - :

The table below Hlustrates the effect on the Company’s net loss and net loss per share applicable to common
shareholders as if it had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123R to stock-based employee
compensation for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended February 2,,2008 (in thousands, except per share data).

February 2, Februaryd, = «January 28,
- 1 2008 2007 - ) 2006 ~.

Net loss applicable to common shareholders, as ot v :

TEPOTEA .ot s 3(31,814) $(13,242) $(13,307)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense

inreported net loss applicable to common . cT -

SharehOlderS.....covee it ceerene e ' 1,559 1,239 242.
Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation

expense determined under the fair value method . (1,559) (1,239 {12,862)
Pro forma net loss applicable to common

Shareholders............vovvvvccvceessmsomsrre i 5(31.814) $(13,242) $(25.927)
Loss per common share: ' ) , ,
. Basic and diluted—as reported...........ccooeceenrees .o $(1.52) 5(0.88) $(0.93)

Basic and diluted-—pro forma......... RUPIO $(1.52) $(0.88) $(1.82)
Weighted average common shares outstanding........ © 20,913 15,100 14,257

For purposes of determining the estimated fair value of stock-based payment awards-on the date of grant under
SFAS 123R, the Company uses the Black-Scholes Model. The Black-Scholes Model requires the input of certain
assumptions that involve judgement. Because the Company’s employee stock options have characteristics significantly
different from those of publicly traded options, and because changes in the input assumptions can affect the fair value
estimate materially, the existing models may not provide a reliable smgle measure of the fair value of the Company’s
employee stock options. The Company will continue to assess the assumptions and methodologies used to calculate éstimated
fair value of stock-based compensation. Circumstances may change and additional data may become available over time.
These changes could result in modifications to these assumptions and methodologies and thereby materially impact the
Company’s fair value determination. The fair value of each option grant under the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for
the three years ending February 2, 2008 was based on the following assumptlons

, February2, " February 3, January 18,
2008 2007 2006
Average risk-free interest rate ..... ' 4.06% 4.69% 4.15%
Expected dividend yield.............. ' 0.0% . 0.0% 0.0%’
Expected stock price volatility .... ~ 50% - 60% 50% . . C50%
Expected life of stock options ‘ R ,
(years).......... evererer e . L 5.6 5 5
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A summary of the activity of the Company’s stock option plans for eachi of the three fiscal years in the period ended

February 2. 2008 is presented below:

R Fiscal 2007° Fiscal 2006 v Fiscal 2005
Number of Weighted- Number of Weighted- - Number of Weighted-
, Shares , - Average Shares Average Shares Average
- Under Exercise ‘Under Exercise , . Under Exercise
! Option - Price - Option Price Option Price
Qutstanding—beginning of year........ 3,945475 $10.16 3,680,804 $10.84 2,237,327 $12.53
Granted ..o, 565,500 11.35 705,709 6.89 1,799,936 8.95
Exercised i, ' (323,543) 9.07 (3,637 © 667 (35,000 8.28
Forfeited........coooveiinreiei (680,319) _7.83  (437401) 10.72 - (321,459) 12.25
Qutstanding—end of year.................. '3,507,113 181014 3,945,475 $10.16 3,680,804 " $10.84
Weighted-average fair value of . ‘
options granted during the year...... . . 3560 $3.38 $4.22
Aggregate intrinsic value of options ' k S
EXETCISEd ooovereivriareeeervenrssiereeeeeeeas $1,237,108 $9,975 $94,000

The following tables summarize information about stock options outstanding, including those issued to management
and other executives, as of February 2, 2008: .

+ All Options Outstanding *

Weighted-
Weighted- : Average
Average Aggrepate Remaining
Range of Number Exercise Intrinsic Contractual
Exercise Prices Quistanding Price Value Life
$4.47- 799 969,890 $5.80 $78,164 7.5 Years
8.00-11.99 1,690,973 9.69 — 6.7 Years
12.00 - 15.99 256,500 12.62 - 9 Years
16.00 - 19.99 - _ 452,750 16.00 — 6.2 Years
20.00 - 23.99 .o oy 97,000 21.46 . . — 6.5 Years
24.00 - 24.40 - . 40,000 . . 2440 — 6.2 Years
$4.47 - 24.40 3,507,113+ $10.14 . - §$78,164 7 Years
) Currently Exercisable
* . - Weighted-
i + Weighted- 1 Average
s ,e oo, . Average Aggregate Remaining
Range of ‘ Number Exercise Intrinsic Contractual
Exercise Prices Qutstanding Price Value Life

$4.47- 7.99 . 501,477 ‘ $6.05 $700 8 Years
8.00-11.9% 1,354,943 o 956 — 6.1 Years
12.00 - 15.99 , 31,750 . 12.90 = 6.8 Years
16.00 - 19.99 452,750 ., 16.00 — 7.5 Years
20.00 - 23.99 97,000 ., 21.46 — . 7 Years
24.00 - 24.40 ‘ 40,000 24.40 , — 6.2 Years
$4.47 - 24.40 2,477,920, $10.77 $700 ‘ 3 6.8 Years

. As of February 2, 2008,‘there was approximately $3.1 million of total unrecognized stock-based compensation
expense related to unvested option awards. Unrecognized stock-based compensation is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 2.7 years.

Accelerated Vesting On two separate occasions in fiscal 2005, the compensation committee of the Company’s board
of directors approved the acceleration of vesting for certain outstanding options to purchase common stock, that had exercise
prices greater than $10.53, relative to the March 2005 acceleration, and $5.69, relative to the November 30, 2005
acceleration, the closing prices of the Company’s common stock on those dates. In total, the Company accelerated options to
purchase approximately 2,696,000 shares of common stock.
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. -As aresult-of the accelerations, all of these options became fully exercisable and will remain exercisable through
their respective termination dates, which vary, but do not extend past 20135.

Note 10. Selected Balance Sheet Information {in. thﬁusands):. BSTRN AR
i S, P ;. . February2, . February 3,
Pruperty and equlpmem conststs of: o e ) . ] - 2008 _ 2007 -
Building........... s PRV P ST . 56972, .. 86972
Furniture and equipment 141,826 112,192
Leaschold tmprovements ........ N S o - 66,102 . . 61196
Computer software AN HAEAWATE ..ot 52,179, . 39,688 ,
. h ‘ s . 267,080 220,048
- Less: Accumulated deprecxat:on and amorttzatlon ereserenernnnee . (98,396) (75,609)
Coa. Property and equlpment, 1L, TR : ....... frvreredren 1 .~ $168;685 o, 5144439

L . . . ._-_.!‘t'. . . . J

DepreClatlon and amortization expense for property and cqmpment mcludmg property undér capital leases, totaled
$26,788,000, $21,975,000 and $18,233,000, for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005; respectively As of February 2, 2008 and
February 3, 2007, the cost of assets recorded under capital leases was $17,419, 000 and § 13 784 000 respcctlvely, with
related accumulated depremahou of $2,400,000 and $1 304’ 000 respecttvely

g

" : L Lot RS February 2, '« February3,

Other assets consists of: + , * -, rore ' . Lot e 2008- . - C 2007
$6,666 $5,346
. i3 p . 1,295 1,099
) e T . : 7,961 . 6,445
Less: Accumnulated amortization ........c............. T PO . (4,385). (3,584)
, Other assets, BEL...covverimmresosessmmstsssnssssssssssssstsssstssassasassssmssssssssossss $3,576 $2,861

t . N ; " 1 [ R "

. As of February 2, 2008 and February 3 2007, accumulated amomzatton of deferred loan costs was $4 385,000 and
$3,584 000 respectlvely

o s . o . ’ . ' February 2, . ) " February 3,

Accrued and other eurrent liabitities consist of: ' 2008 Lo 2007 -
Gift cards and gift certificate liabilities .................... - $29.223 $25.616-
Payroll and related fringe benefits......ccvevvvecreviveinnnn 8,393 6,456
Sales, property and use LaXeS........coceeeevemreecreereeenreinn, 5219 - ¢ - 27 T5530
Reserve for store exit CostS.....oooviniiininiiie e ' 3,612 —
Lease related costs.......c....o.ece..e SO RO SR BT 0.1 < S K 1,325
Insurance reserves and liabilities ... et T 1979 0 2,014
Advertising and marketing ..................... Wt e SR YoL7es 370
IIHEIESE ..o D - - 938 ' 39
~'Other aceruals and current Habilities . ...oooovvvererveinn.. c- - 7,905 - ' 6,329

Accrued and other current llahlhtles............'.'...’..; o 360,606 $48,032

February 2, Februaq;' 3,

Qther long-term liabilities consist of: 2008 2007
Deferred TENL.......oo ettt ee e ee e renassesreee $25,898 " $25,310
Insurance reserves and other liabilities.................._ .................. -~ 1,499 2,033

Other long-term liabilities..l.: ........................... e e, . $27.397 $27.343

i L at

L

Note 11. Exlt Costs, lmpalrment and Other Charges

During the latter half of fiscal 2007 in response to changes in economic and retail industry condmons management.
began, cfforts to streamline operating activities and took further actions designed to iraprove proﬁtab:ltty This included
closing two unprofitable stores, a reduction in the stores and markets that sold the Company’s powersports products and
reductions in the workforce at its headquarters location in St. Paul, In addition, the Company: recorded severance costs earlier
in fiscal 2007 relative to two executive terminations. Also, as a result of the Qverton’s acquisition in December. 2007 we

4
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wrote-off certain assets, whose use was discontinued, related to capltahzed web site development costs that began earlier in
fiscal 2007. . . .

These charges in the aggregate were $6,493,000 for fiscal 2007 with $4,285,000 incurred in the fourth quarter. For
fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, these charges were $458,000 and $2,635,000, respectively, and represented exit costs for closed
stores and severance costs. The Company believes it is more meaningful to present these expenses on a separate line in our
consolidated statement of operationis when such expenses are material. Accordingly, the Company has reclassified these
expenses in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 from selling, general and adminisirative expenses.

Exit costs and impairments Two unprofitable stores were closed in the fourth quarter of 2007. At the cease-use date
the Company estimated the lease termination costs for the two stores including future minimum lease payments, taxes,
insurance and maintenance costs from the date of clesure to the end of the remaining lease term. The calculation also includes
a reduction for one of the stores for estimated sub-lease income. The Cotnpany will evaluate this estimate each quarter and
adjust the liability accordingly. The liability for tease termination costs is discounted using a risk-adjusted risk-free rate.
Impairment costs include the write- off of remaining net book value of fixed assets to their salvage value of zero. The total
charge for exit costs and impairments in fiscal 2007 was $2,882,000. In fiscal years 2006 and 2003, the total charge for exit
costs and impairments was $458,000 and §$1, 303 000, respectrvely . \ \

Powersports The Company has reduced the number of stores whrch carry and sell boats and ATVs. This was based
on evaluations of all stores’ market potential with an intention to remain focused on those markets that would maximize
profitabitity in this product line. Accordingly, it was necessary to record an impairment charge for the remaining net book
value of certain equipment no longer used by those stores affected. This charge was $696,000 for fiscal 2007.

Severance Severance charges in fiscal 2007 amounted to $1,636,000 and included reductions in workforce in the
general and administrative support areas and the termination of two executive officers. Severance was recorded in accordance
with SFAS No. 146. Severance costs in fiscal years 2006 and 2005 were $0 and $1,332,000, respectively,

Web site development costs Beginning in the second quarter of fiscal 2007, we incurred and capitalized costs in
connection with the preparation to launch a direct channel product offering through an e-commerce web site. This
development continued into the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007. As the opportunity to acquire a company that would accelerate
the direct channel strategy and provide significant e-commerce fulfillment capacity during our peak scasons materialized and
was consummated, it rendered the assets resulting from the development efforts thus far without any utility and the net book
value was written off to zero. Accordmg]y, we mcurred a charge of $1,279,000 in fiscal 2007, of which $894,000 was in the
fourth quarter.

Note 12. Self-Insurance Reserves

The Company is self-insured for a portion of its workers’ compensation, health, general liability, auto, and property
insurance. Liabilities associated with the risks that are retained by the Company are estimated, in part, by censidering the
frequency and severity of claims, claim development history and settlement practices. The estimated accruals for these
liabilities could be affected if future occurrences and claims differ from these assumptions and historical trends. As of
February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007, these reserves were $3,029,000 and $2,355,000, respectively, and were included in
accrued liabilities and other long term liabilities in the balance sheet. The Company’s llablhty for workers compensation is
discounted at a rate of 7% for the three years ending February 2, 2008, as paymcnts are projected to be made over an
extended period of time.

Note 13, Income Taxes

Under SFAS No. 109, “Accounlmg for Income Taxes”, income taxes are recognized for the amount of taxes payable
for the current year and for the impact of deferred tax assets and liabilities, which represent future tax consequences of events
that have been recognized differently in the financial statements than for tax purposes.

Our tax provision in fiscal 2007 primarily represents minimum or net worth taxes due in various states. Some states
have adopted an adjusted gross receipts tax. We have no provision for Federal income tax for the three fiscal years ending
February 2, 2008 due to accumulated operating losses. The Company determined that realization of the tax benefit related to
the net deferred tax assets was uncertain. Accordingly, a valuation allowance was recorded for the entire balance of the net
currént and non-current deferred tax assets as of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007.-The valuation allowance as of
February 2, 2008 increased $15.5 million as compared to'February 3, 2007, primarily due to deferred tax liabilities related to
certain intangible assets arising from the allocation of Gverton’s purchase price.
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The Company’s effective tax rate for the three years ending February 2, 2008 differs from statutory rates as follows:

February 2, February 3, January 218,
. 2008 W7 - 2006
Federal statutory tax rate .......ccoooovveinriivninennnnnne, 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
State and local income taxes, net of federal ,

BENEIE..oocveecvis ettt s 8.4% 6.0% 6.0%
Valuation allowance ...........cceomvnencnncnnnccncenn (40.00% ., (40.0)% (40.0Y%
Effective income tax rate........covvvevevenereceereereanenes ’ 2.4% 0% 0%

Components of deferred tax assets are as follows: (in thousands)
February 2, February 3,
R L. . . 2008 2007 -

-+ Net current deferred tax assets (liabilities):. : '
Compensation-TEIAtEd ......cvvvereriririerie s eriseeeerres eseseersnes $1,260 $910
Inventory valuation. ... e ereernenes . 3,293 981
INSULANICE 1vveeiriei e ceces e cvr e ssiree e sine e e e eeae e rbans e 1,072 942
Gt CATAS oot et e e e e et 1,985 1,130

D 153 (o (50 B (A= 3 1T-SUUEUSUR 296 473

SALES TEIUITIS ..ot eriee ettt srst st e e s ean e e ens 297 232

Prepaid EXPENSES .....c.ocovrereeiireniieeitieee e see e et e (1,152) —

ORI .ot e s (40) 444
Total current deferred tax assets.......... et er s s tene e e e anrrans . 7,011 5,112
Valuation allowance..........cccooooeceee. e (7.011) (5,112 ~
Net current deferred tax a88et5......ovverieerieereerrerenes s - &— $—
Net noncurrent deferred tax assets; )

Net operating loss carryforwards...........ocovevienescrcnreisiccnncinenonn, $34,561 $21,830

Tax credit carryforwards .....oo oot 134 77

Fixed a88€15. ... vruiiieiiirrce et ses e res e ersanr e saer e (19,947) (18,274)

RENE EXPENSE. ..ottt be e e e s 4,568 3,755

INEANEIDIE ASSELS ... ettt be b e {5,995) (539)

L0 11T OO OV U OO ST OR T 10 11
Total noncurrent deferred tax aSSEIS......ccocevvceiiievverrerers e erere e 13,331 6,860

“ VAlUAON ATOWANCE .vvv....eeveeeeeeeeeeeeeserse s ees e sseeesesoms s ©(20444) " (6.860)
Net noncurrent deferred tax assets (liabilities) .........ccoocemivivennnnn, $(7,113) $—

In 2005, the Company determined that a “change in ownership”, within the meaning of Section 382 of the Internal
Revenue Code, occurred effective February 8, 2005. This change in ownership imposes a limitation on the amount of the
Company’s net operating losses that it may deduct for tax purposes in any given year, The Company has federal and state net
operating loss carry-forwards of approximately $83.4 million expiring between 2016 and 2027, The amount of its net
operating loss carry-forwards subject to the Section 382 limitation was $9.4 million at February 2, 2008. Unrestricted net
operating losses carry-forwards were $74.0 million, The Company does not expect this limitation to materially impact its
future tax provision for financial reporting purposes.

Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases The Company leases retail, distribution center and corporate office properties under operating
leases that have initial or remaining noncanceliabie terms exceeding one year. Most of the leases contain escalation clauses
and require payment of real estate taxes, utilities and common area maintenance costs. Most of the retail store property leases
typically include one or more renewal options of typically 5 year periods each. Lease expense under these agreements was
$62,874,000, $54,003,000 and $45,698,000 in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company recognizes rent
expense on a straight-line basis beginning on the earlier of the commencement date of the lease or the date when it takes
possession of the building for.construction of leaseholds or the initial setup of fixtures and merchandise, and recognizes the -
excess of this expense over the cash payments as deferred rem in the “Long term liabilities” caption in the accompanying
balance sheets. .
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During fiscal 2005 the Company had certain involvement in the build-to-suit construction of three of its new stores.
In accordance with SFAS No. 98, Accounting for Leases: Sale-Leaseback Transactions Involving Real Estate, Sales-Type
Leases of Real Estate, Definition of the Lease Term, and Initial Direct Costs of Direct Financing Leases and EITF 97-10, The
Effect of Lessee Involvement in Asset Construction, the Company’s involvement, and the resulting lease arrangements,
qualified for sales-leaseback treatment, During fiscal 2005 the Company expended $10,859,000 for the cost of construction
for the new stores, increasing property and equipment, and received $10,843,000 for amounts reimbursed from landlords,
reducing property and equipment. The resulting difference, net for the three stores, is recognized as a loss and amortized on a
straight-line basis over the initial term of the lease agreements. The Company records rent expense for these three stores
under operating lease treatment in accordance with its stated policy. The Company does not have any retained or contingent
interests in the properties nor does it provide any guarantees in connection with the sale and leaseback of properties.

Capital Leases The Company leases certain technology equipment and leasehold improvements under leases that
have been accounted for as capital leases. The leases vary from four to 15 years in term and require monthly payments of
principal and interest. The Company also entered into a lease agreement in fiscal 2004 for a retail store that requires a
maximum $150,000 quarterly payment obligation for 20 years from lease inception. The agreement also provides a bargain
purchase option at the end of the lease term, as defined. The required payment obligation is reduced by allowable sales tax
credits that the Company earns under a related site development agreement. The Company can not estimate the amount of
these future credits and accordingly, has not reduced the obligations disclosed in the table below. '

Aggregate minimum lease and debt obligations as of February 2, 2008, under the Company’s operating leases,
capital leases and term notes, are as follows (in thousands): '

Operating Capital Equipment Acquistion

Total Leases Leases Term Note B Notes Payments
Fiscal 2008........cccormmiiceimicciiniiisins $84,243 $70,116 $3,264 $5,433 $4,462 $968
Fiscal 2009, ..o 90,466 71,89l 2,797 10,417 4,462 900
Fiscal 2010, .c.coviiiiie e 90,289 71,046 1,406 13,483 4,354 ——
Fiscal 200 1. i 92,976 70,043 866 19,500 © 2,567 -
Fiscal 20012 ..o 70,986 69,539 866 ' — 581 —
Thereafter.....cooveeiinvireciieicen e 468,773 457,113 7,849 — 3,811 —
: - $867,733  $809,748  $17,048 $48,833 $20,235 $1,868
Less: Interest ... evininnnindivneninies (15,565) — (2,835 {8,833) (3,576) (320)
Outstanding principal obligations........ _ $882,168 $809,748 '§$14,213 $40.,000 $16,659 $1,548

Purchase commitments—In the ordinary course of business, the Company utilizes standby and documentary letters
of credit in connection with the importing of merchandise, as well as for insurance purposes. The Company also contracts for
the purchase of various other goods and services, related primarily to marketing, advertising and information technology.
These commitments are not recorded in the Company’s financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles, as the goods or services under these commitments have not been received or consumed. As of
February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007, these outstanding commitments totaled $11.7 million and $12.6 million, respectively.

The Company typically enters into arrangements with vendors for the purchase of merchandise. Because these
purchase orders do not contain any termination payments or other penalties if cancelled, they are not included in the amount
of outstanding commitments described above. In accordance with U.S: generally accepted accounting principles, these
obligations are not recorded in the Company’s financial statements. '

Numerous states have passed legislatidn requiring the assessment of sales and use taxes on alt goods sold within the
state, including mail order sales. The Company contends that these assessments are unconstitutional and plans to vigorously
contest any assessments. There are no current assessments for sales and use taxes against the Company, and the Company has
made no provision in the consolidated financial statements for assessments. '

[ ' »

Legal Proceedings

Trademark Litigation—On July 2, 2004, we filed a complaint in the U.S. District Court for the District of
Minnesota seeking declaratory relief that the contingent trademark licensing provision of a noncompetition agreement dated
May 16, 1996, made between our predecessor and Cabela’s Incorporated, is invalid and unenforceable. Although the
noncompetition provisions of the noncompetition agreement expired in June 2003, Cabela’s contends that a contingent
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trademark licensing provision of the noncompetition agreement requires us to grant Cabela’s a license that would preclude
our use of certain of our trademarks for direct marketing purposes.

On July 10, 2007, the U.S. District Court issued an order granting our motion for summary judgment, ruling that the
contingent trademark licensing provision was unenforceable. The order provides, in part, that we are free to use our
trademarks in all respects including direct marketing to consumers, Cabela’s has appealed the ruling to the U.S. Court of
Appeals, Eighth Circuit. .

‘ ' o o

The Company is not able to predict the ultimate outcome of this litigation, but it could be costly and disruptive. The
total costs may not be reasonably estimated at this time. 1f the July 10, 2007 order is reversed, subsequent proceedings might
impact the manner in which the Company markets its products in certain distribution channels in the future. Such an adverse
result is not expected to have an affect on the marketing of the Company’s products through its retail stores, Nor would anr
unfavorable result preclude the Company from engaging in direct marketing activities using trademarks not'in dispute. A
favorable result would confirm the Company’s right to use the subject trademarks in all direct marketing activities,

Other Legal Claims—Various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal course of business may-be pending against
the Company from time to time. The subject matter of these proceedings typically relate to commercial disputes, employment
issues, product liability and other matters. As of the date of this report, the Company is not a party to any legal proceedings
that are expected, individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or
results of operations.

Note 15. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a profit sharing and 401 (k) savings plan that qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code covering substantially all full time employees. Under the profit sharing portion of the plan, annual
contributions are discretionary and determined by management. The plan’s 401(k) feature allows employees to tmake pretax
contributions to their 401 (k) accounts, of which the Company matches 100% of the first 3% of a participant’s annual salary
contributed to their account and 50% of the next 2% of the participant’s annual salary contributed to their account. Company

contributions to the plan under both the profit sharing feature and 401(k) feature were $1,373, 000 $1,054,000 and $688.000
in fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. , P

Overton’s also offers a 401(k) retirement savings plan. All employees who meet certain age and employment service
requirements are cligible to participate. Participating employees may elect to contribute 1% to 17% of their annual eamings,
subject to tax law ceilings. The Company matches 100% of the first 3% of compensation that a participant contributes to the
savings plan. Additional employer contributions can be made at the discretion of the board of directors. Company
contributions for the 401 (k) match were $13,000 in fiscal 2007,

In February 2005, the Company’s board of directors approved the establishment of an employee stock purchase plan
(ESPP) that enables substantially all fulitime employees to purchase common stock of the Company by contributions through
payroll deductions. Purchases of common stock are made from accumulated employee contributions at the end of designated
six-month purchase periods. Pursuant to the terms of the ESPP, the Company has currently established a 15% discount from
the stock price on the designated purchase date. During fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, there were 58,864, 37,609 and
28,362 shares of common stock, respectively, issued under the plan at an average price of $6.06, $7.04 and $7.38 per share, ,
respectively.

Refer to Note 9, “Stock-Based Compensation” for information on employee siock oplions.
Note 16. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Interest paid under all debt instruments as well as capitalized.lease obl'igationé was $18,335,000, $178,903,000 and
$9,470,000 for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Income taxes paid approximated the tax provision reflected in our

consolidated statements of operations for all years presented.

Non-cash transactions: In December 2006, the Company issued 2,280,502 shares of common stock as ‘consideration
for the cancellation of the Company’s outstanding $20 million note payab[e
J
During fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006, the Company purchased mformanon technoio;,y equ:pment totalmg $3 6 million
and $2.4 million, respectively, financed through capital lease transactions. Capital lease purchases are excluded from the
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caption “purchases of property and equipment’” in the Company’s statements of cash flows as they did not require the use of
cash.

Note 17. Related-Party Transactions

In December 2007, December 2006 and August 2005, the Company engaged in equity and debt financing
transactions with entities controlled by the Company’s current chairman of the board and entities controlled by two other
members of the Company’s board of directors. These transactions are described in more detail in Notes 5 and 7.

Historically, but significantly diminished in fiscal years 2007 and 2006, the Company has had significant
transactions with Holiday Companies for various services that reflect prices and rates that the Company believes are
representative of market prices. On March 17, 2005, the Company amended the Shared Services Agreement dated as of
February 2, 2004 by and between Holiday Companies and the Company. The amendment substantially reduced the number
of services provided by Holiday Companies as the Company either provides for these services intemally or independently
secures these services from third party providers. The Shared Services Agreement was terminated on February 3, 2006.
Charges for these services, except for occupancy charges, were not material in all years presented. There were no material
amounts due to Holiday Companies at either February 2, 2008 or February 3, 2007. The principal continuing arrangements
with Holiday Companies include:

«  The Company continues to lease retail space in one store location from Holiday Companies at current market
rates. Total occupancy charges paid to Holiday Companies were $241,000, $345,000 and $739,000 in fiscal
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. .

«  Holiday Companies guarantees future lease obligations of certain stores totaling $23,415,000 and $28,127,000
as of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007, respectively. The Company does not pay a fee for these
guarantees. . : -

+  in November 2005, the Company assigned its rights in an aircraft purchase contract to Erickson Petroleum
Corporation, an affiliate of Holiday' Companies. In exchange for the assignment, the Company received a
payment of $1,450,000, including the refund of the $1,250,000 deposit previously paid to the aircraft
manufacturer.

«  As of February 2, 2008, the Company subleased aircraft hangar space from the Holiday Companies at an annual
rate of $35,000. :

During fiscal year 2007 and 2006, we paid Rex Realty, Inc., a company owned by our chairman of the board,
approximately $176,000 and $160,000, respectively, for aircraft fuel and other expenses related to our use of Rex
Realty Inc.’s corporate aircraft. g

The Company believes that the terms of any of these related partj( arrangements are no less favorable to the
Company than would be the terms of comparable arrangements conducted at arms-length between unrelated parties.

Note 18. Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted loss applicable to common shareholders per share is based upon the weighted average number of
shares outstanding. All potentially dilutive stock options and convertible securities to purchase shares of the Company’s
common stock have been excluded from the calculation of weighted average shares outstanding for all years presented
because their inclusion would have an anti-dilutive effect on loss per share. These shares of common stock subject to
potential issuance as a result of these securities totaled 3,507,113, 3,945,475 and 4,930,804 as of February 2, 2008,

February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively. The potential shares issuable as of January 28, 2006 included 1,250,000
shares that were issuable upon conversion of the convertible notes. This convertible note was no longer outstanding as of
February 3, 2007.

Note 19. Involuntary Conversion of Property and Equipment
In June 2006, the Company incurred significant flood damage to the Company’s Binghamton, New York store. The

building was damaged and its contents were essentially declared a total loss. The Company was adequately insured to enable
it to recover the retail value of its merchandise inventory and replace all of its property and equipment that was destroyed.
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For fiscal year 2006, the Company recorded a gain from this involuntary conversion of assets of approximately $1 400 ,000.
The insurance proceeds were reinvested in the store which re-opened on-September 29, 2006, - &

Note 20, Segment Reporting. . ‘ o |

Since the acquisition of OQverton’s, the Company now has two reportable segments: Retail and Direct: The Retail
segment sells its outdoor lifestyle products and services through its 113 retail stores located in 23 states. The Direct segment
is the internet and catalog operations of Overton'’s, offering primarily boating and watersports accessory products through
numerous direct mail catalogs and its e-commerce websites. The Company evaluated its operating and reporting segments in
accordance with SFAS No. 131 and has considered the discrete financial information reviewed by the Company’s chief
operating decision maker in making decisions regarding allocation of resources and in assessing performance. Reporting in
this format provides managemént with the financial information necessary to eva]uate the success of the segments and the
overall business. - ' '

For the Retail segment, operating expenses primarily consist of distribution center expenses associated with moving
product from the Company’s distribution center to its retail stores, occupancy costs of the retail stofes, store labor,
advertising, depreciation, and all other store operating expenses, as well as all expenses associated with the functional support
areas such as exccutwe, merchandlsmg/buymg, human resources, mformauon technology, and finance/accounting.

For the Direct segment, operatmg expenses primarily consist of catalog expenses; e-commerce advertising expenses,
and order fulfillment expenses, as well as all expenses associated with the functional’support areas of Overton’s such as ‘
merchandising/buying, information technology, and finance/accounting,

Segment assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities directly used in the operating segment. For the Retail
scgment, assets primarily include inventory in the retail stores, fixtures, and leasehold improvements. For the Direct segment,
assets primarily include inventory, goodwill and intangible assets, deferred catalog costs and fixed assets.

The accounting policies of the segments, where applicable, are the same as 'tho'se described in the summarly of P
significant accounting policies in our notes to consolidated financial statements.

Prior to December 6, 2007, the Company operated under one segment, Retail. Results by' business segment are
presented in the following table for fiscal year 2007, ,

Fiscal Year 2007 . T ' o . . .
in thousands ) - Co. e ‘ -
o Lo : e, L P i Retail. Direct . Total- -
SALES .ot e e e $963,863 $5,540  $969,403
Ad_]ustcd EBITDA .............. OO L $22,157  $(380)7: $21,777
INTEIESE CXPEINSE -ooveiiriiaiiiaitieie st ecrs sttt et e eir e st st sbe b e esesaeanebesrbansraenrasssrensentesrennns (19,104) (641) (19,745)
Income tax provision .......eeoiieecsoeennns et ettt et S0 (750) — = (750)
Depreciation and amOTHZATION ..........ccococuieiiemerieeeieeeee s eee e ee et ereseens e srsenenns (26,418) (185) (26,603)
Exit costs, impairment and other charges L. (6,493) to= T (6493)
NBE L0851 11 eiiter it revrrr et ittt bea e ea et st e st et as e sae s et ssen s et e s e bene s temseneseseaensre et et ensnnesanees $(30,608)  $(1,206) §(31,814)
Total assets ..o urvcree S S - e, 8622,050 357,882 " $679,932
Inventories ...... ... ettt et araer e - ' o '\" '384,510 19,173 ' 403,683
Goodwill and intangible assets . _ e ' 17,083 66,818 1 73,901
Long term debt ...... ........................ SO TS RTP OO VRSP TTINY Y 826,673 $37,500 564,173
. - . . . v ey, 1 Ty B
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Note 21. Summary of Quarterly Results (Unaudited)

The following tables present selected quarterly financial data for the periods ended as indicated (in thousands,
except stores, comparable sales, and per share data). The Company’s fourth quarter in fiscal year 2006 includes 14 weeks,
whereas in fiscat year 2007 the fourth quarter includes 13 weeks. All other fiscal quarters presented include 13 weeks. The

Company’s fiscal quarters end on the Saturday closest to the end of April, July, October and January.

n

SAlES v rreecer e e
GrOSS PrOfit..ccveveeiceirecrreneremrenie e e
Operating income (10SS)...o.uvecreemrrrnieiesinernssnnisssereenes
Net iNCOME (F058) .vreerreerorremrermrmcrsspi s nsae s .

Income (loss) applicable to common éharéholde_rs per
share:

Stores open at quarter end........oooocciiieinen Jreeeerieenens
Comparable store sales increase (decrease).........ccooeeenns

Total square feet at end of period ..o

GAlES ettt ent e s

GIOSS PrOfit ..ot et
Operating inCOmME (J088)...c.vververcnces oot

Net income (l0ss).........oce...

Income (loss) applicable to common shareholders per

share: ¢

Stores open at quarter nd........oovii i
Comparable store sales increase (decrease).......c.covennenns
Total square feet at end of period ..o,

Fiscal 2007
First Second Third * Fourth
Quarter . Quarter (uarter . Quarter Total |
$175,749  $216,511  §259,539  $317.604 $969,403
$33,877 $51,536 $70,094 385,247  3240,754
$(18,730)  $(5,004) $525  $11,890 $(11,319)
$(22,831) | $(9,659)  $(5,143)  $5819 $(31814)
$(1.14)  $(0.48)  $(025), . $0.25  $(1.52)
$(1.14) $(0.48) B(0.25) $0.25 $(1.52)
105 108. 115 113 113
1.0% 42% o (84%  (11.9%  (5.4%
5518 5715 6,244 6,183 6,183
Fiscal 2006
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total
$155,581  $182,482  $246491  $326,885 $911,438
$26,992 544,074 $62,897 $90,754  $224,716
$(18,981) $(2,712) $£7,482 £29,193 $14,982
$(22,967)  $(7,559) $2,026 515258 $(13,242)
$(1.61) 5(0.53) $0.14 $0.88 $(0.88)
$(1.61)  $(0.53) $0.14 $0.85  $(0.88)
99 99 105 105 - - 105
(10.4)% (6.1)% 7.4% 0.4% (1.1)%
5,085 5,104 5,489 5,483 5,483

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

.. None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures -

As of the end of the period covered by this report, our management conducted an evaluation, under the supervision
and with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer of the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(¢} and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Based on
this evaluation, the officers concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by our company in reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Commission rules and forms.
Furthermore, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are
also effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and chief
financial officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting S -

Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting and the report of our independent registered public
accounting firm relating thereto included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K are incorporated herein by reference. -

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

Our management, with the participation of the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, performed an
evaluation as to whether any change in the internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) occurred during the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the
chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that no change occurred in the internal controls over financial
reporting during the peried covered by this report that n}gterially affected, or‘i‘s reasonably likely to materially affect, the

‘internal conirols over financial reporting.

" i

ITEM 9B. OTHE‘R INF(‘)RMATION' J g : ' o
None.
C ' PART III
ITEM 10, DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information required by this Item 10 relating 10 our directors is incorporated herein by reference to the section fitled
“Proposal 1—Election of Directors™ in our proxy statement, which will be filed no later than 120 days after February 2, 2008,
The information required by this Item 10 relating to our executive officers is set forth under the heading “Executive Officers”
in Item ! of this report. The information required by this Item 10 under Item 405 of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by
reference to the section titled “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownérship Reporting Compliance” of our proxy statement, which
will be filed no later than 120 days after February 2, 2008, The information required by this Item 10 under Item 407(d}(4) and
(d)(5) of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to the Section titled “Proposal 1—Election of Directors—
Committees of Our Board of Directors—Audit Committee” of our proxy statement, which will be filed no later than 120 days
after February 2, 2008. . , R . '

We have adopted a code of business conduct and ethics for the guidance of our directors, officers, and partners,
including our principal executive, financial and accounting officers and our controller. Qur code of business conduct and
ethics, along with other corporate governance documents, is posted on our website at www. Gander Mountain.com. We intend
to post on our website any amendments to, or waivers from, our code of business conduct and ethics.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the sections titled “Executive
Compensation,” and “Proposal 1—Election of Directors—Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,” of
our proxy statement, which will be filed no later than 120 days after February 2, 2008.
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ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS '

Information related to security ownership required by this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference to the section
titled “Security Ownership of Principal Shareholders and Management” of our proxy statement, which will be filed no later
than 120 days after February 2, 2008. ¥

- The following table provides information as of February 2, 2008 for our compensation plans under which securities

may be issued! .. -7 ' . ' . : o

! : ' . : . . o o Number of securities
. )1 i e, remaining available for
Number of securities to be *" " Weighted-average cxercise future issuance under
issued upon exercise of price of outstanding ' equity compensation plnlfs
outstanding options, options, warrants and (excluding securities
Plan category warranis and rights rights ) reflected in column (a))
() {b) . {©)

Equity compensation plans
approved by security
holders(1)....ccoorvvvnrrvmicrnns 3,507,113 ' $10.14 1,092,289

Equity compensation plans
not approved by security S e o
holders ......eerveerrrererneiens ' — — —

Totakiiniines . . 35071013 . $10.14 - . 1,092,289

: . oy T . .

(1) ~ Consists of our 2002 Stock Option Plan, 2004 Omnibus Stock Plans; Employee.Stock Purchase Plan and options to
.purchase 620,916 shares of common stock that were not granted under any of our plans. .

LI o - .o [

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

' Information required by this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to the sections titled “Certain Relationships .
and Related Party Transactions,” “Proposal |—Election of Directors—Directors and Director Nominees” and “Proposal 1-—
Election of Directors—Director Independence” of our proxy statement, which will be filed no later than 120 days after
February 2, 2008.. g o : ‘ :

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
Information required by this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference to the sections titled “Proposal 2—
Ratification of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm—Fees Billed By Ernst & Young LLP” and “Proposal 2-—
Ratification of the Independent Registered Pubtic Accounting Firm—Approval of Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm Services and Fees” of our proxy statement, which will be fited no later than 120 days after February 2, 2008,

P ..
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:
"L Financial Statements
The following described financial statements are included in this report under Item 8:
*  Reportof Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Fin‘anci'al Statements
«  Consolidated Balance Sheet§ as of Febn;ary 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007

+  Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal years ended February 2, 2008, February 3, 2007 and
January 28, 2006 !

« ' Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended February 2, 2008, February 3, 2007 and
January 28, 2006

+  Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the fiscal years ended February 2, 2008, February 3, 2007
and January 28, 2006

*+  Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
2. . Financial 'S‘tarement Schedule
The folfowing financial statement schedule is filed herewith:
+  Schedule —Valuation and Qualifying Account
Gander Mountain Company
Schedule 11

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(in thousands)

Balance at Additions Balance at

Beginning Charged to end of
Description of Period cost, expense . Deductions period
Accounts Receivable Reserves(1): : . .
2007 e 150 ¢ 3287 . — 3437
2006 ... .o s 970 - 150 o 970 5150
2005... ’ 524 ‘ 1,046 . 600 $970
Inventory Reservus . |
2007 e 1,972 706 260 . $2.418
2006, s . 1,702 1,563 1,293 $1,972
2005, e $1,762 - $1,454 $1,514 $1,702

(1) Represents reserves for doubtful accounts related to amounts due from vendors that are reflected as reductions in

accounts payable in our balarice sheets as we have the nght-of-offset against amounts owed to vendors for
merchandise purchases.
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3. Exhibits
Exhibit Ne. + Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant(1)
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant(2)
4 Specimen of common stock certificate(3)
10.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated November 11, 2006, among the Registrant and the investors named
therein(4)
10.2 Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement, dated March 3, 2006, among the Registrant,
Bank of America, N.A,, as administrative agent, Bank of America Securities, LLC, as the lead arranger,
Foothill Capital Corporation, as the syndication agent, The CIT Group/Business Credit, Inc., as collateral
agent, General Electric Capital Corporation, as documentation agent, and the lenders named therein(5)
10.3 Amendment Agreement No. | to Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement, dated
March 3, 2006, among the Registrant, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, Bank of America
Securities, LLC, as the lead arranger, Foothill Capital Corporation, as the syndication agent, The CIT
Group/Business Credit, Inc., as collateral agent, General Electric Capital Corporation, as documentation
agent, and the lenders named therein(6)
10.4 Amendment Agreement No. 2 to Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement, dated
" March 3, 2006, among the Registrant, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, Bank of America
Securities, LLC, as the lead arranger, Foothill Capital Corporation, as the syndication agent, The CIT
Group/Business Credit, Inc., as collateral agent, General Electric Capital Corporation, as documentation
agent, and the lenders named therein(7) ‘
10.5 [ntercreditor Agreement among Fieet Retail Finance, Inc., in its capacity as agent, Holiday Companies and
the Registrant dated as of December 19, 2001(8)
10.6 Trademark Collateral Security and Pledge Agreement between the Reglstrant and Flect Retail Finance, Inc.
dated as of December 19, 2001(9)
10.7 Noncompetition Agreement between the Registrant and Cabela’s Incorporated dated May 16, 1996(10)
10.8% Employment Agreement dated March 1, 2006 by and between the Registrant and Mark R. Baker the
Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer(11) ' '
10.9% Form of Employment Agreement for the Registrant’s Executive Vice Presidents(12)
10.10 Form of Employment Agreement for the Registrant’s Senior Vice Presidents(13)
10.11¢ Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated January 24, 2007, by and between the Registrant and
Dennis M. Lindahl(14)
10.12¢ Revised Director Compensation Program(15)
10.13 Executive Stock Option Agreement between the Registrant and Mark R. Baker effective as of January 10,
2003(16)
10.14% Executive Stock Option Agreement between the Registrant and Dennis M. Lindahl effective as of
February 2, 2004(17) . B
10.15¢ 2002 Stock Option Plan{18) : )
10,16t Amendment No. T to 2002 Stock Option Plan(19} I
10.17% Amended and Restated 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan(20)
10.18% Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan(21)
10.19% Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement (Employee) under 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan(22)
10.20% Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement {Director) under 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan(23)
10.21¢ Employee Stock Purchase Plan(24)
10.22 Registration Rights Agreement among the Registrant and the sharcholders listed in the schedule thereto
dated March 11, 2004(25)
10.23% Executive Transfer and Repurchase Agreement between the Registrant and Mark R, Baker effective as of
January 10, 2003(26)
10.24% Executive Transfer and Repurchase Agreement between the Reglstrant and Dennis M. Lindahl dated
February 2, 2004(27)
14 Code of Conduct of the Registrant (as amended through June 7, 2005)(28)
21 Significant Subsidiaries of the Registrant*
23 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP*
24 Powers of Attorney*
311 Rule 13a-14{a)/15d-14(a) Certification by Principal Executive Officer*
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/ 1 5d-14(a) Certification by Principal Financial and Accounting Officer*
32 Section 1350 Certifications by Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer*
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)

ey

()

(4)

()

(6

Q)

(8)

9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(17

(18)

Management compensatory plan or arrangement,
Filed herewith.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-
I (Registration No. 333-112494), filed with the Commission on March 15, 2004,

! ' *
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Amendment No. | to the Registrant’s Registration Staternent on Form S-
1 (Registration No. 333-112494), filed with the Commission on March 15, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Amendment No. 1 fo the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 333-112494), fited with the Commission on March 15, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Flle No. 0- 50659), filed
with the Commission on December 13, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No, 0-50659), filed
with the Commission on March:&, 2006. .

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Registrant’s Current Reporl on Form 8-K (File No 0-50659), filed
with the Commission on May 31, 2006. . .

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Reg:strant 5 Currem Repon on Form 8-K (File No. 0-50659), filed
with the Commission on March 5, 2007. .

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Reglstrauon Statement on Form S-1 (Reglstratlon
No. 333-112494), filed with the Commission on February 5, 2004, -

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-112494), filed with the Commission on March 15, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration
No. 333-112494), filed with the Commission on February 5, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 0-50659), filed
with the Commission on March 7, 2006,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registraﬁt’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 0-50659), filed
with the Commission on March 7, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 0-50659), filed
with the Commission on March 7, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 0-50659), filed
with the Commission on January 24, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to the description of this program included in the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-
K (File No. 0-50639), filed with the Commission on March 7, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-1 (Registration
No. 333-112494), filed with the Commission on February 3, 2004,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration
No. 333-112494), filed with the Commission on February 5, 2004,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration
No. 333-118909), filed with the Commission on September 10, 2004,
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(19)

(20)

@n

(22}

(23

(24)

@25)

(26)

(27

(28)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1. (Reglstratlon
No. 333-112494), filed with the Commission on February 5, 2004. :

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to the Registrant’s definitive proxy statement for its 2005 annual meeting of
shareholders (File No. 0-50659), filed with the Commission on Schedule 14A on May 6, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 5-8 (Registration
No. 333-118909), filed with the Commission on September 10, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration
No. 333-118909), filed with the Commission on September 10, 2004,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.6 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration
No. 333-118909), filed with the Commission on September 10, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit C to the Registrant’s definitive proxy statement for its 2005 annual meeting of
sharcholders (File No. 0-50659), filed with the Commission on Schedule 14A on May 6, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-112494), filed with the Commission on March 15, 2004,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Amendment No. 2 to the Registrant’s Registration Staiement on
Form -1 (Registration No. 333-112494), filed with the Commission on March 26, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Amendment No. 2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (Registration No, 333-112494), filed with the Commission on March 26, 2004

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14 ta the Reglstrant s Current Report on Form 8- K (File No 0- 50659) filed |
with the Commission on June 13, 2005. .
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Sl-ection‘IS or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report 1o be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on May 2, 2008.

GANDER MOUNTA]N COMPANY
(Registrant) :

to By: /s MARK R. BAKER ‘
' ’ Mark R. Baker
Chief Executive Qfficer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been 51gned by the following
persons on behalf of the reglstrant and in the capacities indicated on May 2, 2008

1 4 "

Name . . Title
/s! MARK R. BAKER - Chief Executive Officer, President and Director
Mark R. Baker (Principal Executive Officer)

kY

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Ofﬁlcrer
and Treasurer .
(Principal Financial and Accoummg Offi cer)

/s/ ROBERT J. VOLD
Robert 1. Vold

s * : - L .
David C. Prat v ; Chairman of the Beard

/s/*

Ronald A. Erickson Vice-Chatrman of the Board

A Director
Karen M. Bohn
}'s/ ¥ i ‘ '
Direct .
Marshall L. Day frector ‘ )
ssix '
Richard C. Dell Plrector
/s! * .
Direct
Gerald A. Erickson 1rector
* Robert J. Vold, by signing his name hereto, does hel’eby sign this documient on behalf of each of the above- named

directors of the registrant pursuant to powers of attorney duly executed by these persons ‘

L]

/s/ ROBERT J. VOLD

Attorney-in-Fact

=
r

1

3
e
LA
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Mark R. Baker ‘
Chief Executive Qfficer and President

Richard J. Vazquez
Executive Vice President, Merchandising and
Marketing

JoAnn B. Boldt .
Senior V.rce Preszdent Human Reaources

Mark A. Bussard
Senior Vice President, Retail Sales

.

Kerry D. Graskewicz
Senior Vice President, Inventory Management

Eric R. Jacobsen
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

*
RobertJ. Vold '~
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS .
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders is scheduled
for Wednesday, June 11, 2008, at 9:00 a.m. Central
Time in the Jerome Hill Theater at 180 East Fifth
Street, St. Paul, Minnesota. '

STOCK LISTING
Trading Symbol: GMTN
NASDAQ Global Market

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

The Investor Relations section on
www.gandermountain.com includes all SEC filings,
a list of analyst coverage, selected financial ]
information, news releases and biographies of the
company’s board of directors and executives.

You can contact Investor Relations at
investorrelations@gandermountain.com or by
calling 651-325-4600.

TRANSFER AGENT
For assistance regarding individual stock records,
name or address changes, lost certificates or . |
transfers of ownership, please contact:

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

Shareowner Seryices .

P.0. Box 64854

St. Paul, MN 55164-0854
Phone: 800-401-1957 or 651-450-4064
Web site: www.wellsfargo.com/shareownerservices
Hearing impaired: 651-450-4144

LEGAL COUNSEL
Faegre & Benson LLP

BoARD OF DIRECTORS

Mark R. Baker .
Chief Executive Officer and President, Gcmder
Mountain Company

Director since 2004

Karen M. Bohn “**
President, Galeo Group LLC
Director since 2004

Marshall L. Day '*%?

Independent Lead Director, Gander Mountain
Company:

Former Senior Vice Pres:dem

Finance and Accounting, Home Depot Inc.
Director since 2004 ;

Richard C. Dell "**
Chief Executive.Officer, Ames True Temper Inc.
Director since 2004

Gerald A. Erickson >

Vice President and Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors, Holiday Companies

Director since 1997

Ronald A. Erickson ™

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, Gander
Mountain Company

Chief Executive Qfficer and Chairman of the Board of
Directors, Holiday Companies

Director since 1997- !

David C. Pratt »*

Chairman of the Board of Drrecrors Gander Mountain
Company

Former President and CEQ of United Industries
Director since 2005

! Member of Audit Committee

? Member of Compensation Committee

3 Member-of Governance and Nominating
Committee ‘

*Committee Chair

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(see Investor Relations - Corporate Governance at
www. gandermountain.con) v
Principles of Corporate Governance
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
Director Nominee Selection Policy
Procedures for Contacting the Board
Board Committee Charters

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING
FIRM
Ernst & Young LLP
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